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mevceeveveerÙe meYeemeo yebOet Je Yeefieveer,

Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& 2018-19 Ûee Jeee|<ekeâ Dee{eJee Je Ùee Je<ee&le Ie[uesuÙee efJeMes<e heefjCeecekeâejkeâ Ie[ecees[er DeeheCee meYeemeoebheg{s meeoj keâjerle Deens.

YeejleerÙe yeBeEkeâie #es$eeceOÙes cees"Ÿee heÇceeCeele ef[efpešueeÙePesMeve nesle Deens. Ùee eqmLelÙeblejeÛÙee DeJemLesceOÙes meJe& #es$eebheÇceeCes yeBefkebâie #es$eelemegOoe 
meeÙeyej efmekeäÙegefjšer YesoCÙeeÛee cees"e Oeeskeâe efvecee&Ce Peeuee Deens. ÙeeÛee cees"e DeeIeele DeeheuÙee yeBkesâJejmegæe Peeuee.

yeBkesâÛÙee Feflenemeele meJee&le neefvekeâejkeâ Iešvee cnCepes yeBkesâJej meeÙeyej nuuee nesTve lÙeele Deeheues `98.66 keâesšeRÛes efveJJeU vegkeâmeeve Peeues. 
efo.11 Dee@iemš 2018 Je efo.13 Dee@iemš 2018 Ùee oesve efoJemeeble SšerSce hescesvš iesšJes efmemšerceÛee mJeerÛe Je eqmJeHeäš hescesvš iesšJes ÙeeJej 
›eâceMeŠ n@keâjves nuuee keâ®ve leeyee efceUefJeuee. mJeerHeäš hescesvšÉejs iesuesuÙee `13.92 keâesšer ®heÙeebyeeyele heÇLece 15 efceveeršele ue#eele DeeuÙeecegUs 
leele[erves neueÛeeueer keâ®ve neBiekeâeBie ÙesLeerue nBiemeBie yeBkesâle jkeäkeâce jesKetve OejCÙeeÛee heÇÙelve kesâuee. DelÙeble peueo ieleerves kesâuesuÙee heÇÙelveebcegUs 
Deboepes `8 keâesšer DeeheCe nBiemeBie yeBkesâletve yeensj peeCÙeele jesKet Mekeâuees Deenesle. neBiekeâeBie heesefueme Je mLeeefvekeâ vÙeeÙeeueÙeeletve ner jkeäkeâce hejle 
efceUefJeCÙeeÛeer keâeÙe&Jeener Ûeeuet Deens.

meoj meeÙeyej nuuÙeecegUs yeensj iesuesuÙee jkeâcesÛesÛe efveJJeU vegkeâmeeve Peeues Deens Demes veener lej meJe& mebj#eCe heÇCeeueeRÛeer hegveŠleheemeCeer Je 
hegveyeeËOeCeer nesF&heÙeËle yeBkesâÛeer owvebefove keâeÙe&heÇCeeueer, meJe& hescesvš efmemšerce DeeefCe ieÇenkeâmesJee efJemkeâUerle Peeueer.

mebhetCe& efmekeäÙegefjšer efmemšerce keâeÙe&jle Demeleeveemegæe PeeuesuÙee meeÙeyej nuuÙeecegUs Heâkeäle Deeheueer yeBkeâÛe veener lej meJe& yeBeEkeâie #es$e neo®ve iesues. 
meoj DeeJeMÙekeâ efmekeäÙegefjšer efmemšerce hejle hetJe&Jele keâjCÙeehetJeea lÙeebÛeer mebhetCe& meKeesue leheemeCeer kesâueer Deens. yeouelÙee iejpeebvegmeej Je meuueeieejebÛes 
megÛeveebvegmeej yeBkesâceOÙes DeefOekeâ me#ece efmekeäÙegefjšer efmemšerce keâeÙee&eqvJele kesâuÙee Demetve lÙeeJej peeoe Yeeb[Jeueer KeÛe& keâjCÙeele Deeuee Deens.

meoj meeÙeyej nuuee Je lÙeeveblej hescesvš efmeeqmšce hetJe&Jele keâjeJeÙeeme ueeieuesuÙee DeJeOeerÛee heefjCeece Keelesoej Je lÙeebÛes JÙeJenejebJej Peeuee. Ùee 
Devehesef#ele DeeIeeleecegUs KeelesoejebÛeer iewjmeesÙe PeeuÙeeves yeBkesâÛÙee cegole "sJeeRceOÙes megceejs `500 keâesšer Je yeÛele "sJeeRceOÙes `415 keâesšer Ieš Peeueer. 
lemesÛe keâe[& JÙeJenejebÛes keâefceMeveceOÙes `3.70 keâesšerÛeer Ieš Peeueer.

Skebâojerle yeBkesâÛeer Deee|Lekeâ heefjeqmLeleer cepeyetle Deens DeLeJee keâmes ÙeemebyebOeer G"uesuÙee JeeJe[Ÿee Je "sJeeRoejebceOÙes efvecee&Ce Peeuesuee mebYeÇce Je efYeleer 
ÙeeÛee heefjCeece yeBkesâleerue "sJeer cegolehetJe& cees[CÙeeJej Peeuee. DeMee efyekeâš heefjeqmLeleerle DeefleMeÙe "eceheCes Deuhe keâeueeJeOeerleÛe DeeheCe owvebefove 
keâecekeâepe hetJe&Jele ®UeJej DeeCeues. Ùee meJe& keâeUele meceepeeleerue keâener Ieškeâebveer keâe@mecee@me yeBkeâ yeg[Ceej / yebo nesCeej Demeener heÇÛeej kesâuee, 
lej menkeâej #es$eeleerue yeBkeâ mebIešvee Je lÙeebÛÙee meomÙe yeBkeâe menkeâej Oecee&ves keâeÙece Je heÇYeeJeerheCes keâe@mecee@me yeBkesâyejesyej jeefnuÙee lemesÛe meJe& 
HeÇmeejceeOÙeceebveer meoj Iešvesyeeyele yeBkesâÛeer yeepet mekeâejelcekeâHeCes pevelesmeceesj HeÇefmeOo kesâueer. lÙeeyeöue ceer Ùee meJeeËÛes ceveeheemetve DeeYeej ceevelees.

Dee@keäšesyej 2018 ceOÙes meneceener Dee{eJee IesCÙeemee"er PeeuesuÙee mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[UeÛÙee yew"keâerceOÙes yeBkesâJejerue meeÙeyej nuuÙeecegUs GÆJeuesueer 
keâ"erCe heefjeqmLeleer Je heg{erue 6 ceefnvÙeebÛÙee Dehesef#ele JÙeJenejebyeeyele hegvee|JeÛeej keâjCÙeele Deeuee. lÙeeceOÙes yeBkesâÛÙee mesJekeâebJej DeeuesuÙee 
o[heCeeÛes efveJeejCe Je yeBkesâÛÙee heÇeflecesÛes hegve®ppeerJeve keâjCÙeeJej Deecner efJeMes<e Yej efouee Je mesJekeâebvee DeeJeenve keâ®ve heÇsefjle kesâues. efJeÕeemeeÛes 
hegveyeeËOeCeerÛee heefjCeece Demee Peeuee keâer heg{erue 5 ceefnvÙeeble efJeMes<e keâecekeâepe keâ®ve cegole"sJeer Je keâpex ÙeeceOÙes iele 3 Je<ee&leerue meJeexÛÛe Jee{ 
Peeueer. ÙeecegUs ceeÛe& 2018 DeKesjÛÙee leguevesle ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj yeBkesâÛÙee SketâCe mesšDeheceOÙes megceejs `1,250 keâesšeRveer (4.86%) Jee{ 
Peeueer Deens. DeMeeheÇkeâejs keâ"erCe heefjeqmLeleerle efJeÛeejuÙee iesuesuÙee Je Mebkeâe efvecee&Ce keâjCeeNÙee heÇMveebvee meceLe&heCes Gòej osle DeeheCe yeBkesâÛeer heÇeflecee 
meebYeeUCÙeele ÙeMemJeer Peeuees Deenesle.

DeOÙe#eerÙe ceveesiele

meerS efceefuebo keâeUs
DeOÙe#e
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yeBkesâÛÙee Ùee heÇieleerceOÙes yeBkesâÛÙee mesJekeâebÛes Ùeesieoeve efJeMes<e keâewlegkeâeme hee$e Deens. yeBkesâÛeer heÇeflecee GbÛeeJeCÙeekeâjlee GheueyOe DemeuesuÙee meJe&  
hue@šHeâe@cme&Ûee Jeehej keâ®ve keâe@mecee@me hegvne keâMeer Jesieeves heg{s Ùesle Deens ns lÙeebveer meceepeeheg{s JesUesJesUer ceeb[tve peveceevemeele yeBkesâyeöue hegveŠ§e 
efJeÕeeme efvecee&Ce kesâuee. peevesJeejer 2019 ceOÙes "sJeeroej Je KeelesoejebÛes cesUeJes IesTve lÙeebveer hejle keâe@mecee@meMeer Jee{JeuesuÙee "sJeer Je JÙeJenejeyeöue 
DeeYeej ceeveues, lÙeeÛee KetheÛe Ûeebieuee mekeâejelcekeâ heefjCeece "sJeeroej, Keelesoej, mesJekeâ Je SketâCe meceepeeJej Peeuee. hejbleg, keâe[& hesceWš 
eqmJeÛeÛee hejHeâe@ce&vme keâener keâeU DemeceeOeevekeâejkeâ PeeuÙeecegUs lÙeeÛee heefjCeece CASA "sJeeRJej Peeuesuee Deens. DeMee heefjeqmLeleerle hesceWš eqmJeÛe 
heÇCeeueerceOÙes cees"e yeoue keâjCÙeeÛee OeesjCeelcekeâ Je keâ"esj efveCe&Ùe JÙeJemLeeheveeves Iesleuesuee Deens.

meeÙeyej nuuÙeeÛÙee meboYee&le hegCes heesefueme meeÙeyej mesuekeâ[tve meKeesue leheeme Ûeeuet Deens. hegCes Menj meeÙeyej mesueves efJeMes<eheÇkeâejs Ùee heÇkeâjCeer 
leheeme kesâuee Deens. lÙeebÛes ÙeMe Je keâeceefiejer efJeMes<e GuuesKeveerÙe Je heÇMebmeveerÙe Deens.

ÙeeÛeyejesyej DeMeer heefjeqmLeleer neleeUle Demeleeveener yeBkesâves Jemegueerkeâ[s efJeMes<e ue#e osTve DeepeheÙeËleÛeer meJeexÛÛe `211.38 keâesšer jkeäkeâce 
SveheerS KeelÙeebceOÙes Je `69.09 keâesšer jkeäkeâce write off kesâuesuÙee KeelÙeebceOÙes Jemegueer kesâueer Deens. lemesÛe ieleJe<eeaÛÙee leguevesle DenJeeue Je<ee&le 
Deveglheeefole keâpeeËceOÙes efveJJeU `28.24 keâesšer DeLee&le 0.92% Ieš Peeueer Deens.

Dee@iemš 2018 veblejÛÙee heg{erue 3 ceefnvÙeeble yeBkesâÛÙee "sJeer keâceer nesCÙeecegUs keâpe&efJelejCeeJej ÙeeÛee efJehejerle heefjCeece Peeuee neslee. DeMeener 
keâ"erCe heefjeqmLeleerle yeBkesâves ÙeeJe<eea SketâCe keâpeeËceOÙes megceejs `828 keâesšer Flekeâer efveJJeU Jee{ kesâueer Deens. iesuÙee 4 Je<ee&leerue meJeexÛÛe keâpe&Jeešhe 
ÙeeJe<eea kesâues Deens. efJeMes<e cenlJeeÛeer yeeye cnCepes Ùee keâpe&Jeešheele cees"er keâpex keâceer Je ueneve keâpex peemle osCÙeeJej Yej "sJeuee neslee.

lÙeeÛeheÇceeCes DeHeâJee Je DevÙe yeeyeeRÛee JÙeJemeeÙeeJej nesCeeje heefjCeece ue#eele Ieslee, JÙeJemeeÙeeÛee ÙeesiÙe heÇkeâejs efJekeâeme Je efJemleej nesCÙeeJej Yej 
efouee. pÙeecegUs yeBkesâÛÙee meJe&Ûe keâeÙe&#es$eele Deee|Lekeâ meceleesue meeOeCÙeeÛÙee Â°erves Gefö° meeOÙe kesâues Deens.

DeefleMeÙe efyekeâš heefjeqmLeleerle SketâCe meeÙeyej nuuee vegkeâmeeveehewkeâer efvecceer jkeäkeâce cnCepes `50.21 keâesšer KeÛeea šekeâuÙeeveblej efveJJeU veHeâe 
`21.83 keâesšer Peeuee Deens. mebefÛele iegbleJeCetkeâ DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe efveOeerhewkeâer (Investment Fluctuation Reserve-IFR) Deefleefjkeäle 
efveOeer `30 keâesšer veHeâevegkeâmeeve Keeleer Jeie& kesâuee Demetve meeÙeyej nuuÙeeleerue vegkeâmeeve ns Deekeâeqmcekeâ DemeuÙeecegUs Deekeâeqmcekeâ leesšŸeemee"er 
DemeuesuÙee mebefÛele jeKeerJe efveOeerceOetvener (Reserve for Unforseen Losses) `23.71 keâesšer veHeâevegkeâmeeve Keeleer Jeie& keâjCÙeele Deeues 
Deensle. Ùeeveblej Je<e&DeKesj mejhueme `75.54 keâesšer Peeuee Deens.

KeÛee&Jej efveÙeb$eCe "sJeCÙeeÛesÂ°erves Je Skebâojerle yeÛele keâjCÙeeÛesÂ°erves yeBkesâves DeYÙeemehetJe&keâ efveCe&Ùe Iesleuee Demetve MeeKeebÛÙee Yee[slelJeeJej 
IesleuesuÙee cees"Ÿee peeiee ¢ee peeieeceeuekeâebvee hejle keâ®ve DeMee MeeKee iejpesveg®he ÚesšŸee peeiesle mLeueeblejerle keâ®ve Yee[s jkeâcesÛÙee KeÛee&ceOÙes 
yeÛele kesâueer Deens. lÙeeÛeheÇceeCes yeBkesâÛÙee mJeceeuekeâerÛÙee hejbleg JÙeeJemeeefÙekeâÂ°Ÿee Jeehejele vemeuÙeeves keâener peeiee nmleeblejerle kesâuÙee Demetve keâener 
peeiee nmleeblejerle keâjCÙeeÛÙee heÇ›eâerÙesle Deensle. lÙeecegUs De[keâuesueer jkeäkeâce yeBkesâÛÙee owvebefove JÙeJemeeÙeele Jeehejele ÙesCeej Deens. DeMeeheÇkeâejs yeBkesâves 
meeOevemebheòeerÛÙee megÙeesiÙe JeehejeJej ue#e keWâõerle kesâues Deens.

iesueer 3 Je<ex ueeYeebMeeÛÙee Dehes#ee yeBkeâ hetCe& keâ® ve MekeâuÙeecegUs, Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&le meYeemeoebkeâ[tve cees"Ÿee heÇceeCeele Yeeb[Jeue hejleeJee ceeieCeer 
Deeueer Je keâeÙeÅeeleerue lejletoeRheÇceeCes 10% heÇceeCes `37.16 keâesšer Yeeb[Jeue yeBkesâves hejle kesâues Deens. keâener meYeemeoebveer yeBkesâÛeer Deee|Lekeâ JeešÛeeue 
meceeOeevekeâejkeâ DemeuesÛes mecepetve IesTve `10 keâesšerÛes veJeerve Yeeb[Jeue GYeejCeerme meneÙÙe kesâues Deens.

meeÙeyej nuuÙeeceOeerue mebhetCe& vegkeâmeeveerÛeer jkeäkeâce hetCe&heCes KeÛeea šekeâuÙeeefMeJeeÙe yeBkesâme ueeYeebMe Jeešhe keâjlee ÙesCeej veener Demes efjPeJn& yeBkesâves 
metefÛele kesâues Deens. lÙeecegUs meve 2018-19 ÛÙee veHeâe efJeYeeieCeerceOÙes ueeYeebMeeyeeyele efMeHeâejme keâjCÙeele Deeuesueer veener.

Skebâojerle ns Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& KetheÛe De[ÛeCeer Je DeeJneveebÛes "jues, lejerner peveceevemeeleerue yeBkesâÛeer heÇeflecee GbÛeeJele "sJele JÙeJemeeÙeJe=æer keâ®ve 
heefjCeeceer JÙeJemeeÙeele ueeYeoeÙeer Je heÇieleerkeâejkeâ "jues.

OevÙeJeeo !

Deeheuee mvesnebefkeâle,

efceeEueo keâeUs

DeOÙe#e
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Chairman’s Address
Dear Shareholders,

I am presenting before you the financial results of your Bank along with the significant events that crossed our 
way during the FY 2018-19.

Banking Sector is undergoing digitalization on a large scale. Due to this transition, like all the sectors, the 
threat of cyber security breach has increased considerably. Your Bank too suffered the cyber-attack hit.

In its history of 113 years, the Bank faced the most acrimonious incident of cyber-attack in which we had to 
incur net loss of `98.66 crore. On 11th August 2018 and 13th August 2018, Switch of ATM Payment Gateway 
System and SWIFT Payment Gateway were consecutively hacked and compromised by the hackers. The 
amount of `13.92 crore transferred through SWIFT Payment was traced in just 15 minutes. Immediate action 
was taken and we requested Hang Seng Bank in Hong Kong to hold the amount. With the assistance of Hong 
Kong Police and the judicial support we will recover ` 8 crore shortly.

Due to this cyber-attack, the Bank not only lost money, but the day to day operating system and all payment 
systems were affected causing direct impact on Bank’s transactions until the entire security system was 
analyzed and restored.

This cyber-attack that took place in spite of all security systems being in place, shocked not only your Bank, but 
the entire Banking Sector. Before reinstating the necessary security systems a detailed audit and inspection 
was carried out. Considering the need of the time, and taking advice from the consultants, we have introduced 
more efficient and robust security systems in the Bank and your Bank has made additional capital investments 
in hardening the new systems.

The cyber-attack and restoration of payment systems back to normalcy caused an impact on the customers 
and their transactions. Bank faced premature withdrawal of term deposit of approx. `500 crore and saving 
deposits amounting to `415 crore and lost `3.70 crore from card commission due to this cyber-incident.

Due to this incident, doubts and fear was raised in the minds of customers regarding the position of the 
Bank which resulted in some of the customers choosing to withdraw deposits prematurely. The Bank stood 
very strong in this critical situation and we streamlined the day-to-day work successfully within a short span. 
During this phase some members of society, started spreading rumours that Bank is facing severe losses 
and it might shut down business. While various banking organizations from cooperative sector and members 
of cooperative fraternity, living up to their pledge of cooperation stood in solidarity with our Bank. Similarly, 
all media put your Bank’s say about this incident positively. I thank all of them from the bottom of my heart.

In the six-monthly review taken in Board of Director’s meeting held in October 2018 the situation caused 
by cyber-attack was analyzed and the expected business for the next 6 months was appraised. It was very 
urgent and important during this phase to address the stress, staff was undergoing. We focused on supporting 
the staff and enhancing the image of the Bank. As a result of this within just 5 months, the Bank saw maximum 
rise in deposits and advances compared to the last 3 years. This has shown fruitful results and as compared 
to March 2018, Bank’s setup at the end of March 2019 has increased by `1,250 crore i.e. by 4.86%. In this 
way we were able to successfully address any doubtful questions and maintain the positive image of the Bank.

The contribution of staff in Bank’s progress is particularly praiseworthy. They have used all available platforms 
to enhance the image of Bank and shown the society how Cosmos is developing, at the same time creating 
renewed trust for Cosmos in the minds of stakeholders. In the month of January 2019, meetings and  
get-togethers of customers and depositors were arranged to express gratitude towards them for maintaining 
and also investing in fresh deposits with the Bank. This had a very positive impact on the depositors, account 
holders, staff and society in general. However, the performance of Card Payment Switch was affected for 
time being which affected the CASA deposits. In this scenario, Management has taken a significant and tough 
policy decision to make major changes in Payment Switch System.
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Meticulous investigation regarding the cyber-attack is ongoing through the Pune Police Cyber Cell. Pune City 
Cyber Cell has made special investigation in this matter. Their success and efforts in this investigation are 
exemplary and commendable.

At the same time, Bank has made focused efforts on recovery and maximum amount till date, of  
`211.38 crore has been recovered from NPA accounts and `69.09 crore from write-off accounts. During the 
year under review, the net amount in NPA accounts was reduced by `28.24 crore which is 0.92% less than 
last year.

In the three months following August 2018, the loss of deposits had negatively affected the loan disbursements. 
Even in these adverse circumstances Bank has increased its net advances by `828 crore. This was the 
highest loan disbursement in last 4 years. The significant part of this is, Bank has focused on retail loans 
rather than big ticket loans.

Considering the adverse effect on the Bank’s business due to rumours and other impediments, impetus was 
given on its development and expansion. This has resulted in maintaining balance in all banking domains and 
achieving the goals.

In the dire circumstances after showing working loss of 50% of the cyber-attack, i.e. `50.21 crore, the net 
profit stands at `21.83 crore. Additional funds of `30 crore from Investment Fluctuation Reserve – IFR has 
been transferred to Profit & Loss Account and as the cyber-attack was unexpected ̀ 23.71 crore from Reserve 
for Unforeseen Losses was also transferred to Profit & Loss Account. Thus, the surplus for the year end is 
`75.54 crore.

For curtailing expenditure and optimizing the resources, the Bank has taken a premeditated decision to hand 
over the excessively big rented premises to the owners and shifting the branches in small premises thus 
saving on monthly rent. From business point of view, some of the properties which are owned by the Bank 
but remain non-utilized have been disposed-off while some are in the process of being dispose off. This will 
enable the Bank to use the amount frozen in these properties for day-to-day banking operations. This way the 
Bank has focused on using its infrastructure and property in a best possible way.

Bank has not been able to satisfy the expectation of members on the dividend since last 3 years, thus during 
the year under review members chose to surrender their shares and asked for the refund of share capital. As 
per the law, Bank returned 10% of the share capital amounting to `37.16 crore. Some members stood by the 
Bank realizing its satisfactory performance and helped to raise fresh share capital of `10 crore.

As per guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India, your Bank will not be able to distribute the dividend until 
the entire amount lost due to cyber-attack is provided for. Hence dividend for the FY 2018-19 has not been 
recommended.

Overall, the year under review was extremely difficult and challenging. Yet, the Bank has successfully 
enhanced its image by increasing business and thus it can be said that the year under review was productive 
and optimistic.

With regards,

Milind Kale
Chairman
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Name of the Bank: The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Multistate Scheduled Bank)

Registered Office: Cosmos Tower, Plot No.6, S. No. 132/B, ICS Colony, University Road, Ganeshkhind, Pune 411 007

Registration No. & Date: Under the Co-operative Credit Societies Act, 1904. Reg. No.20, dated 18th January 1906

Under Multistate Co-op Soc. Act, 1984, MSCS/CR/72/97 dated 28.11.1997

Under Banking Regulation Act, 1949, ACD/MH/188 P dated 11.03.1980

Incorporated in the Second Schedule as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934

UBD/BR.324/A-9-90/91, dated 01.11.1990

Area of Operation: States of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka, Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana

A) Deee|Lekeâ / Financials  	  (` in crore)
leheMeerue / Particulars As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018
YeeieYeeb[Jeue / Paid up Share Capital 344.47 371.64
SketâCe efveOeer / Reserves and other Funds 1,515.86 1,612.45
Yeeb[Jeue heÙee&hlelee øeceeCe / Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) 12.89% 13.95%
"sJeer / Deposits 
yeÛele / Savings 2,440.19 2,738.04
Ûeeuet / Current 837.78 868.86
cegole / Term 12,075.07 11,325.60
SketâCe / Total 15,353.04 14,932.50
helehegjJe"e / Advances
leejCeer helehegjJe"e / Secured 11,558.11 10,735.05
efyeveleejCeer helehegjJe"e / Unsecured  41.05 35.88
SketâCe / Total 11,599.16 10,770.93
keâpex / Borrowings 1,124.71 684.51
SketâCe iegbleJeCetkeâ / Total Investments 4,922.03 5,090.74
Lekeâyeekeâer heÇceeCe / Overdues (Percentage) 6.47% 6.15%
veHeâe / Profit for the year 75.54 6.69
ceeieerue Je<ee&Ûee efMeuuekeâ veHeâe /Previous year’s Profit c/f 4.75 17.63
KesUles Yeeb[Jeue / Working Capital 18,472.58 17,631.55

B) Flej / Others 

leheMeerue / Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
MeeKee / Total Branches 140 140
meYeemeo / Members 79016 78,815
veececee$e meYeemeo(keâpe&oej) /  
Nominal Members (Borrowers)  5485 5553

SketâCe mesJekeâ / Total Staff 2838 2,809

HIGHLIGHTS
As on 31st March, 2019
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Management Team

Managing Director
Mr. Suhas Gokhale

Chief General Managers
Ms. Nayan Lagad Mr. Avinash Rana Ms. Apekshita Thipsay

Chief Information Technology Officer
Ms. Arti Dhole (w.e.f. 1st January 2019)

General Managers
Mr. Rajendra Pandit Mr. Avinash Chavan
Mr. Sunil Panse Mr. Vishwas Agale
Mr. Anil Barve Mr. Sanjay Sawant
Mr. Manoj Shah Mr. Vijay Vaidya (OSD)
Ms. Akanksha Rane

Statutory Auditors
M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates, LLP, Mumbai

M/s.  P. G.  Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, Pune

Internal Auditors
M/s Gunwani & Kolapkar, Chartered Accountants, Pune
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NOTICE FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(FOR MEMBERS ONLY)

The 113th Annual General Meeting of the members of THE COSMOS  
CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD., will be held on Sunday, 4th August, 2019 
at 9.00 a.m. at Shivshankar Sabhagruha, S. No. 698/1, Maharshinagar, 
Paigude Baug, Pune – 411037 for transacting following business. Your 
presence therefore is highly solicited.

1.	 To confirm the minutes of the 112th Annual General Meeting held on 
2nd September 2018.

2.	 A)	 To consider and adopt

		  i)	 Annual Report for the year 2018-2019.

		  ii)	 Profit And Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2019.

		  iii)	 Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019.

	 B) 	 To review actual utilization of reserves and other funds during 
the year 2018-2019.

3.	 To consider and approve the appropriation of profit for the financial 
year 2018-2019 as proposed by the Hon’ble Board of Directors.

4. 	 To consider the Report of Statutory Auditors and compliance thereof 
for the year 2018-2019.

5. 	 To appoint Statutory Auditors for the year 2019-2020 and to authorize 
Hon’ble Board of Directors to decide their remuneration.

6.	 To take note of the loans and advances outstanding from the Directors 
and their relatives during the year 2018-2019 (vide section 39 (3) of 
the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002).

7. 	 To discuss and decide about commercialization of the Bank.

8. 	 To consider and adopt amendments proposed by Hon’ble Board of 
Directors to the existing Bye-Laws No. 5(ix), 31(ii) (a) and 44 of the 
Bank. (Draft enclosed)

9.	 To sanction leave of absence of members who are not able to attend 
the 113th Annual General Meeting.

10.	 Any other matter, with the permission of the Chair.

Date:12th July 2019 By order of the Board of Directors
Pune                                                                                                   Suhas Gokhale

Managing Director

Notes
1.	 The meeting shall commence at 9.00 a.m. sharp. If the required 

quorum of members is not present at the commencement of the 
meeting, it shall be adjourned. The adjourned meeting will resume 
business on the same day, at the same place, at 9.30 a.m., 
irrespective of the quorum, in which, only the business mentioned 
in the Notice of the Meeting shall be transacted.

2.	 All documents and information relating to the business to be 
transacted at this Annual General Meeting to be held on 4th August, 
2019 will be available at Cosmos Tower - Bank’s Head Office up to  
1st August, 2019 on working days, between 11.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m.

3.	 Members are requested to submit their queries, if any, regarding 
the business to be transacted at this Annual General Meeting, in 
writing at the Bank’s Head Office up to 1st August, 2019 on working 
days, between 11.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m.

4.	 The unabridged version of the Annual Report is available on Bank’s 
website www.cosmosbank.com while the hard print of Annual Report 
will be available at all branches for the members. Those members 
who make a written request to receive the Annual Report before the 
meeting, the same shall be sent to them by Post on their address 
registered with the Bank.

5.	 Members are requested to kindly bring the Membership Photo 
Identity Card for the meeting.

Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesÛeer veesšerme  
(Heâkeäle meYeemeoebkeâefjlee)

efo keâe@mecee@me keâes-Dee@he.yeBkeâ efue.ÛÙee meYeemeoebÛeer 113 Jeer Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe 
meYee jefJeJeej efo.4 Dee@iemš 2019 jespeer mekeâeUer "erkeâ 9.00 Jeepelee efMeJeMebkeâj 
meYeeie=n, me.veb.698/1, cene|<eveiej, heeÙeieg[s yeeie, hegCes 411 037 ÙesLes nesCeej 
Deens.  lÙeeJesUer heg{erue keâecekeâepe nesF&ue. lejer meoj meYesme DeeheCe DeJeMÙe GheeqmLele 
jeneJes DeMeer efJevebleer Deens.

1.	 efo.2 mehšWyej 2018 jespeer PeeuesuÙee 112 JÙee Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesÛee 
Je=òeevle keâeÙece keâjCes.

2.	 De) 	 heg{erue heÇmleeJeebÛee efJeÛeej keâjCes Je lÙeeme ceevÙelee osCes.

	 1.	 meve 2018-2019 Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&Ûee Jeee|<ekeâ Je=òeevle.

	 2.	 efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 jespeer mebheuesuÙee Je<ee&Ûes veHeâeleesše he$ekeâ.

	 3.	 efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj mebheuesuÙee Je<ee&Ûee leeUsyebo.

	 ye) 	 meve 2018-2019 Ùee Je<ee&leerue iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeeRÛÙee heÇlÙe#e  
JeehejemebyebOeer ceeefnleer IesCes.

3.	 cee.mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[Ueves megÛeefJeuesuÙee meve 2018-19 ÛÙee veHeâe efJeYeeieCeermebyebOeer    
efJeÛeej keâjCes Je lÙeeme ceevÙelee osCes.

4.	 meve 2018-2019 ÛÙee JewOeeefvekeâ uesKeehejer#eCe DenJeeueeJej efJeÛeej keâjCes Je 
lÙeeÛÙee hetle&lee DenJeeueeÛeer ceeefnleer IesCes.

5.	 meve 2019-2020 Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&mee"er JewOeeefvekeâ uesKeehejer#ekeâebÛeer efveÙegkeäleer 
keâjCes. lÙeebÛes mesJeeMegukeâ "jefJeCÙeeÛee DeefOekeâej mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[Ueme osCes.

6.	 yeBkesâÛes mebÛeeuekeâ Je lÙeebÛes veelesJeeF&keâ ÙeebÛeskeâ[s meve 2018-2019 Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&le 
ÙesCesyeekeâer DemeuesuÙee keâpee&Ûeer ceeefnleer IesCes. (ceequšmšsš keâes-Dee@he.meesmeeÙešerped  
De@keäš 2002 keâuece 39(3) Devegmeej)

7.	 yeBkesâÛes commercialization keâjCesyeeyele efJeÛeej keâ®ve efveCe&Ùe IesCes.

8.	 yeBkesâÛes meOÙeeÛes heesšefveÙece ›eâceebkeâ 5 (ix), 31 (ii)(a) Je 44 ÙeeceOeerue 
og®mlÙeebyeeyele cee.mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[Ueves kesâuesuÙee efMeHeâejMeeRÛee efJeÛeej keâjCes Je 
ceevÙelee osCes. (meesyele cemegoe efouee Deens.)

9.	 113 JÙee Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme GheeqmLele jent ve MekeâuesuÙee meYeemeoebÛeer 
DevegheeqmLeleer ceevÙe keâjCes.

10.	 cee. DeOÙe#e ÙeebÛÙee mebceleerves DeeÙelÙeeJesUer ÙesCeeNÙee efJe<eÙeebÛee efJeÛeej keâjCes.

efo.12 peguew 2019  cee.mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[UeÛÙee Dee%esJe¤ve
hegCes megneme ieesKeues

JÙeJemLeehekeâerÙe mebÛeeuekeâ

metÛevee
1.	 Jejerue meYesme mekeâeUer "erkeâ 9.00 Jeepelee heÇejbYe nesF&ue.  lÙeemee"er DeeJeMÙekeâ 

leer ieCemebKÙee hetCe& Peeueer vemesue lej ner meYee mLeefiele kesâueer peeF&ue.  DeMee 
mLeefiele meYesÛes keâecekeâepe lÙeeÛe efoJeMeer, lÙeeÛe ef"keâeCeer mekeâeUer 9.30 Jeepelee 
meg® nesF&ue Je Ùee mLeefiele meYesme ieCemebKÙee hetleeaÛeer DeeJeMÙekeâlee jenCeej veener.  
Ùee meYesle Jejerue veesefšMeerceOÙes veceto kesâuesuÙee efJe<eÙeebÛee efJeÛeej keâjCÙeele ÙesF&ue.

2.	 efo. 4 Dee@iemš 2019 jespeer nesCee-Ùee Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesheg{erue 
efJe<eÙeebmebyebOeerÛeer keâeieohe$es yeBkesâÛÙee keâe@mecee@me še@Jej Ùee cegKÙe keâeÙee&ueÙeeceOÙes 
efo. 1 Dee@iemš 2019 heÙeËle keâecekeâepeeÛÙee efoJeMeer mekeâeUer 11.00 les ogheejer 
4.00 Ùee JesUsle heeneJeÙeeme efceUleerue.  

3.	 Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesheg{erue efJe<eÙeebyeeyele meYeemeoebvee keâener heÇMve 
efJeÛeejeJeÙeeÛes DemeuÙeeme les uesKeer mJe¤heele yeBkesâÛÙee cegKÙe keâeÙee&ueÙeeceOÙes  
efo.1 Dee@iemš 2019 heÙeËle keâecekeâepeeÛÙee efoJeMeer mekeâeUer 11.00 les ogheejer 
4.00 Ùee JesUsle DeeCetve ÅeeJesle, ner efJevebleer. 

4.	 yeBkesâÛee mebhetCe& DenJeeue yeBkesâÛÙee mebkesâle mLeUeJej (www.cosmosbank.com) 
GheueyOe Demetve meYeemeoebmee"er DenJeeueebÛÙee heÇleer yeBkesâÛÙee MeeKeebkeâ[sner GheueyOe 
keâ®ve osCÙeele DeeuesuÙee Deensle.  meYeshetJeea pes meYeemeo mebhetCe& DenJeeue efceUCÙeeÛeer 
uesKeer ceeieCeer keâjleerue lÙeebvee yeBkesâÛee mebhetCe& DenJeeue yeBkesâkeâ[s veeWoefJeuesuÙee 
lÙeebÛÙee heòÙeeJej heesmševes hee"efJeCÙeele ÙesF&ue.

5.	 meYesme Ùesleevee meYeemeo DeesUKehe$e ke=âheÙee pe¤j yejesyej DeeCeeJes.
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ceevÙeJej meYeemeo, 

DeeheuÙee yeBkesâÛee Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& 2018-19 Ûee 113 Jee Jeee|<ekeâ DenJeeue 
mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[UeÛesJeleerves DeeheCeeheg{s meeoj keâjerle Deens.

peeieeflekeâ DeLe&JÙeJemLee-

Decesefjkeâve DeLe&JÙeJemLee ner peieeleerue meJee&le MeefkeäleMeeueer Je heÇYeeJeMeeueer 
DeLe&JÙeJemLee Deens. meve 2018 ceOÙes Decesefjkeâve DeLe&JÙeJemLesceOÙes 2.9% 
ves Jee{ Peeueer peer meve 2017 ceOÙes 2.2% nesleer. meve 2017 ceOÙes 
4.4% DemeuesuÙee Decesefjkesâleerue yesjespeieejerÛes heÇceeCe meve 2018 ceOÙes 
3.9% heÙeËle keâceer Peeues. Decesefjkeâve Hesâ[jue efjPeJn&ves ieleJe<ee&le ÛeejJesUe 
heÇlÙeskeâer 25 yesefmeme heeBFËšheÇceeCes JÙeepeojele 2.50% heÙeËle Jee{ kesâueer. 
ÙeecegUs Deeblejje°^erÙe heeleUerJej DevÙe ÛeueveebÛÙee leguevesle Decesefjkeâve  
[e@uejÛes cetuÙe DeefOekeâÛe jeefnues. 

peeieeflekeâ DeLe&JÙeJemLee meve 2017 ceOÙes 4% ves Jee{ueer nesleer, meve 
2018 ceOÙes efleÛee Jee{erÛee Jesie 3.6% neslee. meve 2019 ceOÙes 
peeieeflekeâ DeLe&JÙeJemLee 3.3% FlekeäÙee keâceer ieleerves Jee{CÙeeÛeer MekeäÙelee 
Deens.

meve 2019 ceOÙes meg®Jeeleeruee efveÙeefcele Jesieeves Jee{CeeNÙee peeieeflekeâ 
DeLe&JÙeJemLesves heg{erue keâeUele Jesie ieceeJeuee Je Decesefjkeâe - Ûeerve ÙeeceOeerue 
JÙeeheejer Ùegæ, yeÇseqkeäPešÛes heÇMve, ÛeerveceOeerue Iemejleer DeLe&JÙeJemLee ÙeecegUs 
meve 2019 ÛÙee heefnuÙee efleceenerceOÙes DeÛeevekeâheCes lÙeeceOÙes IemejCeÛe 
Peeueer. heg{s ÙesT MekeâCeeNÙee efvejeMeepevekeâ Deee|Lekeâ heefjeqmLeleerÛee efJeÛeej 
keâ®ve peieeleerue heÇcegKe ceOÙeJeleea yeBkeâebveer efMeLeerue OeesjCe DeJeuebefyeCÙeeme 
meg®Jeele kesâueer.

YeejleerÙe DeLe&JÙeJemLee-

iesues Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& YeejleerÙe DeLe&JÙeJemLesmee"er efvejeMeepevekeâ nesles. meve 
2017-18 ceOÙes YeejleeÛee Jeee|<ekeâ GDP 7.10% neslee, lees meve 
2018-19 ceOÙes 6.85% Peeuee. ne Jee{erÛee oj iesuÙee 5 Je<ee&leerue 
meJee&le veerÛeebkeâer neslee. NBFC #es$eeleerue Deee|Lekeâ DeeCeeryeeCeerÛeer 
heefjeqmLeleer, cee@efvešjer hee@efuemeerÛes keâ"esj OeesjCe, ieÇeceerCe heefjmejeleerue 
efyekeâš heefjeqmLeleer DeMee Deveskeâ yeeyeer YeejleerÙe DeLe&JÙeJemLesceOÙes IemejCe 
nesCÙeeme keâejCeerYetle "juÙee. ieleJe<eea 4.42% ves Jee{ Peeuesuee Index 

of Industrial Production (IIP) meve 2018-19 ceOÙes Ieme®ve 3.7% 
Flekeâe jeefnuee.

meeJe&ef$ekeâ efveJe[CegkeâebhetJeea meeoj keâjCÙeele DeeuesuÙee nbieeceer / Debleefjce 
Deboepehe$ekeâeceOÙes Meslekeâjer, Deee|LekeâÂ°Ÿee ogye&ue Je DemebIeefšle Ieškeâebvee 

lemesÛe ceOÙece JeieeaÙeebvee efouesuÙee Deveskeâ meJeueleeRcegUs 3.3% Deboeefpele 

kesâuesueer Deee|Lekeâ letš meve 2018-19 ceOÙes 3.4% heÙeËle Jee{ueer.

Consumer Price Index (CPI) ÛÙee ceespeCeervegmeej meve 2018-19 

ceOÙes ceneieeF& efveoxMeebkeâ 3.43% ves Jee{uee, pees ieleJe<eea 3.58% ves 

Jee{uee neslee. Devve Je efJeefJeOe hesÙeebÛÙee efkeâceleeRceOÙes Peeuesueer ue#eCeerÙe 

Ieš, keâÛÛee lesueeÛÙee keâceer PeeuesuÙee efkeâceleer ÙeecegUs Consumer Price 

Index ceOÙes keâceer Jee{ efometve Deeueer.

Decesefjkeâe Je Ûeerve ÙeebÛesceOeerue JÙeeheejer Ùegæ, peeieeflekeâ DeLe&JÙeJemLee lemesÛe 

JÙeeheej ÙeeceOeerue ceboer ÙeecegUs YeejleeÛeer Deeblejje°^erÙe yeepeejeleerue letš 

DenJeeue Je<ee&ceOÙes $176 billion heÙeËle Jee{ueer.

YeejleerÙe yeBefkebâie #es$e

ieleJe<eeaHes#ee meve 2018-19 ns DeeefLe&keâ Je<e& keâceefMe&Deue yeBkeâebvee leguevesves 

keâceer DeeJneveeÛes nesles. Ùee yeBkeâebÛÙee DeveglHeeefole keâpeeËceOÙes ieleJe<eeaHes#ee 

ue#eCeerÙe megOeejCee Peeuesueer efometve Deeueer. keâceefMe&Deue yeBkeâebÛes ieleJe<eea 

11.5% Demeuesues {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keâpeeËÛes HeÇceeCe DenJeeue Je<ee&le 

10.8% Peeues.

efjPeJe& yeBkesâves peenerj kesâuÙeevegmeej, meve 2018-19 ceOÙes meeJe&peefvekeâ 

#es$eeleerue 11 yeBkeâebvee Prompt Corrective Action - PCA  ueeiet Peeueer. 

Ùee 11 yeBkeâebHewkeâer 5 yeBkeâebÛeer meoj Prompt Corrective Action - PCA 

Heemetve megškeâe Peeueer Demetve meOÙee meeJe&peefvekeâ #es$eeleerue 6 yeBkeâebvee ueeiet 

Peeuesueer Prompt Corrective Action - PCA Depetvener Ûeeuet Deens.

Ùee meeJe&peefvekeâ #es$eeleerue yeBkeâebvee DeeefLe&keâ De[ÛeCeerletve JeeÛeefJeCÙeemee"er 

keWâõ mejkeâejves cees"ŸeeHeÇceeCeele Yeeb[JeueeÛeer iebgleJeCetkeâ kesâueer Deens. Ùee 

Yeeb[Jeueer HegjJe"ŸeecegUs meeJe&peefvekeâ #es$eeleerue yeBkeâebÛÙee HeleHegjJe"e 

keâjCÙeeÛÙee #ecelesceOÙes megOeejCee nesF&ue.

mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[U 

meve 2018-19 Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&le ßeer.efceueeRo keâeUs Ùeebveer DeOÙe#e cnCetve 

lemesÛe ßeer.ieeseEJeo #eerjmeeiej Ùeebveer GheeOÙe#e cnCetve keâecekeâepe heeefnues. 

yeBkesâÛes mebÛeeuekeâ ßeer. heÇkeâeMe peesMeerjeJe Ùeebveer yeBkesâÛÙee mebÛeeuekeâ heoeÛee 

efouesuee jepeerveecee mJeerkeâejCÙeele ÙesTve efo.12 Dee@keäšesyej 2018 

heemetve lÙeebvee yeBkesâÛÙee mebÛeeuekeâ heoeJe®ve cegkeäle keâjCÙeele Deeues Deens.  

ßeer.heÇkeâeMe peesMeerjeJe ÙeebÛee meve 2015 heemetve yeBkesâÛÙee mebÛeeuekeâ 

ceb[UeceOÙes me›eâerÙe menYeeie neslee.
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113 Jee Jeeef<e&&keâ DenJeeue 2018-2019

yeBkesâÛeer meebheefòekeâ heefjeqmLeleer Je Deee|Lekeâ efve<keâ<e&
yeBkesâÛeer mebheuesuÙee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&Ûeer heefjeqmLeleer heg{erueheÇceeCes Deens-

(` keâesšerle)

leheMeerue 2017-18 2018-19
YeeieYeeb[Jeue 371.64 344.47
SketâCe efveOeer 1,612.45 1,515.86
mJeefveOeer 1,984.09 1,860.33
vekeäle Deveglheeefole keâpex
(Net NPA)

7.24% 6.30%

{esyeU Deveglheeefole keâpex 
(Gross NPA)

9.45% 8.53%

SketâCe Glhevve 1,876.94 1,820.63
SketâCe Glhevve (efveOeeRceOetve jkeäkeâce Jeie& kesâuÙeeveblej) 1,949.36 1874.34
De) efceUeuesues JÙeepe 1,461.68 1,462.75
ye) Flej Glhevve	 204.54 203.23
keâ) Flej pecee 210.72 154.65
efveOeerceOetve Jeie& 72.42 53.71
SketâCe KeÛe& 1,942.67 1,798.80
De) efouesues JÙeepe 1,099.56 1,051.03
ye) mesJekeâebJejerue KeÛe& 157.99 176.36
keâ) Flej KeÛe& 184.95 242.07
[) lejlegoer + jeF&š Dee@Heâ 500.17 329.34
efveJJeU veHeâe / leesše -65.73 21.83
vesš mejhueme 6.69 75.54

veHeâe efJeYeeieCeer - veHeäÙeeÛeer heg{erueheÇceeCes efJeYeeieCeer keâjCÙeeÛeer efMeHeâejme mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[U Jeeef<e&keâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme keâjerle Deens.

vesš mejhueme (c/f to B/s) ` 75,53,59,660.62
(-) Reserve for unforeseen losses ` 23,70,56,496.39
(-) peeoe iegbleJeCetkeâ Ûe{Gleej efveOeer written back ` 30,00,00,000.00
efveJJeU veHeâe (meve 2018-19) ` 21,83,03,164.23

(+) ceeieerue Je<ee&Ûee veHeâe ` 4,75,12,225.83
SketâCe efveJJeU veHeâe ` 26,58,15,390.06

efJeYeeieCeer -
1. iebieepeUer (25%)* ` 5,45,75,800.00
2. efMe#eCe efveOeer (1%)* ` 21,83,040.00
3. Deekeâeqmcekeâ leesšŸeemee"er jeKeerJe (10%)* ` 2,18,30,320.00
4. meeÙeyej vegkeâmeeve YejHeeF& efveOeer ` 18,00,00,000.00

` 25,85,89,160.00

meve 2018-19 ceOeerue efMeuuekeâ efveJJeU veHeâe ` 72,26,230.06
(+) Reserve for unforeseen losses** ` 23,70,56,496.39

(+) peeoe iegbleJeCetkeâ Ûe{Gleej efveOeer written back** ` 30,00,00,000.00

Heg{erue Je<ee&mee"er efMeuuekeâ efveJJeU veHeâe (veHeâe-leesše KeelÙeeÛeer efMeuuekeâ) ` 54,42,82,726.45

*meojÛeer efJeYeeieCeer ceequšmšsš keâes-Dee@he. meesmeeÙešerped De@keäš 2002 keâuece 63(1) ceOeerue lejlegoeRvegmeej efveJJeU veHeâe ` 21,83,03,164.23 ÛÙee 
heÇceeCeele megÛeefJeuesueer Deens.

**veHeâe leesšeKeeleer Jeie& kesâuesueer jkeäkeâce
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"sJeer
ceeÛe& 2018 DeKesj DeeheuÙee yeBkesâÛÙee SketâCe "sJeer 
`14,932.50 keâesšer neslÙee. Dee@iemš 2018 ceOÙes 
yeBkesâÛÙee SšerSce DeeefCe eqmJeHeäš FvNHeÇâemš̂keäÛejJej 

meeÙeyej nuuee Peeuee. ne nuuee yeBeEkeâie Fb[mš̂erÛÙee FeflenemeeceOeerue meJee&le 
cees"e, Ieelekeâ DeeefCe megefveÙeesefpele nuuee neslee. Ùee meeÙeyej nuuÙeecegUs 
DeeheuÙee KeelÙeeleerue jkeâcesyeeyele Demegjef#elelee JeešuÙeecegUs ÙeeveblejÛÙee 
meg®JeeleerÛÙee keâeUele "sJeeroejebveer "sJeer keâe{CÙeeme meg®Jeele kesâueer. hejbleg 
Kejer heefjeqmLeleer mecepeuÙeeJej, DeeheuÙee ceevÙeJej Keelesoejebveer yeBkesâme 
mebhetCe& hee"eRyee osJetve hegvne yeBkesâceOÙes "sJeer "sJeCÙeemener meg®Jeele kesâueer. 
Ùee keâ"erCe keâeueKeb[ele Je lÙeeheg{erue mebhetCe& keâeueeJeOeerle yeBkesâme Keelesoej/
meYeemeoebkeâ[tve GlmeenJeOe&keâ Je mekeâejelcekeâ hee"eRyee efceUeuÙeecegUs  
ceeÛe& 2018 ÛÙee leguevesle yeBkesâÛÙee "sJeeRceOÙes `420.54 keâesšerves Jee{ nesTve 
efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj yeBkesâÛÙee SketâCe "sJeer `15,353.04 keâesšer 
PeeuÙee Deensle.
Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& 2018-19 ceOÙes yeBkesâves ieÇenkeâebmee"er heg{erue 2 veJeerve 
Ùeespevee meg® kesâuÙee neslÙee.

 	 keâe@mcees MegYebkeâj "sJe Ùeespevee - meoj Ùeespevee 2 cegoleeRkeâjerlee meg® 
keâjCÙeele Deeueer.

	 De) 	9 ceefnves keâeueeJeOeermee"er meJe&meeceevÙe DeeefCe pÙes… 
veeiejerkeâebkeâjerlee 8.50% JÙeepeoj

	 ye) 	21 ceefnves keâeueeJeOeermee"er meJe&meeceevÙe veeiejerkeâebkeâjerlee 
8.25% JÙeepeoj lej pÙes… veeiejerkeâebkeâjerlee 8.40% 
JÙeepeoj

	 keâe@mcees OeveJe<ee& "sJe Ùeespevee - meJe&meeceevÙe DeeefCe pÙes… 
veeiejerkeâebkeâjerlee 13 ceefnves keâeueeJeOeermee"er 8.10% JÙeepeoj

meoj oesvner "sJe Ùeespeveebvee "sJeeroej/Keelesoejebveer YejIeesme heÇeflemeeo efouee 
DeeefCe yeBkesâves efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj oesvner ÙeespeveebceOÙes efceUtve SketâCe 
`5,208.11 keâesšer "sJeer pecee kesâuÙee.
keâe@mcees mšej keâmšcej Ùeespevee - meoj ÙeespevesDebleie&le yeÛele KeelÙeebceOÙes 
`25 ueeKe DeLeJee lÙeehes#ee peemle jkeäkeâce (on daily basis) efMeuuekeâ 
"sJeCeeNÙee Keelesoejebvee lÙeebÛes yeÛele KeelÙeemee"er 6% ojeves JÙeepe osCÙeele 
Ùesle Deens. yeBkesâÛÙee JeOee&heveefoveer cnCepes efo.18 peevesJeejer 2019 jespeer 
meoj ÙeespevesÛee MegYeejbYe keâjCÙeele Deeuee. meoj Ùeespevesme ieÇenkeâebÛee 
Ûeebieuee heÇeflemeeo efceUle Demetve yeÛele KeelÙeeceOÙes `25 ueeKeehes#ee peemle 
jkeäkeâce efMeuuekeâ "sJeCeeNÙee KeelesoejebÛeer mebKÙee Jee{le Deens. Ùee ÙeespevesÛee 
CASA "sJeer Jee{CÙeemee"er Ûeebieuee GheÙeesie nesle Deens.

keâpex
DenJeeue Je<ee&ceOÙes yeBkesâÛeer keâpex `10,771 keâesšerJe®ve 
`11,599 keâesšer Peeueer Deensle. yeBkesâÛÙee keâpeeËceOÙes Ùee 

Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&le `828 keâesšerves cnCepes 7.69% ves Jee{ 

Peeueer Demetve ner iesuÙee 4 Je<eeËceOeerue meJee&efOekeâ Jee{ Deens. Ùee Deee|Lekeâ 

Je<ee&lener yeBkesâves CBLO lending ve keâjCÙeeÛee efveCe&Ùe Iesleuee neslee. 

DenJeeue Je<ee&le `154.55 keâesšer jkeâcesÛeer 100% lejleto kesâuesueer keâpex 

jeF&š Dee@Heâ keâjCÙeele Deeueer Deensle. lÙeecegUs, DenJeeue Je<ee&le keâpee&ceOeerue 

heÇlÙe#e Jee{ 9.12% nesle Deens.

efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj CD Ratio 75.81% Deens. lemesÛe yeBkesâÛÙee 

keâpeeËÛes mJeefveOeer DeefOekeâ "sJeer ÙeebÛesMeer Demeuesues heÇceeCe efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 

DeKesj 68.47% Demetve meojÛes heÇceeCe efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛÙee ÙeeyeeyeleÛÙee 

ceeie&oMe&keâ lelJeebvegmeej Deens.

efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛÙee ceeie&oMe&keâ megÛeveebvegmeej, efo.31 ceeÛe& 2018 ÛÙee 

uesKeeheefjef#ele Deee|Lekeâ he$ekeâebJej DeeOeeefjle yeBkesâÛeer Skeâe keâpe&oejemee"er 

(JÙekeäleer DeLeJee kebâheveer)DeefOekeâlece keâpe& ceÙee&oe `188.85 keâesšer Demetve 

mecetn keâpe&oejebmee"er DeefOekeâlece keâpe&ceÙee&oe `500 keâesšer Ùesle nesleer. 

ÙeecegUs veeceebefkeâle kebâhevÙee Je keâe@heexjsš ieÇenkeâ ÙeebÛÙee helehegjJe"ŸeeÛÙee 

ceeieCÙee hetCe& keâjCes yeBkesâme MekeäÙe Deens. leLeeefhe, yeepeejeceOeerue efJeefJeOe 

peesKeceer efJeÛeejele Ieslee, yeBkesâÛÙee mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[Ueves Ùeeyeeyele OeesjCeelcekeâ 

efveCe&Ùe IesTve veJeerve oeKeue nesCeeNÙee Skeâe keâpe&oejemee"er (JÙekeäleer 

DeLeJee kebâheveer) DeefOekeâlece keâpe&ceÙee&oe meJe&meeOeejCeheCes `50 keâesšerheÙeËle 

efveÙebef$ele kesâueer Deens. hejbleg SKeeÅee ieÇenkeâekeâ[tve Ùee ceÙee&oshes#ee DeefOekeâ 

jkeâcesÛee keâpe&heÇmleeJe oeKeue PeeuÙeeme, Ùee ieÇenkeâeÛÙee Deee|Lekeâ he$ekeâebÛee 

efJeÛeej keâ®ve peeoe ceÙee&oe lemesÛe DevÙe yeBkeâebyejesyej keâvmee@e|MeDeceÛÙee 

heÙee&ÙeeÛee efJeÛeej keâjCÙeele Ùeslees.

Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& 2018-19 ceOÙes, yeBeEkeâie #es$eeceOÙes keâpee&Jejerue JÙeepeojeÛeer 

mheOee& DemeuÙeeves meoj heefjeqmLeleerJej ceele keâjCÙeemee"er meOÙeeÛÙee 

keâpe&ÙeespeveebceOÙes Deekeâ<e&keâ yeoue keâjCÙeeÛes DeeefCe ieÇenkeâebÛÙee iejpeebÛee 

efJeÛeej keâ®ve veJeerve Ùeespevee leÙeej keâjCÙeeÛes OeesjCe yeBkesâves mJeerkeâejues 

Deens. lemesÛe keâpe&oejebÛÙee keÇsâef[š jsefšbiemee"er keâener veJeerve ieÇenkeâeefYecegKe 

efvekeâ<e ueeiet keâjCÙeele Deeues Deensle. lÙeevegmeej DeMee keâpe&oejebvee megOeeefjle 

JÙeepeoj osCÙeele Deeues Deensle.

meOÙee yeBkesâceeHe&âle ie=nkeâpe&, GÅeespekeâ, leejCeer, ÛeejÛeekeâer Jeenve, Mew#eefCekeâ, 

keâe@mcees ›esâef[š F. efJeefJeOe heÇkeâejÛeer keâpex DelÙeble JeepeJeer Je mheOee&lcekeâ 

JÙeepeojeceOÙes GheueyOe keâ®ve osCÙeele Ùesle Deensle. ie=nkeâpe&oejebÛeer ceeieCeer 

Je iejpe efJeÛeejele IesTve, Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&le Top up ÙeespevesÛeer ceÙee&oe 

`5.00 ueeKeeJe®ve `10.00 ueeKe DeMeer Jee{efJeCÙeele Deeueer Deens. meJe& 

keâpe&Ùeespevee DeefOekeâeefOekeâ ieÇenkeâeefYecegKe nesCÙeemee"er Ùee keâpeeËÛÙee Dešer 

Meleea lemesÛe heÇesmeseEmeie keâeueeJeOeer ÙeeceOÙes meelelÙeeves megOeejCee keâjCÙeele 

Ùesle Deensle. DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesâÛÙee efjšsue keâpee&le ieleJe<eeaÛÙee leguevesle 

5.23% Jee{ Peeueer Deens. Ûeeuet Je<eea yeBkesâves efjšsue keâpee&Jej ue#e keWâefõle 

kesâues Demetve SketâCe keâpe&Jee{erceOÙes efjšsue keâpe& Jee{erJej cees"Ÿee heÇceeCeele 

Yej osCÙeele Ùesle Deens.
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113 Jee Jeeef<e&&keâ DenJeeue 2018-2019

vegkeâleerÛe Deee|Lekeâ #es$eeme hegvne ieleer efceUCÙeeme meg®Jeele PeeuÙeecegUs yeBeEkeâie 
#es$eeceOÙes meceeOeevekeâejkeâ keâpe&Jee{ nesCÙeeÛeer Dehes#ee Deens. meoj yeeyeerÛee 
efJeÛeej keâ®ve Deeheueer yeBkeâ meOÙeeÛÙee keâpe&ÙeespeveebceOÙes lemesÛe keâpee&Jejerue 
JÙeepeojele iejpesvegmeej DeeJeMÙekeâ les yeoue keâjerle Deens. Ùee meieàÙeeÛee 
mekeâejelcekeâ heefjCeece efveeq§eleÛe veefpekeâÛÙee YeefJe<Ùeele efometve ÙesF&ue. Skeâe 
keâpe&oejemee"er (JÙekeäleer DeLeJee kebâheveer) Je mecetn keâpe&oejebmee"er efveeq§ele 
kesâuesuÙee DeefOekeâlece keâpe&ceÙee&oebÛee efJeÛeej keâjlee Deeheueer yeBkeâ cees"Ÿee Je 
veeceebefkeâle kebâhevÙee DeeefCe keâe@heexjsš ieÇenkeâebÛÙee ceeieCeervegmeej keâpe&hegjJe"e 
keâjCÙeeme vekeäkeâerÛe me#ece Deens.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesâves DeieÇ›eâce #es$eeme kesâuesuee helehegjJe"e `3,262 keâesšer 
Demetve SketâCe keâpee&Meer lÙeeÛes Demeuesues heÇceeCe 30.28% Deens, lej ogye&ue 
Ieškeâ keâpee&Ûes SketâCe keâpee&Meer Demeuesues heÇceeCe 7.62% Deens. ieleJe<eeahes#ee 
DeieÇ›eâce #es$e Je ogye&ue Ieškeâ #es$e keâpee&ÛÙee heÇceeCeele ue#eCeerÙe Jee{ Peeueer 
Deens. DeMeeheÇkeâejÛÙee keâpeeËceOÙes Jee{ nesCÙeeÛesÂ°erves meelelÙeeves heÇÙelve 
keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deensle. DeieÇ›eâce #es$e Je ogye&ue Ieškeâ #es$e ÙeeceOÙes DebleYet&le 
nesCeeNÙee ÚesšŸee efjšsue keâpee&Ûes ceekexâšeRie keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens. lemesÛe 
DeieÇ›eâce / ogye&ue Ieškeâ #es$eeleerue keâpe&Ùeespeveebvee meJeueleerÛÙee ojeleerue 
JÙeepeoj ueeiet keâjCÙeele Deeuee Deens. heg{erue Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&ceOÙes yeBkeâ 
DeieÇ›eâce #es$eeDebleie&le ‘meesuej hee@Jej pevejsMeve’ keâjerlee veJeerve keâpe&Ùeespevee 
peenerj keâjle Deens.

osMeeÛÙee 7 jepÙeebceOÙes Demeuesuee yeBkesâÛee MeeKeeefJemleej efJeÛeejele Ieslee, 
lÙee lÙee jepÙeeleerue heefjeqmLeleer, lesLeerue heÇcegKe GÅeesie, ieÇenkeâebÛeer ceeieCeer 
F. Ûee efJeÛeej keâ®ve yeBkesâÛÙee efJeefJeOe keâpe&ÙeespeveebceOÙes jepÙeefveneÙe yeoue 
keâ®ve keâpee&Ûeer ‘keâmšceeF&p[ heÇe@[keäšmed’ ieÇenkeâebvee GheueyOe keâ®ve osCÙeele 
Ùesle Deensle.

›esâef[š meghejeqJnpeve mesue

yeBkesâves efJelejerle kesâuesueer keâpex veJÙeeves Deveglheeefole keâpeeËceOÙes meceeefJe° 
nesT veÙesle Ùeemee"er ›esâef[š meghejeqJnpeve mesueceOeerue keâecekeâepe 
cenòJeeÛes "jle Deens. yeBkesâves efJelejerle kesâuesuÙee keâpeeËÛes ÙeesiÙeheÇkeâejs 
efveÙeb$eCe keâjCÙeemee"er Ùee efJeYeeieeceOeerue keâecekeâepeeÛee efveeq§ele Demee 
DeejeKe[e leÙeej keâjCÙeele Deeuee Deens. `25 keâesšeRhes#ee peemle jkeâcesÛeer 
keâpex Je efJeMes<e GuuesefKele keâpex -Special Mentioned Accounts  

(SMA 0 les SMA2) ÙeebÛes efveÙeb$eCe Ùee efJeYeeieeceeHe&âle keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens. 
Ùeemee"er keâpe&oej ÙeebÛeer [^e@FËie hee@Jej, KeelesGleejs F.Ûeer Úeveveer keâ®ve 
Deveglheeefole nesCÙeehetJeea keâpe&KeelÙeebceOÙes efometve Ùesle DemeuesuÙee De[ÛeCeer 
ue#eele IesTve lÙeeyeeyele JesUerÛe ÙeesiÙe leer heeJeues GÛeueCÙeeÛÙeeÂ°erves 
mebyebefOele efJeYeeieerÙe keâeÙee&ueÙeeme metefÛele keâjCÙeele Ùesles. DeeJeMÙekeâlesvegmeej 
DeMee keâpe&oejebkeâ[s Ùee efJeYeeieeleerue DeefOekeâeNÙeebceeHe&âle eqJnpeerš keâjCÙeele 
ÙesTve keâpe&KeelÙeebceOeerue De[ÛeCeer mees[efJeCÙeeÛÙeeÂ°erves mece#e ÛeÛee& 
keâjCÙeele Ùesles.
Ùee efJeYeeieeceeHe&âle "jeefJekeâ jkeâceshes#ee DeefOekeâ keâpe&cebpetj DemeuesuÙee 
keâpe&KeelÙeebÛÙee mše@keâ Dee@ef[šyeeyelener keâece keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens. lemesÛe 

hegveie&ef"le (Restructure) keâpe&KeelÙeebÛesyeeyele keâpe&oejebÛÙee Ùegefvešuee 
eqJnpeeršdme osCes, hegveie&ef"le KeelÙeebÛÙee specified keâeueeJeOeerceOÙes keâpee&Ûes 
nhles pecee nesleerue Ùeekeâ[s efJeMes<e ue#e Ùee efJeYeeieeceeHe&âle osCÙeele Ùesle Deens. 
ÙeeÉejs meojÛeer hegveie&ef"le keâpe&Keeleer Deveglheeefole nesCeej veenerle ÙeeJej 
efveÙeb$eCe "sJeCÙeele Ùesle Deens.

keâvmee@e|MeDece Je ceequšheue yeBeEkeâie Debleie&le keâpe&ceÙee&oe cebpetj DemeuesuÙee 
keâpe&KeelÙeebÛesyeeyele DeeJeMÙekeâ lÙee ceeefnleerÛeer mebyebefOele DevÙe yeBkeâebyejesyej 
osJeeCeIesJeeCe keâjCÙeele Ùesles.

meoj efJeYeeieeÛes heÇcegKeheoer mejJÙeJemLeeHekeâ opee&Ûee DeefOekeâejer keâeÙe&jle 
Demetve meojÛee efJeYeeie JÙeJemLeehekeâerÙe mebÛeeuekeâ ÙeebÛes ceeie&oMe&veeKeeueer 
keâecekeâepe keâjerle Deens.

Lekeâyeekeâer Je Deveglheeefole keâpex Jemegueer

DenJeeue Je<ee&le Lekeâerle JÙeepeemen yeBkesâves Deveglheeefole keâpee&ceOÙes  
`211.38 keâesšer, jeF&š Dee@Heâ kesâuesuÙee keâpee&ceOÙes `69.09 keâesšer 
DeMeer SketâCe `280.47 keâesšer jkeâcesÛeer Jemegueer kesâueer Deens. lemesÛe  
`53.27 keâesšer jkeâcesÛeer Keeleer upgrade keâjCÙeele Deeuesueer Deensle.

efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj LekeâyeekeâerÛes heÇceeCe 6.47%, {esyeU 
Deveglheeefole keâpee&Ûes heÇceeCe 8.53% Je vekeäle Deveglheeefole keâpeeËÛes heÇceeCe 
6.30% Peeues Deens.

yeBkesâves peemleerle peemle JemegueerÛes DeeJneveelcekeâ Gefö° mJeerkeâe®ve 
Deveglheeefole keâpee&Ûes heÇceeCe keâceer keâjCÙeeÛes "jefJeues Deens. heÇYeeJeer Jemegueer 
nesCÙeekeâjerlee efmekeäÙegefjšeÙePesMeve keâeÙeÅeebleie&le keâejJeeF& keâjCes, lemesÛe 
cee.efpeune ob[eefOekeâejer ÙeebÛesheg{s keâuece 14 Debleie&le ceeueceòee leeyÙeele 
IesCÙeemee"er Depe& oeKeue keâ®ve Jemegueermee"er keâeÙe&Jeener keâjCes, ceequšmšsš 
keâes-Dee@he. meesmeeÙešerped De@keäš Debleie&le Deee|yeš^sšj ÙeebÛesheg{s oeJes oeKeue 
keâjCes, DRT keâ[s oeJes oeKeue keâjCes, NCLT ÙeebÛesheg{s Depe& oeKeue keâjCes 
DeMee efJeefJeOe keâeÙeosMeerj ceeieeËÛee DeJeuebye keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens.

Lekeâerle keâpe&oejebvee Skeâjkeâceer jkeäkeâce Ye®ve keâpe&Keeles yebo keâjCÙeeÛee 
heÙee&Ùener GheueyOe keâ®ve osCÙeele Deeuesuee Deens. Ùeemee"er efJeYeeieefveneÙe 
DeesšerSme (OTS - One time settlement) cesUeJes DeeÙeesefpele keâjCÙeele Ùesle 
Deensle. meoj cesUeJÙeebvee Lekeâerle keâpe&oejebÛee mekeâejelcekeâ heÇeflemeeo efceUle 
Demetve Lekeâerle keâpe&jkeâcesÛeer Ùee ceeOÙeceeletve Jemegueer keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens.

efJeefueveerkeâjCe keâ®ve IesleuesuÙee yeBkeâebÛÙee Lekeâerle keâpee&ÛÙee Jemegueermee"er 
ceneje°^ menkeâejer keâeÙeoe keâuece 101 Debleie&le efceUeuesuÙee Jemegueer 
oeKeuÙeebÛeer DebceueyepeeJeCeer keâuece 156 vegmeej keâ®vener Jemegueermee"er 
heÇÙelve keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deensle.

meve 2019-20 ceOÙes heÇYeeJeer Jemegueer nesCÙeemee"er cegbyeF& Je iegpejele 
efJeYeeieemee"er 2 mJeleb$e mejJÙeJemLeehekeâebÛeer lemesÛe hegCes efJeYeeie, meove& 
efJeYeeie DeeefCe meWš^ue efJeYeeieemee"er mJeleb$e mejJÙeJemLeehekeâeÛeer efveÙegkeäleer 
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keâjCÙeele Deeueer Deens. lemesÛe jeF&š Dee@Heâ keâpeeËÛÙee Jemegueermee"er 
mejJÙeJemLeehekeâ opee&ÛÙee Dee@efHeâmej Dee@ve mhesMeue [Ÿetšer heoeJej Skeâe 
DeefOekeâeNÙeeÛeer efveÙegkeäleer keâjCÙeele Deeueer Deens. cegbyeF& efJeYeeieeceOeerue 
Skeâ mejJÙeJemLeehekeâ iegpejele efJeYeeie Je cegbyeF& efJeYeeieeceOeerue efJeefMe° 
jkeâcesÛÙee jeF&š Dee@Heâ keâpeeËÛÙee Jemegueermee"er keâeÙe&jle Deensle. 
ogmejs mejJÙeJemLeehekeâ cegbyeF& efJeYeeieeceOeerue Deveglheeefole keâpee&ÛÙee 
Jemegueermee"er keâeÙe&jle Deensle. lemesÛe LekeâyeekeâeroejebefJe®æ meg® 
DemeuesuÙee efJeefJeOe oeJÙeebceOÙes lJejerle efveCe&Ùe efceUtve lÙeeceOÙes meceeefJe° 
Demeuesueer Lekeâerle jkeäkeâce Jemetue keâjCÙeemee"er me#ece Jekeâerue / 
mee@efueefmešj Heâce& ÙeebÛeer vesceCetkeâ keâjCÙeele Deeuesueer Deens.

Jemegueeryeeyele "jeefJekeâ keâeUeves DeÅeÙeeJele ceeefnleer IesTve Jemegueer 
DeefOekeâeNÙeebvee ceeie&oMe&ve keâjCÙeemee"er JÙeJemLeehekeâerÙe mebÛeeuekeâ 

meehleeefnkeâ meYee Iesle Deensle. lemesÛe mebÛeeuekeâebÛÙee Jemegueer meefceleer ceeHe&âle 
DeefOekeâeNÙeebvee ceeie&oMe&ve keâjCÙeemee"er oj 15 efoJemeebveer Dee{eJee meYee 
IesTve ceeie&oMe&vener keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens. lemesÛe, mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[Uekeâ[tve 
Jemegueer keâejJeeF&yeeyele heÇefleceefnvee / JesUesJesUer Dee{eJee IesCÙeele Ùeslees Je 
DeeJeMÙekeâ lÙee metÛevee osCÙeele Ùesleele. mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[U Je Jemegueer DeefOekeâejer 
yeBkesâÛeer peemleerle peemle Jemegueer keâMeer nesF&ue Ùeemee"er HeÇÙelveMeerue Deensle.

meve 2019-20 Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&mee"er SketâCe  
`592.35 keâesšer jkeâcesÛÙee JemegueerÛes Gefö° efveeq§ele keâjCÙeele Deeues 
Demetve petve 2019 DeKesj Deveglheeefole keâpeeËceOÙes `22.60 keâesšer Je  
jeF&š Dee@Heâ kesâuesuÙee keâpeeËceOÙes `30.73 keâesšer Jemegueer keâjCÙeele 

Deeueer Deens. lemesÛe `41.91 ueeKe jkeâcesÛeer oesve Keeleer upgrade 

Peeueer Deensle

yeBkesâves LekeâyeekeâeroejebefJe®Oo efJeefJeOe keâeÙeÅeeblebie&le kesâuesuÙee keâejJeeF&yeeyele mebef#eHle Deekeâ[sJeejer Heg{erueHeÇceeCes-
ueJeeo DeefOekeâjCe Je cee. efpeune vÙeeÙeeueÙe ÙeebÛesHeg{s Skebâojerle 828 ueJeeo kesâmesme Ûeeuet Demetve DebleYet&le jkeäkeâce ̀  1209.24 keâesšer (cegöue + JÙeepe) Deens.

efo.31.03.2019 DeKesj mebKÙee
ueJeeo DeefOekeâjCe ÙeebÛes heg{s Ûeeuet Demeuesues oeJes 58
efpeune vÙeeÙeeueÙeele Ûeeuet DemeuesuÙee ojKeemle 770
efmekeäÙegefjšeÙePesMeve keâeÙeÅeebleie&le meve 2018-19 Ùee Je<ee&DeKesj 293 keâpe&oejebJej jkeäkeâce ̀ 1224.00 keâesšer (cegöue + JÙeepe) jkeâcesmee"er keâejJeeF& 
keâjCÙeele Deeueer Deens. 

keâejJeeF& mebKÙee
1.	 13 (2) keâueceebleie&le hee"efJeuesuÙee ceeieCeer veesefšmee 69
2.	 yeBkesâves leeyee IesleuesuÙee ceeueceòee 21
3.	 leeyee IesCÙeeÛeer heÇef›eâÙee meg® 112
4.	 leeyee Iesleuesuee Demetve efJe›eâer heÇef›eâÙee meg® 91

* Jejerue oesvner keâpe& Jemegueer Œeesleeleerue keâener HeÇkeâjCes oesvner m$eesleeKeeueer Deensle..

Yeeb[Jeue heÙee&hlelee (CRAR)
efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj yeBkesâÛes Tier I Yeeb[Jeue 

`927.51 keâesšer Je Tier II Yeeb[Jeue ̀ 645.38 keâesšer 

Deens. efjPeJn& yeBkesâves "jJetve efouesuÙee efvekeâ<eebvegmeej, 

DeeheuÙee yeBkesâÛeer efkeâceeve Yeeb[Jeue heÙee&hlelee 12% DemeCes DeeJeMÙekeâ 

Deens. efo.31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj DeeheuÙee yeBkesâÛeer Yeeb[Jeue heÙee&hlelee 

meceeOeevekeâejkeâ cnCepes 12.89% Flekeâer Deens.

oerIe& cegole "sJe Ùeespevee ›eâ. 7

efjPeJn& yeBkeâ Je menkeâej KeelÙeeÛÙee ceevÙelesvegmeej efo.25 ceeÛe& 2019 

jespeer yeBkesâves oerIe& cegole "sJe Ùeespevee ›eâ. 7 meg® kesâueer. meoj ÙeespevesDebleie&le 

`13 keâesšer "sJeer pecee keâjCÙeeme ceevÙelee efceUeueer nesleer. Keelesoejebveer 

efJeÕeemeeves meoj Ùeespevesme YejIeesme heÇeflemeeo efouee Je efo.25 ceeÛe& 2019 

les efo.28 ceeÛe& 2019 Ùee 4 efoJemeebÛÙee keâeueeJeOeerle `12.99 keâesšer 

jkeâcesÛÙee "sJeer Ùee ÙeespevesDebleie&le pecee PeeuÙee.

iegbleJeCetkeâ Je efveOeer JÙeJemLeeheve
efjPeJn& yeBkeâ heÇceeefCele jesKe jeKeerJe efveOeer (CRR) DeeefCe 
JewOeeefvekeâ lejuelee efveOeer (SLR) ÙeebÛes heeueve keâjCÙeeÛes 
keâece š^sPejer efJeYeeieekeâ[tve kesâues peeles.

DeeheuÙee yeBkesâÛee š̂sPejer efJeYeeie owvebefove lejuelee JÙeJemLeeheveeyejesyejÛe megÙeesiÙe 
iegbleJeCegkeâerceOetve yeBkesâÛÙee veHeäÙeeceOÙes Jee{ nesCÙeemee"erner Ùeesieoeve osle Deens.

Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& 2018-19 ns Je<e&ner š^sPejer efJeYeeieeuee ceeieerue 
Je<ee&meejKesÛe heCe leguevesves keâceer DeeJneveelcekeâ nesles. IL & FS Default,  
Yeejle-heeefkeâmleeve ceOeerue jepekeâerÙe leCeeJe, Decesefjkesâleerue Jee{les JÙeepeoj, 
efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛes cee.ieJnve&j Ùeebveer efouesuee jepeerveecee ÙeecegUs keâpe&jesKes 
yeepeejeceOÙes leerJeÇ Ûe{Gleej Peeues.

Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&ÛÙee heefnuÙee meneceenerceOÙes efjPeJn& yeBkesâves jshees ojeceOÙes  
50 yesefmemeves Jee{ keâ®ve lees 6.50% kesâuee. heefjCeeceer 10 Je<ex cegoleerÛÙee 
ceeheob[ keâpe&jesKÙeeJejerue hejleeJee 7.39% Je®ve 8.02% heÙeËle Jee{uee. 
Ùee keâeueeJeOeerceOÙes yeepeejeleerue lejuelesÛeer keâcelejlee DeeefCe ®heÙeeceOeerue 
IemejCe ÙeecegUsner ceeheob[eÛÙee hejleeJÙeeceOÙes Jee{ Peeueer.
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jshees jsšceOÙes 25 yesefmemeÛeer keâheele, ÛeueveJee{erceOeerue IemejCe, efjPeJn& 
yeBkesâÛeer Deesheve ceekexâšceOeerue keâpe&jesKÙeebÛeer Kejsoer ÙeecegUs ceeheob[ 
keâpe&jesKÙeeJejerue hejleeJee ogmeNÙee meneceenerceOÙes keâceer nesTve lees ceeieerue 
Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& 2017-18 DeKesjÛÙee 7.39% ÛÙee leguevesle Ûeeuet Deee|Lekeâ 
Je<e& 2018-19 ÛÙee MesJešer 7.48% Jej yebo Peeuee.
iegbleJeCetkeâ DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe efveOeerÛeer (Investment Fluctuation 

Reserve-IFR) efvee|celeer keWâõ/jepÙe mejkeâejer jesKÙeebÛÙee efJe›eâerceOetve 
efceUCeeNÙee heÇlÙe#e veHeäÙeeceOetve kesâueer peeles. iegbleJeCetkeâ DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe 
efveOeer ne efJe›eâermee"er GheueyOe (Available For Sale-AFS) jepÙe Je 
keWâõ mejkeâejer jesKÙeebÛÙee jkeâcesÛÙee 5% DeeJeMÙekeâ Demelees. Je<e&DeKesjerme 
mebefÛele iegbleJeCetkeâ DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe efveOeerhewkeâer JejerueheÇceeCes DeeJeMÙekeâ 
efveOeerhes#ee peemle (Excess) efveOeer efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛÙee heefjhe$ekeâevegmeej veHeâe 
vegkeâmeeveKeeleer Jeie& keâjlee Ùeslees. Demee Deefleefjkeäle efveOeer `30 keâesšer 
veHeâevegkeâmeeveKeeleer meve 2018-19 ceOÙes Jeie& kesâuee Deens.

efJeosMeer Ûeueve efJeefveceÙe JÙeJemeeÙe

Deeblejje°^erÙe JÙeeheej Je peeieeflekeâ Ûeueve yeepeejeJej 
Decesefjkesâleerue Jee{les JÙeepeoj, Decesefjkeâe Je Ûeerve 

¢ee osMeebceOeerue JÙeeheejerÙegæ lemesÛe peeieeflekeâ lesueeÛÙee efkeâceleerceOeerue 
Deefveeq§elelee Je yeÇseqiPeš YeesJeleerÛeer DeeqmLejlee ÙeebÛee Kethe cees"e heefjCeece 
efometve Deeuee. Ùee meJe& IeškeâebÛÙee heÇYeeJeecegUs Decesefjkeâve [e@uejÛÙee 
peeieeflekeâ cetuÙeeceOÙes Je=æer Peeueer.

Decesefjkeâve [e@uejÛÙee peeieeflekeâ cetuÙeJe=æerÛee efJeheefjle heefjCeece YeejleerÙe 
®heÙeeJej efometve Deeuee. lemesÛe Jee{leer Deee|Lekeâ letš, lesueeÛÙee Jee{erJe 
efkeâceleer, Yeejle-heeefkeâmleeve ÙeebÛesceOeerue leCeeJe, efJekeâeme ojeÛeer IemejCe 
DeeefCe meeJe&ef$ekeâ efveJe[CegkeâerhetJeeaÛeer Deefveeq§elelee ¢ee meJe& mLeeefvekeâ 
IeškeâebÛÙee heefjCeeceecegUs YeejleerÙe ®heÙeeÛeer Decesefjkeâve [e@ueme&ÛÙee leguevesle 
ÙeeJe<ee&le meJee&le veerÛeebkeâer cnCepes `74.48 heÙeËle IemejCe Peeueer.
DeMee DeeJneveelcekeâ lemesÛe yeBkesâJej PeeuesuÙee meeÙeyej nuuÙeeveblej 
efJemkeâUerle PeeuesuÙee Heâe@jskeäme Dee@hejsMevmeÛÙee heefjeqmLeleerlemegæe DeeheuÙee 
yeBkesâÛee SketâCe efJeosMe Ûeueve efJeefveceÙe JÙeJemeeÙe `21,573 keâesšeRheÙeËle 
heesnesÛeuee Je JÙeeheejer Guee{eueeRceOÙes 17% Ûeer Jee{ Peeueer. meeÙeyej 
nuuÙeeveblejÛÙee keâ"erCe heefjeqmLeleerveblejner yeBkesâÛÙee DeefveJeemeer YeejleerÙe 
(NRI) "sJeer ceeieerue Je<ee&FlekeäÙeeÛe jeKeCÙeele ÙeMe Deeues. ceeieerue Je<ee&ÛÙee 
leguevesle yeBkesâÛÙee efveÙee&le keâpeeËceOÙes (Export Credit) 126% SJe{er Jee{ 
nesTve SketâCe efveÙee&le keâpex `117.53 keâesšerheÙeËle heesnesÛeueer.

uesKeehejer#eCe Je leheemeCeer

meJe& MeeKeebÛes meceJeleea uesKeehejer#eCe (keâvkeâjbš Dee@ef[š) 
efJeefJeOe 25 meveoer uesKeeheeue Heâcme&ceeHe&âle keâjCÙeele 
Deeues Deens.  mebyebefOele MeeKeebÛÙee JÙeJemeeÙeevegmeej meoj 

meceJeleea uesKeehejer#eCeeÛeer JeejbJeeefjlee cnCepes - ceeefmekeâ, $ewceeefmekeâ, 
DeOe&Jeee|<ekeâ - "jefJeCÙeele Ùesles Je lÙeevegmeej uesKeehejer#eCe kesâues peeles.

efo. 2 mehšWyej 2018 jespeer PeeuesuÙee Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesves  

ces. Ùeeoea heÇYet De@v[ DemeesefmeSšdme, Sue.Sue.heer., cegbyeF&, Je  

ces.heer peer YeeieJele, Ûeeš&[& DekeâeQšbšdme, hegCes Ùee oesve Heâcme&Ûeer  

meve 2018-19 Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&mee"er mebÙegkeäle JewOeeefvekeâ uesKeehejer#ekeâ 

cnCetve efveÙegkeäleer kesâueer nesleer. lÙeebveer yeBkesâÛÙee meJe& MeeKee Je cegKÙe 

keâeÙee&ueÙeeleerue keâecekeâepeeÛeer leheemeCeer kesâueer Demetve lÙeeyeeyeleÛee 

DenJeeue Ùee Jeee|<ekeâ DenJeeueele osCÙeele Deeuee Deens. lemesÛe  

ces. iegCeJeeveer De@v[ keâesUhekeâj, Ûeeš&[& DekeâeQšbšmed, hegCes ÙeebÛeer Debleie&le 

uesKeehejer#ekeâ cnCetve efveÙegkeäleer kesâueer nesleer.

yeBkesâÛes meJe& keâecekeâepe mebhetCe&heCes mebieCekeâeÉejs kesâues peeles. ÙeeceOeerue 

megjef#elelesÛÙeeÂ°erves meve 2018-19 ÛÙee efmemšerce Dee@ef[šmee"er  

ces. Dee@eqkeämepeve keâvmeeéušie meeqJn&mesme heÇe. efue. ÙeebÛeer efveÙegkeäleer keâjCÙeele 

Deeueer nesleer. lÙeebveer efmemšerce Dee@ef[šÛes keâece hetCe& keâ®ve lÙeeÛee DenJeeue 

efouee Deens. MeeKeebkeâ[erue DeeÙe.šer.FvHeÇâemš^keäÛejyeeyeleÛeer leheemeCeer ÙeeJe<eea 

yeBkesâÛÙee heÇefMeef#ele mesJekeâebkeâ[tve keâ¤ve IesCÙeele Deeueer Deens.

Debleie&le uesKeehejer#eCe Je eqJnefpeuevme

MeeKeebÛÙee owvebefove keâecekeâepeeÛes Debleie&le uesKeehejer#eCe 

Je me#ece eqJnpeeruevme Ùeemee"er meJe& efJeYeeieerÙe 

keâeÙee&ueÙeebceOÙes mJeleb$e leheemeCeer efJeYeeie keâeÙe&jle Demetve owvebefove yeBeEkeâie 

JÙeJenejebJej heÇYeeJeer efveÙeb$eCe "sJeCÙeemee"er ne efJeYeeie keâeÙe&jle Deens.

ceeveJe mebmeeOeve

keâeÙe&#ece Je yeBkesâÛÙee heÇieleermee"er keâšeryeæ Demeuesues 

mesJekeâ Je DeefOekeâejerÛe yeBkesâme ÙeMeeÛÙee ceeiee&Jej vesT 

Mekeâleele. Ùeemee"er yeBkesâÛes mesJekeâ Je DeefOekeâejer ÙeebÛesceOÙes 

efJeMes<e #ecelee efvecee&Ce JneJÙeele Ùeemee"er yeBkeâ heÇÙelveMeerue Demeles. GheueyOe 

mesJekeâebÛÙee keâewMeuÙeeÛee yeBkesâme peemleerle peemle GheÙeesie nesCÙeeÛesÂ°erves 

mesJekeâebÛÙee keâewMeuÙeeÛee efJeÛeej keâ®ve lÙeebÛeskeâ[s keâecekeâepe meesheefJeCÙeeÛee 

yeBkesâÛee heÇÙelve Demelees.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le, yeBkesâÛeer Ghekebâheveer keâe@mecee@me F&-meesuÙegMevme De@v[ meeqJn&mesme 

heÇe. efue. ceOÙes keâeÙe&jle DemeCeeNÙee mesJekeâ-DeefOekeâeNÙeebÛeer mesJee yeBkesâle 

Jeie& keâjCesyeeyele yeBkesâves kebâheveeruee heÇmleeJe efouee neslee Je kebâheveerves meoj 

heÇmleeJe eqmJekeâejuee neslee. lÙeevegmeej kebâheveerkeâ[erue FÛÚgkeâ 83 mesJekeâebvee  

efo.1 peevesJeejer 2019 heemetve yeBkesâÛÙee mesJesle meeceeJetve IesCÙeele Deeues Deens.

yeBkesâceOÙes 31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj SketâCe 2600 mesJekeâ keâeÙe&jle Demetve 

Ùeehewkeâer 1256 DeefOekeâejer opee&Ûes Deensle Je 1344 DevÙe mesJekeâ Deensle. 

lemesÛe Ùee JÙeefleefjkeäle 238 GcesoJeej DeeTšmeesme& keâjCÙeele Deeues Deensle. 

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkeâ JÙeJemLeeheve Je yeBkeâ mesJekeâ mebIe ÙeebÛesceOÙes meewneo&hetCe& 

mebyebOe jeefnues Deensle.
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vetleve Je<ee&Ûes DeewefÛelÙe meeOetve efo.1 peevesJeejer 2019 jespeer yeBkesâceOÙes 
Employee Day meepeje keâjCÙeele Deeuee. ÙeeJesUer yeBkesâMeer yeebefOeuekeâer Je 
efJeÕemeveerÙelee peheCÙeeÛee Je Deee|Lekeâ JÙeJemeeÙeeÛÙee Gefö°hetleeaÛes efMeKej mej 
keâjCÙeeÛee yeBkesâÛes mesJekeâ/DeefOekeâejer Ùeebveer efveOee&j kesâuee. yeBkesâJej PeeuesuÙee 
meeÙeyej nuuÙeeveblej ieÇenkeâ/KeelesoejebceOÙes efJeÕeeme efvecee&Ce keâ¤ve, iesuesuee 
"sJeJÙeJemeeÙe Hegvne Skeâoe KesÛetve DeeCeCÙeele mesJekeâebveer ceesueeÛeer keâeceefiejer 
yepeeJeueer Ùeeyeöue Token of Appreciation cnCetve yeBkesâÛÙee meJe& mesJekeâ / 
DeefOekeâeNÙeebvee DenJeeueJe<ee&le Ex-gratia osCÙeele Deeuee.

keâe@mecee@me meWšj Dee@Heâ Skeämeuevme -

‘keâe@mecee@me meWšj Dee@Heâ Skeämeuevme’ ner yeBkesâleerue mesJekeâ 
Je DeefOekeâejer ÙeebÛesmee"erÛeer ceOÙeJeleea heÇefMe#eCe JÙeJemLee 

Demetve Ùee efJeYeeieeceeHe&âle meJe& mesJekeâebÛes keâewMeuÙe efJekeâefmele keâjCes Je lÙeebÛÙee 
heÇieleerÛÙeeÂ°erves heÇÙelve keâjCes ÙeeJej ue#e keWâõerle keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens. ÙeeÉejs 
YeefJe<Ùeeleerue DeeJneves hesueCÙeemee"er mesJekeâ Je DeefOekeâejer me#ece nesle Deensle.
DenJeeueJe<ee&le yeBkesâÛÙee meJe& MeeKee Je -efJeYeeieebceOeerue mesJekeâebmee"er 
SketâCe 181 Debleie&le heÇefMe#eCeebÛes DeeÙeespeve keâjCÙeele Deeues nesles Je 
4541 mesJekeâ-DeefOekeâeNÙeebveer lÙeeÛee ueeYe Iesleuee. lÙeeDebleie&le Credit 

Management, Importance of Valuation, Third Party Products-

Insurance & Mutual Funds, Importance of GST, Cyber Security 

Je AML-KYC, F. yeBeEkeâie Je yeBeEkeâie mesJeebceOeerue efJeefJeOe efJe<eÙeebJej heÇefMe#eCe 
me$es DeeÙeesefpele keâjCÙeele Deeueer nesleer.
Ùee Debleie&le heÇefMe#eCeebJÙeefleefjkeäle College of Agricultural Banking RBI, 

NAFCUB-Delhi, National Institute of Business Management-

Pune, IIBF-Mumbai F. yeensjerue veeceebefkeâle mebmLeebceeHe&âle DeeÙeesefpele 
keâjCÙeele DeeuesuÙee 20 efJeefJeOe heÇefMe#eCe me$eebvee yeBkesâÛes 32 DeefOekeâejer 
GheeqmLele jeefnues nesles. yeBkesâÛÙee owvebefove keâecekeâepeeceOeerue efvehegCelee 
Jee{CÙeeÛesÂ°erves DeMee heÇefMe#eCeebÛee mesJekeâebvee GheÙeesie nesle Deens.

peesKeerce JÙeJemLeeheve (efjmkeâ ce@vespecesvš)-
osMeeÛeer meOÙeeÛeer DeLe&JÙeJemLee, efJeefJeOe peeieeflekeâ 
Ie[ecees[eRÛee lÙeeJej nesCeeje heefjCeece Je 
DeLe&JÙeJemLesceOeerue Debleie&le ogJes F.yeeyeeRÛee efJeÛeej 

keâjlee, DeeheuÙee yeBkesâÛes mLewÙe& Je JÙeJemeeÙeeÛee efJekeâeme megefveeq§ele 
keâjCÙeemee"er peesKeerce JÙeJemLeeheve ne cenòJeeÛee Ieškeâ Deens.  yeBeEkeâie #es$e 
cepeyetle Je efJekeâefmele nesCÙeeÛesÂ°erves peesKeerce JÙeJemLeeheve ner efveÙeecekeâ 
hetle&lesÛeer yeeye "jueer Deens. Ùeemee"er peesKeerce JÙeJemLeeheveeÛÙee efJeefJeOe  
hee@efuemeerped jeyeefJeCÙeemee"er Je owvebefove keâece keâjleevee mesJekeâebceOÙes 
Ùeeyeeyele peeie®keâlee efvecee&Ce nesCÙeemee"er DeeheuÙee yeBkesâceOÙes efJeMes<e 
ke=âleer DeejeKe[e leÙeej keâjCÙeele Deeuee Deens. Ùee efJeYeeieeceeHe&âle yeBeEkeâie 
JÙeJemeeÙe keâjleevee meeceesjs peeJÙee ueeieCeeNÙee Dee@hejsMeveue efjmkeâ, ›esâef[š 
efjmkeâ, HeâeÙeveeeqvMeDeue efjmkeâ, FvHeâcexMeve efmekeäÙegefjšer efjmkeâ F. efJeefJeOe 
16 heÇkeâejÛÙee peesKeceer efveeq§ele keâjCÙeele DeeuÙee Deensle.

Ùeekeâjerlee efjmkeâ ce@vespecesvš hee@efuemeer ceevÙe keâjCÙeele Deeueer Demetve 
lÙeeDevJeÙes efveeq§ele kesâuesuÙee ceeie&oMe&keâ lelJeebvegmeej yeBkesâceOÙes peesKeerce 
JÙeJemLeeheve jeyeefJeCÙeele Ùesle Deens. meoj hee@efuemeerceOeerue ceeie&oMe&keâ 
lelJeebvegmeej, Dee@hejsMeveue efjmkeâ hee@efuemeer, efheÇvmeerheue efjmkeâ hee@efuemeer,  
De@mesš ueeÙeefyeueeršer ce@vespecesvš hee@efuemeer, efyePevesme keâvšervÙegšer hee@efuemeer, 
FvHeâcexMeve efmekeäÙegefjšer hee@efuemeer, meeÙeyej efmekeäÙegefjšer hee@efuemeer  F.yeBkesâceOÙes     
efveef§ele kesâuÙee Demetve mebhetCe& yeBkesâceOÙes lÙee jeyeefJeCÙeele Ùesle Deensle.  Ùee 
hee@efuemeerpeÛÙee hetle&lesyeeyeleÛes cee@efvešjeRie Je efjheesšeAie Ùeeyeeyele Operations 

Technology and Risk (OTR), Asset Liability Management 

Committee (ALCO), Business Continuity Planning (BCP), 

Information Security Committee DeMee meefcelÙeebceeHe&âle ceeefnleer 
IesCÙeele Ùesles.
Ùee JÙeefleefjkeäle meoj efJeYeeieeceeHe&âle Information Security Risk 

Ùeeyeeyelener osKejsKe "sJeCÙeele Ùesles. mesJekeâebvee Debleie&le yeeleceerhe$ekeâ, 
heesmšme&, JewÙeefkeälekeâ heÇefMe#eCe ÙeeceeHe&âle meeÙeyej megjef#elelesyeeyele 
peeie®keâ keâjCÙeele Ùesles. Keelesoejebvee yeeleceerhe$ekeâ, heesmšme&, "jeefJekeâ 
keâeueeJeOeerveblej SmeSceSme hee"efJeCes F. ceeHe&âle meeÙeyej megjef#elelesyeeyele 
peeie®keâ keâjCÙeele Ùesles. yeBkesâceOeerue FvHeâcexMeve efmekeäÙegefjšer šerce Je DeeÙešer 
šerce Ùee yeBkesâceOÙes efJeefJeOe efmekeäÙegefjšer GheeÙeÙeespevee jeyeefJeCÙeekeâjerlee 
Skeâef$eleheCes keâece keâjerle Deensle. lemesÛe IT Risk keâceer keâjCÙeemee"er, 
Data Centre Je Disaster Recovery Site Ûes Information System 

Audit keâjCÙeele Ùesles Je yeBkesâkeâ[erue Jeehejele DemeuesuÙee Information 

Systems ÙeesiÙe heÇkeâejs keâeÙee&eqvJele DemeuÙeeÛeer Kee$eer kesâueer peeles. 
yeBkesâÛÙee FvHeâcexMeve efmemšerceceOÙes DeeJeMÙekeâ megj#ee GheeÙeÙeespevee keâeÙe&jle 
DemeuÙeeÛeer leheemeCeer keâjCÙeekeâjerlee FvHeâcexMeve efmemšerce efmekeäÙegefjšer  
Dee@ef[šner keâ®ve IesCÙeele Ùesles Je lÙeevegmeej iejpe DemeuÙeeme FvHeâcexMeve 
efmemšerceceOeerue megj#ee GheeÙeÙeespeveebceOÙes Jee{ keâjCÙeele Ùesles.

keâjvmeer Ûesmš 

keâjvmeer ÛesmšceeHe&âle yeBkesâÛÙee hegCes-cegbyeF& Je veefpekeâÛÙee 
DevÙe heefjmejeleerue meJe& MeeKeebvee veesše Je veeCÙeebÛee 
hegjJe"e keâjCÙeele Ùeslees. keâjvmeer ÛesmšceOÙes pecee 

keâjCÙeele ÙesCeeNÙee jesKe jkeâcesÛÙee YejCÙeeceOetve yeveeJeš veesše DeesUKetve, 
lÙee yeepetuee keâe{Ces lemesÛe Kejeye veesše Jeehejeletve yeepetuee keâe{tve lÙee 
efjPeJn& yeBkesâkeâ[s hee"efJeCÙeeÛes keâecener Ùee keâjvmeer ÛesmšceeHe&âle keâjCÙeele 
Ùesles.
meve 2018-19 ceOÙes, keâjvmeer ÛesmšceeHe&âle hegCes ÙesLeerue yeBkesâÛÙee 
ieÇenkeâebmee"er 4 ‘Public Awareness Training Programs’ DeeÙeesefpele 
keâjCÙeele Deeues nesles. lemesÛe DenJeeue Je<ee&le 2 ‘Soiled Note and Coins 

Exchange’ cesUeJÙeebÛes DeeÙeespeve keâjCÙeele Deeues nesles. 

meve 2018-19 ceOÙes keâjvmeer ÛesmšceeHe&âle `3,089.59 keâesšer jkeâcesÛeer 
Guee{eue keâjCÙeele Deeueer.
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efJecee JÙeJemeeÙe (FvMegjvme) 
FvMegjvme JÙeJemeeÙe Jee{efJeCÙeekeâjerlee yeBkesâves IRDA ÛÙee 
ceeie&oMe&keâ lelJeebvegmeej pevejue efJecee Je peerJeve efJecee 
JÙeJemeeÙeekeâjerlee ICICI Lombard, HDFC Ergo, 

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co., ICICI 

Prudential, HDFC Life, Exide Life Insurance Co. Ltd.  DeMee 
kebâhevÙeebMeer JÙeeJemeeefÙekeâ Yeeieeroejer JÙeJemLee kesâueer Deens.

Ùee menYeeieeroejercegUs Keelesoejebvee efJecÙeeÛes efJeefJeOe heÙee&Ùe GheueyOe PeeuÙeecegUs 
lÙeebÛÙee iejpesvegmeej les ÙeesiÙe lÙee kebâheveerÛee heÙee&Ùe efveJe[t Mekeâleerue. 

DenJeeue Je<ee&le efJecee JÙeJemeeÙeeceOetve yeBkesâme `1.31 keâesšer keâefceMeve 
efceUeues Deens.

yeBkesâÛÙee SšerSce DeeefCe eqmJeHeäš hesceWš iesšJesJejerue 
meeÙeyej nuuee Je megOeeefjle megj#eeJÙeJemLee:

efo.11 Dee@iemš 2018 jespeer yeBkesâÛÙee SšerSce FvNHeÇâemš^keäÛejJej DeeefCe 
efo.13 Dee@iemš 2018 jespeer yeBkesâÛÙee eqmJeHeäš FvHeÇâemš^keäÛejJej meeÙeyej 
nuuee Peeuee. ne nuuee yeBeEkeâie Fb[mš^erÛÙee FeflenemeeceOeerue meJee&le cees"e, 
Ieelekeâ DeeefCe megefveÙeesefpele nuuee neslee. yeBkesâÛÙee megj#eeÙeb$eCesÛeer meJe& 
heÇcegKe keâ[er Yesotve ne nuuee yeBkesâÛÙee FvHeÇâemš^keäÛejJej keâjCÙeele Deeuee. 
mebhetCe& yeBeEkeâie #es$e, efjPeJn& yeBkeâ DeeefCe CERT-In, SWIFT, NPCI, VISA 
F. yeBeEkeâie #es$eeMeer efveie[erle mebmLee Ùee nuuÙeecegUs neo®ve iesuÙee neslÙee.

yeBkesâÛÙee SšerSce hesceWš iesšJesJej PeeuesuÙee meeÙeyej nuuÙeeceOÙes SketâCe 
`81.99 keâesšer jkeäkeâce 29 osMeebceOeerue SšerScmeceOetve 12000 
JÙeJenejebceOÙes VISA Debit Cards Jeehe®ve keâe{CÙeele Deeueer. lej 
`2.75 keâesšer jkeäkeâce osMeebleie&le SšerScme ceOetve 2800 JÙeJenejebceOÙes 
Rupay Debit Cards Jeehe®ve keâe{CÙeele Deeueer.

yeBkesâÛÙee eqmJeHeäš megefJeOesÛÙee hesceWš iesšJesJej PeeuesuÙee meeÙeyej nuuÙeeceOÙes 
SketâCe `13.92 keâesšer jkeäkeâce fraudulent transactions ceeHe&âle 
neBiekeâeBieeqmLele nBiemeBie yeBkesâceOeerue ces. SSueSce š^s[eRie efue. Ùee kebâheveerÛÙee 
KeelÙeeceOÙes pecee keâjCÙeele Deeueer.

Malware nuuee DemeuÙeecegUs Ùee ojcÙeeve Peeuesues SšerSce JÙeJenej 
yeBkesâÛÙee eqmJeeEÛeie efmemšerceheÙeËle heesnesÛeues veenerle. VISA, NPCI F. 
kebâhevÙeebveer ns JÙeJenej meg® Demeleevee yeBkesâÛÙee JÙeJenejebÛee efveÙeefcele  
he@šve& efJeÛeejele IesTve JÙeJenej JesUsJej LeebyeJeues Demeles lej yeBkesâÛes vegkeâmeeve 
Peeues vemeles.

ne nuuee Heâkeäle DeeheuÙee yeBkesâJejerue vemetve osMeeÛÙee meeÙeyej efmekeäÙegefjšer 
efmemšerceJejerue nuuee Deens Ùee YeeJevesves Prime Minister Office ves 
osKeerue Ùee nuuÙeeÛeer oKeue Iesleueer. efjPeJn& yeBkesâves Digital Banking 
meboYee&le veJeerve ceeie&oMe&keâ lelJes ueeiet kesâueer. hetJeea Heâkeäle keâcee|MeDeue 
yeBkeâebvee ueeiet DemeuesuÙee meeÙeyej efmekeäÙegefjšer megj#eeGheeÙeÙeespevee mebhetCe& 
yeBeEkeâie Fb[mš^erme ueeiet keâjCÙeele DeeuÙee. nuuÙeeÛeer heæle efJeÛeejele Ieslee,  

Digital Banking DeefOekeâ megjef#ele keâjCÙeeÛÙeeÂ°erves je°^erÙe mlejeJej 
Deveskeâ seminars, workshops IesCÙeele Deeueer.

yeBkesâves meoj IešvesÛee ÛelegŠßegbieer heesefueme "eCÙeele FIR oeKeue kesâuee Demetve 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Pvt. Ltd. Ùee kebâheveerme Cyber Security 

Incidence Investigation & Forensic Analysis keâjerlee efveÙegkeäle kesâues 
nesles. lemesÛe ceneje°^ jepÙeeÛee Cyber Crime Cell Ùeebveer meoj IešvesÛee 
mJeleb$eefjlÙee leheeme keâ®ve GheueyOe DeejesheeRefJe®æ Heâewpeoejer vÙeeÙeeueÙeele 
Kešuee oeKeue kesâuesuee Deens. CERT-In Ùee mebmLesves meoj IešvesÛÙee 
Deveg<ebieeves DeYÙeeme keâ®ve leheeme hetCe& kesâuee Deens.

Ùee Iešvesveblej, Heâe@jseqvmekeâ FvJnsmšeriesšme& Je CERT-In ÙeebÛÙee metÛeveebvegmeej, 
yeBkesâves SšerSce eqmJeÛe meJn&j Je eqmJeHeäš meJn&j keâjerlee lemesÛe meeÙeyej 
efmekeäÙegefjšerÛÙee Â°erves megj#eeÙeespevee ueeiet kesâuÙee Deensle. meJe& mesJekeâ-
DeefOekeâeNÙeebÛeer meeÙeyej efmekeäÙegefjšeryeeyeleÛeer peeCeerJe Jee{efJeCÙeeÛÙeeÂ°erves 
heÇefMe#eCe me$es IesCÙeele Ùesle Deensle. mesJekeâebÛÙee ceMeervmeheÙeËle phishing Je 
spamming cesume heesÛeCÙeehetJeea les leheemeCÙeemee"er efHeâušme& yemeefJeCÙeele 
Deeues Deensle. lemesÛe yeens®ve yeBkesâceOÙes ÙesCeejer Je yeBkesâletve yeensj peeCeejer 
heÇlÙeskeâ F&cesue leheemeCÙeekeâjerlee Sender Policy Framework (SPF), 

Domain Message Authentication Reporting and Conformance 

(DMARC) DeeefCe Domain Keys Identified Mail (DKIM) Ùee  
šskeävee@uee@peerÛee Jeehej keâjCÙeele Ùesle Deens.

yeBkesâÛÙee DeeÙešer FvHeÇâemš^keäÛejÛÙee megj#esmee"er heg{erueheÇceeCes DeefOekeâ me#ece 
efmekeäÙegefjšer efmemšercme [sše meWšj Je yeBkesâle keâeÙee&eqvJele kesâuÙee Deensle.

1)	 yeBkesâceOÙes Multilayer Network - SIEM, NGFW DeeefCe HIPS 

ÙeemeejKÙee heÇCeeueer vesšJeke&â š@^Heâerkeâ cee@efvešjeRiekeâjerlee JeehejCÙeele 
Ùesle Deensle.

2)	 Segregation of Network - yeBkesâceOeerue meJe& meJn&me& Je De@hueerkesâMevme 
heg{erueheÇceeCes mJeleb$e kesâues Deensle.

	 i)	 Keelesoejebmee"er JeehejCÙeele ÙesCeejer De@hueerkesâMevme

	 ii)	 yeensjerue Spevmeerpekeâ[tve ÙesCeeNÙee ceeefnleermee"er JeehejeJeer 
ueeieCeejer De@hueerkesâMevme

	 iii)	 meJn&j FvHeÇâemš^keäÛej

	 iv)	 End User Network

3)	 Security Posture defined to prevent Lateral Movement - 
meeÙeyej nuuesKeesjebvee åuuÙeehetJeeaÛe MeesOetve, lÙeebvee efve<heÇYe keâ®ve 
yeBkesâÛeer De@hueerkesâMevme hetJe&Jele efveÙeefcele keâjCes.

4)	 Endpoint Security - yeBkesâves hetJee&heej Ûeeuele DeeuesuÙee  
Anti-Virus Solution SsJepeer, DeeOegefvekeâ/MekeäleerMeeueer virus vee 
efve<heÇYe keâjCÙeeÛesÂ°erves Next Generation Endpoint Protection 

Solution JeehejeJeÙeeme meg®Jeele kesâueer Deens.
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5)	 ATM Whitelisting Solution - efjPeJn& yeBkesâves ns vegkeâlesÛe meg® kesâues 
Deens. meoj meesuÙegMeve,

	 i)	 ns mebMeefÙele, Ieelekeâ De@hueerkesâMevmeheemetve SšerScme megjef#ele "sJeles.

	 ii)	 SšerScekeâjerlee Endpoint megj#ee DeeefCe Application Control 
#ecelee osles.

	 iii)	 efmemšerceJej Ieelekeâ mee@HeäšJesDej install nesT osle veener.

	 iv)	 Heâkeäle ceevÙeleeheÇehle mee@HeäšJesDeme& install DeLeJee Ûeeuet Mekeâleele

	 v)	 ceeefnleer DeLeJee ceevÙelee vemeuesueer mee@HeäšJesDeme& De@hueerkesâMevme 
yuee@keâ kesâueer peeleele

6)	 Spam Mail Filtering at Mail Gateway - Anti Spam Solution 
pÙeecegUs heÇlÙeskeâ F&cesue viruses, spywares, phishing F. keâjerlee 
leheemeueer peeles Je heÇlÙeskeâ F&cesueÛeer attachment ner leheemeueer peeles.

7)	 Cyber Security Framework and Cyber Crisis Management 

Plan (CCMP) - efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛÙee veeiejer menkeâejer yeBkeâebkeâjerlee 
DemeCeeNÙee ceeie&oMe&keâ lelJeebvegmeej meeÙeyej HeÇsâceJeke&âDebleie&le 13 

controls veceto kesâues Deensle. Ùee controls Jej DeeOeejerle yeBkesâves 
meeÙeyej efmekeäÙegefjšer HeÇsâceJeke&â Je CCMP leÙeej kesâuee Demetve lees 
keâeÙee&eqvJele keâjCes meg® Deens.

hejbleg keâesCeleerner Spevmeer / meeqJn&me heÇesJneÙe[j meeÙeyej nuuee DeLeJee 
ceMeerve/efmemšerce n@keâ ve nesCÙeeÛeer Kee$eer keâesCeeueeÛe osT Mekeâle veenerle. 
lÙeecegUs Ùeeheg{sner DeeqmlelJeele ÙesCeeNÙee veJeveJeerve megj#eeÙeespevee ueeiet keâjCes 
Je melele cee@efvešjeRie DeeJeMÙekeâ jenCeej Deens. lÙeeÂ<šerves JÙeJemLeeHeve 
keâeÙe&Meerue Peeues Deens.

meeÙeyej nuuÙeeceOeerue jkeâceshewkeâer 50% jkeâcesÛeer yeBkesâves ef[meWyej 2018 
DeKesj lejleto kesâueer nesleer. GJe&jerle 50% jkeâcesÛeer lejleto petve 2019 
DeKesj kesâueer Deens.

eqmJeHeäš megefJeOesÛÙee hesceWš iesšJesJej PeeuesuÙee meeÙeyej nuuÙeeceOeerue Jeie& 
PeeuesuÙee `13.92 keâesšer jkeâceshewkeâer, Deboepes 10 million HongKong 

Dollars SJe{er jkeäkeâce (Deboepes `8 keâesšer) nBiemeBie yeBkesâves iees"efJeueer Demetve 
neBiekeâeBieceOeerue YeejleerÙe otleeJeeme Je neBiekeâeBie heesefuemeebÛÙee ceoleerves meoj 
jkeäkeâce Yeejleele hejle DeeCeCesyeeyele yeBkesâÛes heÇÙelve meg® Deensle. ueJekeâjÛe 
meoj jkeäkeâce yeBkesâme hejle efceUsue ÙeeÛeer Kee$eer Deens.

veJeerve megefJeOee Je DeefOekeâeefOekeâ ef[efpešue Ûe@vesumeÛes yeBkesâÛÙee hescesvš eqmJeÛe 
efmemšerceceOÙes meceeJesMeve keâjCÙeemee"er meOÙeeÛÙee hesceWš eqmJeÛe heÇCeeueerceOÙes 
cees"e yeoue keâjCÙeeÛee OeesjCeelcekeâ efveCe&Ùe JÙeJemLeeheveeves Iesleuesuee Demetve 
meOÙeeÛee SšerSce mJeerÛe meJn&j yeoueCÙeeÛeer keâeÙe&Jeener meg® kesâueer Deens. 
ueJekeâjÛe veJeerve mJeerÛeÉejs Digital Banking keâecekeâepe meg® nesT Mekesâue.

mesJekeâ keâueeef›eâ[e

DenJeeueJe<ee&le yeBkesâÛÙee ef›eâkesâš mebIeeves hegCes efpeune ef›eâkesâš DemeesefmeSMeve 
DeeÙeesefpele kewâ.meot eEMeos efueie mheOexceOÙes menYeeie Iesleuee neslee.meoj 
mheOexleerue 5 ner meeceves eEpeketâve ieš efJepeslesheo efceUefJeues Deens.  ÙeeceOÙes 
ßeer.efveKeerue MesJeeUs, ßeer.ceÙegjsMe peeOeJe Je ßeer.jCeefpele peieleehe Ùeebveer 
efJeMes<e keâeceefiejer kesâueer Deens. lemesÛe ef›eâ[e Yeejleer ÙeebÛÙeeJeleerves ef[meWyej 
2018 ceOÙes DeeÙeesefpele menkeâej keâjb[keâ keâyeñer mheOexceOÙes yeBkesâÛÙee 
keâyeñer mebIeeves GuuesKeveerÙe keâeceefiejer keâ®ve Ghe-GheeblÙe HesâjerheÙeËle cepeue 
ceejueer nesleer.  ÙeeceOÙes ßeer.efJeúue yees[kesâ, ßeer.Ûesleve Mes[ies Je ßeer.efJeveeÙekeâ 
eEMeos Ùeebveer efJeMes<e keâeceefiejer kesâueer Deens.

efo.8 ceeÛe& jespeerÛÙee peeieeflekeâ ceefnuee efoveeefveefceòe efo.9 ceeÛe& 2019 
jespeer yeBkesâceeHe&âle meeefJe$eeryeeF& Hegâues hegCes efJeÅeeheer"eceOÙes ke=âle%elee efoJemeeÛes 
DeeÙeespeve keâjCÙeele Deeues nesles. ÙeeJesUer hegCes efJeÅeeheer"eÛes kegâueieg® [e@.efveleerve 
keâjceeUkeâj Je efJeÅeeheer"eÛes DevÙe heoeefOekeâejer GheeqmLele jeefnues nesles. ÙeeJesUer 
yeBkesâÛesJeleerves mecetn DeOÙe#e, yeBkesâÛes DeOÙe#e, GheeOÙe#e, DevÙe mebÛeeuekeâ, 
JÙeJemLeehekeâerÙe mebÛeeuekeâ lemesÛe yeBkesâÛes mesJekeâ/ DeefOekeâejer, lÙeebÛes kegâšgbefyeÙe Je 
ceepeer mesJekeâ/DeefOekeâejer cees"Ÿee mebKÙesves GheeqmLele jeefnues nesles.

JeOee&heveefove

efo.18 peevesJeejer 2019 - yeBkesâÛÙee JeOee&heveefoveeÛes DeewefÛelÙe meeOetve  
keâe@mecee@me yeBkeâ mesJekeâ mebIeeves keâe@mecee@me neF&šmed ÙesLes jkeäleoeve efMeyeerjeÛes 
DeeÙeespeve kesâues nesles. ÙeeÛeefoJeMeer meeÙebkeâeUer yeBkesâÛes meYeemeo, "sJeeroej Je 
ieÇenkeâ ÙeebÛesmee"er heejbheefjkeâ efleUietU meceejbYeeÛesner DeeÙeespeve keâjCÙeele 
Deeues nesles. yeBkesâÛes ieÇenkeâ, meYeemeo Je "sJeeroej ÙeebÛÙee ceeieerue keâener 
Je<eeËÛÙee DeeieÇnevegmeej DenJeeue Je<ee&leerue yeBkesâÛee JeOee&heveefove hetJeeaheÇceeCes  
keâe@mecee@me neF&šdmeÛÙee heÇebieCeeceOÙes meepeje keâjCÙeele Deeuee. ÙeeheÇmebieer 
yeBkesâves efleceenerme mejemejer `25 ueeKe efMeuuekeâ DemeuesuÙee yeÛele 
Keelesoejebmee"er mšej keâmšcej Ùeespevee peenerj kesâueer.

yeBkeâieewjJe

yeBeEkeâie HeÇâeBefšÙeme& ÙeebÛeskeâ[tve meve 2017-18 mee"er Best Product 
Innovation Je Best Green Initiative Ùee oesve ke@âšsiejeRceOÙes yeBkesâme 
hegjmkeâej efceUeuee Deens.

mebÛeeuekeâ efJeMes<e

01.		yeBkesâÛes pÙes… mebÛeeuekeâ Je mecetn DeOÙe#e [e@.cegkegbâo DeYÙebkeâj 
ÙeebÛeer keâes-Dee@hejsšerJn yeBkeâ Dee@Heâ Fbef[Ùee, veJeer efouueer ÙeebÛÙee 
mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[UeceOÙes efyeveefJejesOe efveJe[ Peeueer Deens.meoj efveJe[  
efo.28 Dee@iemš 2018 les efo.27 Dee@iemš 2023 Ùee keâeueeJeOeermee"er 
Deens.

02.		yeBkesâÛes mebÛeeuekeâ ßeer.ke=â<Cekegâceej ieesÙeue Ùeebvee Reality Plus 
ÙeebÛeskeâ[tve Scroll of Honour hegjmkeâej heÇoeve keâjCÙeele Deeuee. 
meojÛee hegjmkeâej ceneje°^eÛes cee.cegKÙeceb$eer ÙeebÛÙee meuueeieej 
ßeerceleer Õeslee Meeueerve ÙeebÛes nmles osCÙeele Deeuee Deens.
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03.		yeBkesâÛes mebÛeeuekeâ ßeer.ke=â<Cekegâceej ieesÙeue ÙeebÛeer hegCes HesâeqmšJnue 

2019 ÛÙee JneF&me heÇsefme[Wšheoer efveÙegkeäleer keâjCÙeele Deeueer Deens.

DeefOekeâejer efJeMes<e-

hegCes efpeune ef›eâkesâš mebIešvesÛÙee meve 2019 ÛÙee efveJe[CegkeâerceOÙes 

yeBkesâÛÙeeJeleerves yeBkeâ, Fb[mš^erpe DeeefCe Dee@efHeâmesme Ùee iešele yeBkesâÛes 

DeefOekeâejer ßeer. ÙeMeJeble YegpeyeU ns efyeveefJejesOe efveJe[tve Deeues Deensle. 

lÙeebÛeer hegvne Skeâoe hegCes efpeu¢eeÛes heÇefleefveOeer cnCetve ceneje°^ ef›eâkesâš 

DemeesefmeSMeveJej vesceCetkeâ Peeueer Deens. ßeer. ÙeMeJeble YegpeyeU ns ceneje°^ 

ef›eâkesâš DemeesefmeSMeve Heâe@j ef[mesyeu[ Ùee mebIešvesÛÙee menmeefÛeJeheoer keâece 

keâjerle Demetve hegCes efpeu¢eeleerue efoJÙeebie JÙekeäleer lemesÛe cegueeRÛÙee ef›eâkesâšÛÙee 

meJeeËieerCe efJekeâemeemee"er lÙeebÛes cenlJehetCe& Ùeesieoeve Deens.

efveiece JÙeJemLeeheve (Corporate Governance)

yeBkesâÛes owvebefove keâecekeâepe, keâpe&cebpegjer Je OeesjCeefJe<eÙekeâ yeeyeer F. 

keâecekeâepeemee"er mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[UeÛÙee heg{erue meefcelÙee keâeÙe&jle neslÙee,

01.	keâeÙe&keâejer meefceleer

02.	keâpe&cebpegjer meefceleer

03.	Jemegueer meefceleer

04.	leheemeCeer meefceleer

05.	iegbleJeCetkeâ Je efJeosMeer Ûeueve JÙeJenej keâecekeâepe meefceleer

06.	HeÇâe@[ cee@efvešjeRie meefceleer

07.	De@mesš ce@vespecesvš meefceleer

08.	efJekeâeme, meYeemeo mebheke&â Je efHeâveeeqvMeDeue Fvkeäuegpeve meefceleer

09.	mesJekeâ meefceleer

Ùee Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&ceOÙes mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[UeÛÙee SketâCe 31 meYee Je heesšmeefcelÙeebÛÙee SketâCe 111 meYee PeeuÙee. lÙeebÛÙee GheeqmLeleerÛee leheMeerue heg{erueheÇceeCes,

    mebÛeeuekeâeÛes veeJe mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[U meYee heesšmeefcelÙee meYee

SketâCe meYee hewkeâer GheeqmLele SketâCe meYee hewkeâer GheeqmLele

1.	 meerS efceeEueo keâeUs 31 30 111 102

2. 	 ßeer.ieeseEJeo #eerjmeeiej 31 30 85 82

3. 	 [e@. cegkegbâo DeYÙebkeâj 31 29 22 19

4. 	 [e@. eqmcelee peesie 31 16 29 20

5. 	 ßeer. ke=â<Cekegâceej ieesÙeue 31 28 62 44

6. 	 De@[. peÙeble MeeefueieÇece 31 26 39 25

7. 	 ßeer. heÇkeâeMe peesMeerjeJe* 19 03 10 00

8. 	 ßeer. jepeerJe meeye[s  31 29 46 45

9. 	 De@[. heÇuneo keâeskeâjs 31 30 48 45

10. 	De@[. ßeerheeo hebÛeheesj 31 24 63 52

11. ßeer. efpeleWõ Mene 31 25 41 29

* efo.12 Dee@keäšesyej 2018 jespeer mebÛeeuekeâ ßeer. heÇkeâeMe peesMeerjeJe ÙeebÛee mebÛeeuekeâ heoeÛee jepeerveecee mJeerkeâejCÙeele ÙesTve lÙeebvee Ùee peyeeyeoejerletve 
cegkeäle keâjCÙeele Deeues Deens.

meYeemeo

DenJeeue Je<ee&le DeeheuÙee yeBkesâves 3678 JÙekeäleer Je mebmLeebvee veJeerve meYeemeolJe efoues. jepeerveecee Je DevÙe keâejCeebcegUs 3477 meYeemeo hešeJe¤ve keâceer 
Peeues. lÙeecegUs efo. 31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj yeBkesâÛeer meYeemeo mebKÙee 79016 Flekeâer Peeueer Deens.
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Deeheuee ieÇenkeâ peeCetve IÙee Know Your Customer (KYC) Je Anti Money Laundering (AML) 

KYC Je AML ÛÙee Deveg<ebieeves efjPeJn& yeBkesâves JesUesJesUer peenerj kesâuesuÙee ceeie&oMe&keâ lelJeebÛeer yeBkeâ hetle&lee keâjerle Deens. lÙeevegmeej yeBkesâves KYC/AML yeeyeleÛeer 
hee@efuemeer leÙeej kesâueer Deens.  DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesâves meJe& JewOeeefvekeâ efjheesš&med efJenerle keâeUele FIU IND ÙeebÛeskeâ[s hee"efJeues Deensle. 

Ûeeuet Je yeÛele Keeleer meg® keâ®ve IesCÙeemee"er yeBkesâceOÙes 2 meWš^ueeF&p[ DekeâeQš DeesheeEveie mesume keâeÙe&jle Deensle. Ùee DekeâeQš DeesheeEveie mesumeceOÙes Keeles 
meg® keâjCÙeemee"erÛÙee Heâe@cme&yejesyej ieÇenkeâebveer oeKeue kesâuesuÙee lÙeebÛÙee KYC mebyebOeer keâeieohe$eebÛes Document Management System – DMS Éejs  
mkeâ@eEveie keâjCÙeele ÙesTve meoj keâeieohe$eebÛes e-record mJe®heele keâeÙecemJe®heer peleve keâjCÙeele Ùesles.  

yeBkesâceOeerue veJeerve ieÇenkeâebÛeer KYC keâeieohe$es Je lÙeemebyebOeer ceeefnleer CERSAI ÛÙee CKYC Portal Jej efveÙeefceleheCes upload keâjCÙeele Ùesles.  ÙeeÉejs 
DeeòeeheÙeËle yeBkesâÛÙee megceejs 1.25 ueeKe ieÇenkeâebvee yeBkesâceeHe&âle KYC Identifier Number heÇehle Peeuee Deens.  Deeheueer yeBkeâ UIDAI Ûeer Authentic 

User Agency (AUA) DeeefCe KYC User Agency (KUA) Demetve UIDAI ÛÙee heefjhe$ekeâevegmeej DeeheuÙee yeBkesâceOÙes Aadhaar Data Vault keâeÙee&eqvJele 
keâjCÙeele Deeuee Deens.

ceeieerue leerve Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYeebÛee leheMeerue

01. Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& - 2015-16

leejerKe Je ef"keâeCe ieg®Jeej efo. 29 mehšWyej 2016 efMeJeMebkeâj meYeeie=n, cene|<eveiej, hegCes 411037

meYesves cebpetj kesâuesues efJeMes<e "jeJe 1. 	 meve 2016-17 mee"er JewOeeefvekeâ uesKeehejer#ekeâ cnCetve peer [er Deehešs De@v[ kebâheveer Je  
ces.Ùeeoea heÇYet De@v[ DemeesefmeSšdme ÙeebÛeer efveÙegkeäleer keâjCÙeeme ceevÙelee osCÙeele Deeueer.

2.	 meve 2015-16 mee"er efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛÙee cebpegjerme DeOeerve jentve 10% ueeYeebMe efMeHeâejme ceevÙe 
keâjCÙeele Deeueer.

02. Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& - 2016-17

leejerKe Je ef"keâeCe jefJeJeej efo. 24 mehšWyej 2017 efMeJeMebkeâj meYeeie=n, cene|<eveiej, hegCes 411037

meYesves cebpetj kesâuesues efJeMes<e "jeJe 1. 	meve 2017-18 mee"er JewOeeefvekeâ uesKeehejer#ekeâ cnCetve ces.Ùeeoea heÇYet De@v[ DemeesefmeSšdme,   
Sue.Sue.heer., peer. [er. Deehešs De@v[ kebâheveer Je ces.efkeâle&ves De@v[ hebef[le, Sue.Sue.heer., hegCes ÙeebÛeer 
efveÙegkeäleer keâjCÙeeme ceevÙelee osCÙeele Deeueer.

2. 	 efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛÙee hejJeeveieerme DeOeerve jentve, DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesâme PeeuesuÙee ` 71.73 keâesšer 
veHeäÙeeletve JewOeeefvekeâ lejlegoer kesâuÙeeveblej efMeuuekeâ ` 41.16 keâesšer veHeäÙeeletve Je/Jee efjPeJn&ceOetve 
meve 2016-17 Deee|Lekeâ Je<ee&mee"er 10% ueeYeebMe peenerj keâ®ve Jeešheekeâjerlee efjPeJn& yeBkesâkeâ[s 
efJevebleer Depe& keâjCÙeeÛeer Je DeeJeMÙekeâ lees hee"hegjeJee keâjCÙeeÛeer DeeieÇneÛeer efMeHeâejme mebÛeeuekeâ 
ceb[Ueme keâjeJeer Ùeeme Skeâceleeves cebpegjer osCÙeele Deeueer.

03.	Deee|Lekeâ Je<e& - 2017-18

leejerKe Je ef"keâeCe jefJeJeej efo. 2 mehšWyej 2018 efMeJeMebkeâj meYeeie=n, cene|<eveiej, hegCes 411037

meYesves cebpetj kesâuesues efJeMes<e "jeJe 1. 		 meve 2018-19 mee"er JewOeeefvekeâ uesKeehejer#ekeâ cnCetve ces.Ùeeoea heÇYet De@v[ DemeesefmeSšdme,  
Sue.Sue.heer. Je heer peer YeeieJele, Ûeeš&[& DekeâeQšbšmed ÙeebÛeer efveÙegkeäleer keâjCÙeeme ceevÙelee osCÙeele 
Deeueer.
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113 Jee Jeeef<e&&keâ DenJeeue 2018-2019

ßeæebpeueer
DenJeeue Je<ee&le efoJebiele PeeuesuÙee yeBkesâMeer mebyebefOele JÙekeäleer, lemesÛe %eele-De%eele meYeemeo/ Keelesoej, Menero peJeeve, yeBkeâ keâce&Ûeejer Je DevÙe JÙekeäleer Ùeebvee 
efJeveceÇ ßeæebpeueer.

Yesšeriee"er Je DeeYeej 
DenJeeue Je<ee&le DeeheuÙee yeBkesâme efJeefJeOe ceevÙeJejebveer keâeÙe&›eâceebÛÙee efveefceòeeves Yesšer efouÙee.  ÙeeceOÙes heÇecegKÙeeves heg{erue ceevÙeJejebÛee meceeJesMe Deens.-

•	  pevejue Jner. kesâ. eEmeie (efveJe=òe) - lelkeâeefueve efJeosMe jepÙeceb$eer, efJeÅeceeve jmles, Jeenletkeâ DeeefCe ceneceeie& jepÙeceb$eer
•	  ßeer. Decej meeyeUs, cee.Keemeoej, jepÙemeYee
•	  ßeer. meensyejeJe heešerue, DeHHej Heesueerme DeeÙegkeäle (HeÇMeemeve) HegCes

$e+CeefveoxMe 
DenJeeue Je<ee&le meWš^ue jefpemš^ej, ke=â<eer Je menkeâej efJeYeeie, Yeejle mejkeâej veJeer efouueer Je lesLeerue DeefOekeâejer, efjPeJn& yeBkesâÛes DeefOekeâejer, ceneje°^,  
ceOÙeheÇosMe, keâvee&škeâ, iegpejele, leeefceUvee[t, DeebOeÇheÇosMe Je lesuebieCee Ùee jepÙeebÛes menkeâej DeeÙegkeäle Je efveyebOekeâ, menkeâej KeelÙeeÛes DeefOekeâejer F.meJeeËÛes 
DeeYeej!

DenJeeue Je<ee&le Debleie&le, keâvkeâjbš Je JewOeeefvekeâ uesKeehejer#ekeâ Ùeebveer kesâuesuÙee ceeie&oMe&veeyeöue DeeYeej!

yeBkesâÛÙee JeešÛeeueerceOÙes keâe@mecee@me yeBkeâ mesJekeâ mebIešvesÛeener ceesueeÛee Jeeše Demetve mebIešvesÛes heoeefOekeâejer Je mesJekeâ Ùeebveerner JesUesJesUer efouesuÙee menkeâeÙee&yeöue 
meJeeËÛes DeeYeej!

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesâÛes meYeemeo, "sJeeroej Je Keelesoej ÙeebÛes menkeâeÙe& lemesÛe yeBkesâÛes mesJekeâ Je DeefOekeâejer ÙeebÛes efceUeuesues Ùeesieoeve cenòJeeÛes Deens, Ùee 
meJeeËvee ceveŠhetJe&keâ OevÙeJeeo!

efo. 12 peguew 2019 	 efceueeRo keâeUs
DeOÙe#e

meYeemeoebvee efJevebleer
01. DeeheuÙee he$eJÙeJenejeÛÙee heòÙeeceOÙes keâener yeoue DemeuÙeeme lees keâUefJeCÙeeÛeer efJevebleer Deens.

02. ieÇenkeâebÛÙee KeelÙeeleerue jkeâcesÛÙee megj#esÛÙeeÂ°erves lemesÛe veJÙeeves meg® keâjCÙeele ÙesCeeNÙee efJeefJeOe ÙeespeveebÛeer ceeefnleer ieÇenkeâebheÙeËle heesnesÛeefJeCÙeeÛes 
Â°erves yeBkesâceeHe&âle Ùeeyeeyele SmeSceSme hee"efJeCÙeele Ùesle Deensle.  lejer Deeheues DeÅeÙeeJele ceesyeeF&ue ›eâceebkeâ Je Fcesue DeeÙe[er mebyebefOele MeeKeebceOÙes 
jefpemšj keâjeJesle.

03. ceequšmšsš keâes-Dee@he.meesmeeÙešerpe De@keäšceOeerue lejlegoervegmeej ceequšmšsš keâes-Dee@he.meesmeeÙešerÛee meYeemeo meueie leerve Je<e& Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme 
DevegheeqmLele DemeuÙeeme Je lÙeeÛeer DeMeer DevegheeqmLeleer Jeee|<ekeâ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesves ceevÙe ve kesâuÙeeme lÙeeÛes meYeemeolJe DeeheesDeehe mebheg°ele Ùesles. 
meYeemeoebveer Ùee lejlegoerÛeer veeWo IesTve meYesme GheeqmLele jneJes.  lemesÛe DevegheeqmLele jneCeej DemeuÙeeme lemes uesKeer keâUJeeJes.

Important Notice 
(For the Shareholders of The Cosmos Co-op. Bank Ltd.)

Disqualification of Member:

As per Bank’s Bye-law No. 7 (iv) (b) 

No person shall be eligible for being a member of the Bank if he used for two consecutive years, the service of the Bank, 
without maintaining the deposits or taking loan above the minimum level of Rs.5,000/- or he / she fails to open any type of 
account in the Bank and utilizing the service of the Bank.

Failing which, the management will be forced to take action as per the provisions of the above referred bye-law regarding the 
membership.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the Board of Directors of your Bank, I hereby 
present before you the 113th Annual Report of your Bank for 
the year 2018-19.

GLOBAL ECONOMY 
The US economy is the world’s strongest and impactful 
economy in the world. In 2018 US economy grew by 2.9% 
against 2.2% logged in 2017. US unemployment fell to record 
lows of 3.9% from 4.4% in 2017.

US Federal Reserve raised rates on 4 occasions by 25 bps 
each to 2.50%. As a result Dollar remained strong against 
basket of major currencies.

Global economic growth, which peaked close to 4% in 2017, 
moderated to 3.6% in 2018. It is expected that the growth of 
global economy will be around 3.3% in 2019.

After a steady start, global economy lost momentum and 
surprised on downside in the 1st quarter of year 2019 amid 
elevated US-China trade tensions, concerns over Brexit, tighter 
financial conditions and slowdown in China etc. Recently in 
response to bleak economic outlook, major central banks have 
once again turned towards more accommodative stance.

INDIAN ECONOMY
Last financial year was disappointing for India’s Growth 
story. India’s annual GDP growth fell 6.85% in FY 2018-19 
as against 7.10% recorded in FY 2017-18. It was the lowest 
growth rate recorded in last 5 years. The economic slump was 
caused by various reasons like crisis in NBFC sector, tighter 
monetary policy, rural distress etc. which caused investment 
and consumption to slowdown and thereby overall economy. 
Index of Industrial Production (IIP) registered the growth of 
3.7% in FY2018-19 as against 4.42% recorded in the same 
period earlier.

The interim budget presented by Hon’ble Finance Minister 
was last before the General Elections. It was populist one as 
it included various fiscal benefits for farmers, economically 
weaker / unorganized sector and middle class. It pegged fiscal 
deficit for FY 2018-19 to 3.4% from budgeted target of 3.3%.

During FY 2018-19, inflation as measured by Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) increased by 3.43% against 3.58% reported in 
previous year. Significant reduction in Food & Beverages 
prices, coupled with fall in Brent Oil prices contributed towards 
the fall in CPI.

India’s trade deficit touched record high of $176 billion mainly 
on account of trade war between US-China, slowing global 
economy and trade.

INDIAN BANKING SECTOR
In comparison to previous year 2018-19 proved less 
challenging to the Commercial Banks. NPAs of these banks 
showed significant improvement than the previous year with 
gross NPA coming down to 10.8% from 11.5%.

As declared by RBI, in the FY 2018-19 eleven Public Sector 
Banks (PSBs) were under Prompt Corrective Action (PCA). Out 
of these eleven banks, five banks managed to get themselves 
removed from PCA in phase-wise manner and now six PSBs 
remain under PCA classification.

To consolidate the position of PSBs, Government has infused 
sufficient capital in them. This ongoing recapitalization has and 
will keep improving the lending capacities of the PSBs.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
In the Financial Year 2018-19, Mr. Milind Kale led the Board 
as Chairman while Mr. Govind Kshirsagar remained the Vice-
Chairman.

The resignation of one of the Directors, Mr. Prakash Joshirao 
was accepted and he was relieved from the duties of Bank’s 
Director from 12th October 2018. Mr. Prakash Joshirao was 
having active participation in the Board of Directors from the 
year 2015.
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

(` in crore)

PARTICULARS 2017-2018 2018-2019
Share Capital 371.64 344.47
Reserves 1,612.45 1,515.86
Own Funds 1,984.09 1,860.33
Net NPA 7.24% 6.30%
Gross NPA 9.45% 8.53%
Total Income 1,876.94 1,820.63
Total Income (After transferring funds from Reserves) 1,949.36 1,874.34
A) Interest Received 1,461.68 1,462.75
B) Other Income 204.54 203.23
C) Other Credits 210.72 154.65
D) Transferred from Reserves 72.42 53.71
Total Expenditure 1,942.67 1,798.80
A) Interest Paid 1,099.56 1,051.03
B) Establishment Expenditure 157.99 176.36
C) Other Expenditure 184.95 242.07
D) Provisions + Write Off 500.17 329.34
Net Profit / Loss -65.73 21.83
Net Surplus 6.69 75.54

PROPOSED DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT

The Board of Directors recommends the distribution of profit to the Annual General Meeting as follows:-

Net surplus (c/f to B/S) ` 75,53,59,660.62
(-) Reserve for Unforeseen Losses ` 23,70,56,496.39
(-) Investment Fluctuation Reserve written back ` 30,00,00,000.00
Net Profit (FY 2018-19) ` 21,83,03,164.23
(+) Profit for last year ` 4,75,12,225.83
TOTAL NET PROFIT ` 26,58,15,390.06
DISTRIBUTION
1.	 General Reserve (25%)* ` 5,45,75,800.00
2.	 Education Fund (1%)* ` 21,83,040.00
3.	 Contingency Reserve (10%)* ` 2,18,30,320.00
4. 	 Reserve for Cyber Fraud Losses ` 18,00,00,000.00 ` 25,85,89,160.00
NET PROFIT BALANCE FOR 2018-19 `      72,26,230.06
(+) Reserve for Unforeseen Losses**  ` 23,70,56,496.39 
(+)Investment Fluctuation Reserve written back ` 30,00,00,000.00
Remaining Net Profit for the Next Year (Balance of Profit & Loss Account) ` 54,42,82,726.45

*The distribution of profit is suggested as per Multi-state Societies Act 2002 bye-law 63(1) in proportion to the net profit of 
`21,83,03,164.23

** Amount transferred to the Profit & Loss Account

DEPOSITS

Deposits position as on 31.03.2018 was 

`14,932.50 crore. Bank faced an unfortunate 

cyber-attack on its ATM and SWIFT 

infrastructure in the month of August 2018. This attack was 

the biggest ever, damaging and well planned in the history of 

Banking Industry. After understanding the facts the customers 

and depositors started investing into deposits again. In this 

exceptional year, the Bank has received very encouraging 

and positive support from the customers. Only due to the 

faith and trust shown by our esteemed customers during the 

crucial times this year, total deposit has marked the growth of  

`420.54 crore. Total Deposits of the Bank has reached to 

`15,353.04 crore as on 31.03.2019.

Launch of New Deposit Schemes - During the year under 

review, the Bank had launched two deposit schemes.
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•	 Cosmo Shubhankar Deposit Scheme

	 a)	 For Short Term Period of 9 months, interest rate of 

8.50% was offered to both General Depositors & 

Senior Citizens.

	 b)	 For Long Term period of 21 months, interest rate of 

8.25% was offered for General Depositors & 8.40% 

to Senior Citizens.

•	 Cosmo Dhanvarsha Deposit Scheme

	 General and Senior Citizen Depositors were offered 

8.10% interest rate for period of 13 months.

Both the schemes got overwhelming response and it helped 

in garnering higher deposit growth. Bank has collected 

total `5,208.11 crore deposit under both the schemes up to 

31.03.2019.

Cosmo Star Customer Scheme –

Under this Scheme, account holders maintaining `25 lakh 

and above (on daily basis) are given interest rate of 6% on 

the savings bank account. This Scheme was inaugurated on  

18th January 2019 i.e. the Bank’s Anniversary Day. It is  

receiving very good response from the customers, and the 

number of account holders maintaining daily balance of more  

than `25 lakh is regularly increasing. This has given a good 

impetus to increase the CASA Accounts.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

During the year under review, the Loans 

and Advances of your Bank stood at  

`11,599 crore from last year’s `10,771 crore. 

Loans & Advances increased by `828 crore i.e. 7.69% which is 

the highest growth in last 4 years. This year also, we have not 

taken CBLO lending during the year. Loans of `154.55 crore 

were written-off during the year for which 100% provision was 

made. Considering this, the actual growth of the advances 

portfolio is 9.12%

The Credit Deposit (CD) Ratio as on 31st March 2019 stood at 

75.81%. The percentage of loans with own funds plus deposits 

was 68.47% as on 31st March 2019 which was as per the RBI 

guidelines.

Your Bank’s maximum Single Party Exposure (Individual / 

Company) was `188.85 crore and Maximum Group Exposure 

was `500.00 crore which is based on the Audited Financials 

as on 31st March 2018 as per RBI guidelines. As a result, 

your Bank will be able to cater to the credit requirements /

demands of reputed companies and corporate customers as 

well. Considering the risks involved in the financial market, 

the Board of Directors took a strategic decision to restrict the 

maximum limit to ̀ 50.00 crore for any new borrower (Individual 

/ Company). However in case of higher credit demand than the 

maximum exposure limit set, the Bank considers consortium 

arrangement with other banks based on the financial capacity 

of the proposed borrower.

In F.Y.2018-19 Rate of Interest competition was witnessed in 

the Banking Sector. To face this situation, the Bank revised 

the existing loan schemes and unveiled new schemes based 

on customer’s requirement. Revised credit rating parameters 

were set to retain the borrowers and provide them better Rate 

of Interest.

Currently the Bank offers wide range of loan schemes like 

Home Loans, SME Loans, Mortgage Loans, Car Loans, 

Education Loans, Cosmo Credit Loans, etc. at very competitive 

and reasonable interest rates. In this year, considering the 

need of housing loan borrowers, the limit of Top-up Scheme 

is increased up to `10.00 lakh from `5.00 lakh. For customer 

convenience, constant improvement is done in the terms and 

conditions applicable to these loans & its processing time to 

make them more customer- centric. This year the retail loan 

business has increased by 5.23% as compared to last year. 

This year Bank is focusing on retail loans & has planned to 

achieve maximum growth in retail loans in credit portfolio.

In the recent past, the economy has turned into a revival mode, 

which is expected to have a positive and satisfactory impact on 

credit off-take in the Banking Industry. Considering this, your 

Bank is strategically revising its Loan Schemes and the Rate 

of Interest which will show positive results in the near future. 

Taking into account the maximum limits allowed for Single 

Party (Individual / Company) exposure and Group Exposure, 

your Bank is fully capable to cater to the loan requirements of 

renowned companies and corporate customers.

During the year under review, the Advances in Priority 

Sector stood at `3,262.00 crore which is 30.28% of the Total 

Advances. The advances to Weaker Sectors make up 7.62% 

of the total portfolio. As compared to last year, percentage of 
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Priority & Weaker Sector Advances has increased substantially. 

Extensive efforts are taken for disbursing new credit proposals 

under Priority Sector. Retail Loan Products were marketed 

which are eligible to be classified under Priority Sector/ Weaker 

Sector. The Bank is offering concessional interest rate for 

Priority Lending & Weaker Sector too. In this financial year the 

Bank is also introducing new loans schemes for ‘Solar Power 

Generation’ under Priority Sector Lending.

Your Bank is a Multistate Bank with a widespread branch 

network in 7 states. Considering the situation in these states, 

the local trading/business activity and customer requirements 

etc., the Bank is providing state-wise ‘customized loan 

products’ to its customers

CREDIT SUPERVISION CELL
The role of Credit Supervision Cell is equally 
important so that the disbursed loans by the 
Bank do not turn into Non-Performing Assets. 

Your Bank has introduced comprehensive parameters to 
control and monitor the Loans and Advances of the Bank. 
For monitoring the ‘Special Mentioned Accounts’ (SMA0 to 
SMA2) & all big ticket loans above `25 crore, this department 
undertakes analysis through control statements like drawing 
power calculations, checking of account statements, for 
detecting the early warning signals. As per the need, officials 
from this department visit the borrowers and hold personal 
discussions to solve problems, if any, with their accounts.

This department also undertakes stock audit exercise, visit 
to units and regular follow up of all restructured accounts to 
effectively control any further slippages. It is seen that loan 
installments are credited to the accounts in stipulated time 
frame. This helps to keep track of the restructured accounts 
not slipping into NPAs.

This department ‘shares and receives’ the credit information 
in respect of all loan accounts having consortium/ multiple 
banking finance arrangement.

This depertment is headed by a General Manager, under 
supervision of Managing Director of the Bank.

OVERDUES AND NPA RECOVERY
During the year under review, the Bank has recovered `211.38 
crore in NPAs and `69.09 in Write Off Accounts thus the total 
recovery amount being ̀ 280.47 crore. The accounts amounting 

to `53.27 crore have been upgraded.

As on 31st March 2019, percentage of overdues was 6.47%, 

Gross NPA was 8.53%, while net NPA was 6.30%.

Your Bank has set the target of achieving maximum recovery 

to reduce the NPAs. Your Bank has initiated all possible 

legal recourse like taking action under the Securitization Act, 

Application to the Hon’ble District Magistrate u/s 14 for taking 

possession of property, filing suit in the office of the Arbitrator 

under the Multistate Co-op Societies Act, filing suits in the 

office of the Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT) and submitting 

application before the NCLT.

Bank has also given the option of One Time Settlement (OTS) 

to the defaulters. To encourage OTS procedure, the Bank is 

arranging region-wise OTS Melas which is getting positive 

response from defaulters and overdue amount is recovered 

through this activity.

Your Bank is considering the legal provisions under section 

156 of Maharashtra State Co-operative Societies Act, 1960 for 

recovery in the claims received under section 101 of the said 

Act for recovery in NPA accounts of merged banks.

For optimum recovery in the FY 2019-20, organizational 

changes are made in the Recovery Department by deputing 

2 separate General Managers for Mumbai and Gujrat Region, 

and separate General Managers for Pune, Southern and 

Central Regions. Similarly recovery of write-off accounts an 

Officer on Special Duty of General Manager cadre is appointed. 

One Chief Manager from Mumbai Region is looking after the 

recovery of specific amount of write-off accounts from Mumbai 

and Gujrat. The second Chief Manager is looking after the 

recovery of NPA accounts of Mumbai Region. To speed up the 

recovery processes and litigations, your Bank has appointed 

efficient advocates / solicitor firm.

Managing Director is taking weekly meetings with updated 

information to guide the Recovery Officers about effective 

recovery. Likewise, Recovery Committee of the Board of 

Directors is taking fortnightly review meetings regarding 

recovery to guide the officers. Similarly, review about recovery 

is taken by Board Members per month / time to time and 

important suggestions are given to the Recovery Team. Board 

of Directors and Recovery Officers of the Bank are taking 

efforts to achieve maximum recovery.
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Recovery target of `592.35 crore is set for the FY 2019-20, 

of which by end of June 2019, `22.60 crore from NPA and 

`30.73 from write-off accounts has been recovered. Likewise, 2 

accounts amounting to `41.91 lakh have been upgraded.

The particulars of the action taken by your Bank against 

defaulters are as follows-

Total 828 cases are under trial in the Arbitration and  

Hon’ble District Magistrate’s Court for the total amount of 

`1,209.24 crore (Principle + Interest).
As on 31.03.2019 Cases

Cases filed with the Arbitrator 58
Cases filed under “Darkhast” 770
At the end of year 2018-19 under Securitization Act, action 
was taken on 293 defaulters for the total amount of `1,224.00 
crore (Principle + Interest).

Actions Initiated Cases
1.	 Demand notice under section 13(2) 69
2.	 Taken possession of property 21
3.	 Process of possession under progress 112
4.	 Possession taken, sale process initiated 91

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CRAR)

As on 31st March 2019, your Bank’s Tier I 

Capital is `927.51 crore and Tier II Capital is 

`645.38 crore. As per RBI norms, a minimum 

CRAR ratio of 12% is mandatory for your Bank. We wish to 

inform you that as on 31st March 2019, the CRAR of your Bank 

is at satisfactory level of 12.89%.

LAUNCH OF LONG TERM (SUB-ORDINATED) DEPOSIT 
SCHEME 7 – Your Bank had launched Long Term  

Sub-ordinated Deposit Scheme – 7 on 25th March, 2019 as 

per the RBI & CRCS permission. Permission was granted to 

collect `13.00 crore under this scheme. Accordingly, scheme 

was launched on 25th March, 2019 and closed in just 4 days 

on 28th March, 2019 after collection of `12.99 crore.

 INVESTMENT AND TREASURY 
OPERATIONS

Treasury Department is entrusted to comply 

with regulatory stipulations of CRR and SLR of Reserve 

Bank of India from time to time. Treasury Department of your 

Bank plays a critical role of ensuring day-to-day liquidity while 

contributing to the Bank’s profitability on noteworthy basis by 

appropriate investments. 

Similar to the previous year, FY 2018-19 too was challenging 

for the Treasury Department but, with lesser intensity. Events 

like IL&FS defaults, India-Pakistan political tension, Increasing 

interest rates in USA and RBI Governor’s resignation, or so, 

caused tremendous volatility in bond market.

During the first six months of the financial year, RBI increased 

its Repo Rate by 50 bps to 6.50%. As a result, yield on 10 

year Benchmark Government Bond increased from 7.39% 

to 8.02%. Tighter liquidity conditions and weakening Rupee 

during this period also contributed to this hardening of yields. 

Yield fell in last 6 months on account of Repo rate cut of 25 

bps by RBI, falling inflation and Open Market Operation (OMO) 

purchase by RBI. Yields closed at 7.48% as on 31st March 

2019 as against 7.39% as on 31st March 2018. 

Investment Fluctuation Reserve – IFR is created from the 

actual profits received from the sale of Central / State Govt. 

Bonds. Investment Fluctuation Reserve Fund should be kept at 

5% of the amount of Central / State Govt. Bonds Available For 

Sale - AFS. As per Reserve Bank of India’s Circular, the excess 

amount over and above 5% from Total Investment Fluctuation 

Reserve can be transferred to the Profit & Loss Account at the 

end of the year. Such excess Fund of `30.00 crore has been 

transferred to Profit & Loss Account in the year 2018-19.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
OPERATIONS

International Trade and Global Currency 

Markets were hugely impacted by Interest Rate hikes in USA, 

Trade War between USA and CHINA, volatility in International 

Crude Prices, uncertainty around actual BREXIT etc. These 

developments caused increase in global strength of USD.

While above mentioned global strength adversely impacted 

Indian Rupee, the local factors like rising fiscal deficit, higher 

crude prices, Indo-Pakistan tensions, lower GDP growth 

and uncertainty ahead of the General Elections, put further 

pressure on the INR, which  slid to the weakest level of `74.48 

against USD during the year.

Amid such challenging conditions including the impact of 

disturbed forex operations post cyber-attack, your Bank’s 

Forex Business witnessed 17% rise in Merchant Turnover, 

while total Forex turnover touched the level of `21,573 crore. 
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NRI Deposits of the Bank could maintain the previous year’s 

level, after the turbulent times. Following the cyber-attack, 

Export Credit outstanding of the Bank registered 126% growth 

over previous year, to touch the figure of `117.53 crore.

AUDIT AND INSPECTION

The Concurrent Audit of all branches has been 

conducted by the 25 Chartered Accountancy 

Firms. The Concurrent Audit of the Branch is conducted 

monthly / quarterly / six monthly depending upon the Branch’s 

business. In the Annual General Meeting conducted on  

2nd September 2018, M/s. Yardi Prabhu and Associates, LLP, 

Mumbai and M/s. P. G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, 

Pune were appointed jointly as Statutory Auditors for the  

FY 2018-19. Both have inspected all the branches and Head 

Office of the Bank and submitted their audit report which is 

presented in this Annual Report. Similarly, M/s. Gunwani & 

Kolapkar, Chartered Accountants, Pune have been appointed 

as Internal Auditors of the Bank.

The entire banking operations are computerized. Hence to 

ensure security of the systems, in the FY 2018-19 for the 

purpose of System Audit, M/s Oxygen Consulting Services  

Pvt. Ltd., were appointed. They have conducted System Audit 

and submitted their report. The inspection of IT Infrastructure 

had been conducted this year by trained Bank Officials.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND 
VIGILANCE

For day-to-day audit and vigilance of the 

branches, independent and robust Inspection 

Department is operative in all regional offices which supervises 

the daily banking operations and keeps effective tab on the same.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Bank strongly believes that only employees 

who are capable and committed, can pave 

the way back to success and hence the Bank 

constantly strives to nurture these competencies of Employees. 

HR Department of the Bank, through its various activities 

has supported the Management by strategic allocation and 

optimum utilization of available human resources.

During the year under review, the Bank had given an offer 

to Cosmos e-Solutions and Services Pvt. Ltd. for transfer of 

employment of their employees to your Bank and the Company 

accepted the said offer. 83 employees who were willing to join 

your Bank’s services were absorbed into the services of the 

Bank w.e.f. 1st January, 2019. 

The staff strength of the Bank as on 31st March, 2019 is 

2600 (which includes 1256 Officers and 1344 other staff). 238 

outsourced candidates are working in the Bank.

During the year under review, the Bank is successful in 

maintaining cordial and peaceful industrial relations with 

Cosmos Bank Sevak Sangh.

On the occasion of New Year on 1st January 2019, Bank 

celebrated Employee Day. On this day, staff across all locations 

pledged their devotion and trust to the Bank and vowed to 

achieve all the targets set by the Bank. After the cyber-attack, 

the Bank’s staff made valuable contribution by creating trust 

into the minds of the customers and depositors, thus bringing 

back the lost deposits. Hence, as token of appreciation, the 

Bank granted ex-gratia to all the employees.

COSMOS CENTRE OF 
EXCELLENCE

‘Cosmos Centre of Excellence’ is a centralized 

training centre of the Bank for its Officers 

and Staff which works for the progress of the staff through 

development of their skills. This enables the staff to take on the 

future challenges.

Total 181 in-house training sessions were conducted covering 

4541 employees on various topics like Credit Management, 

Importance of Valuation, and Third Party Products like 

Insurance & Mutual Funds, Importance of GST and mandatory 

trainings like Cyber Security & AML-KYC. All the topics were 

related to the core-banking domain and ancillary banking 

services. 

Total 32 officers were deputed for 20 different programmes 

conducted by premier training institutes like CAB-RBI, 

NAFCUB-Delhi, NIBM - Pune, and IIBF - Mumbai to increase 

their proficiency level in their day-to-day working.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is a key factor in ensuring 

the stability and development of your Bank’s 

business considering the current economic 
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conditions, contagion impact of various global events and 

inter-linkages between financial markets. It has become a 

regulatory compliance requirement which aims to make the 

banking sector more robust and self-evolving. Hence, your 

Bank has developed a roadmap for implementing effective Risk 

Management Policies’ across the organisation and working 

towards building a ‘Risk Awareness’ culture in all its day-to-

day activities. The Risk Management Portfolio has identified 

16 business risks relevant to your Bank, including Operational 

Risk, Credit Risk, Financial Risk and Information Security Risk. 

An approved Risk Management Policy and Framework guides 

all the Risk Management initiatives which are undertaken 

by the Bank. It acts as a basis for specific risk policies like 

Operational Risk Policy, Principal Risk Policy, ALM Policy, 

Business Continuity Policy (BCP), Information Security Policy, 

Cyber Security Policy etc. are developed and implemented 

across your Bank. The monitoring and reporting of the risk 

management policy compliance is through specific committees 

like Operations, Technology and Risk (OTR) Committee, ALCO 

Committee, BCP Committee, Information Security Committee, 

etc. 

Apart from the aforesaid Risk Management Initiatives, the 

department is also involved in overseeing activities pertaining 

to Information Security Risk. Creating Cyber Security 

awareness for staff in the form of Newsletters, emails and 

personal trainings. Cyber Security Awareness for customers 

is created in form of Newsletters, Posters, periodic SMSs, etc.  

Information Security Risk team works in co-ordination with IT 

team to implement / enhance various security measures for 

your Bank. Your Bank also undertakes Information System 

(IS) Audit of Bank’s Data Center and Disaster Recovery Site 

to mitigate the impact due to IT Risk and to ensure that the 

Information Systems in use are being managed prudently.  

Your Bank also undertakes Information System Security Audit 

of Bank’s Information Systems to ensure that reasonable 

security is in place and implement required enhancements 

where ever necessary. 

CURRENCY CHEST

Bank’s Currency Chest is providing fresh 

and sorted currency notes and coins to all 

branches of the Bank in Pune-Mumbai and 

nearby areas. The important work of detection and impounding 

of forged notes and removing soiled notes from circulation by 

sorting and remitting the soiled notes to RBI is conducted by 

Currency Chest.

During the year 2018-19, Currency Chest has actively 

participated in educating customers by conducting 4 Public 

Awareness Training Programmes. 2 Soiled Notes & Coins 

Exchange Melas were also conducted during the year under 

review.

During the FY 2018-19 total cash turnover handled by the 

Currency Chest is `3089.59 crore.

INSURANCE

In line with IRDA guidelines and to increase 

insurance business, your Bank has entered 

into multiple tie-up arrangements with following 

insurance companies for Life and General 

insurance.

Type of 
Insurance

General Insurance Life Insurance 

 Name of 
Companies 
having tie 
up with

ICICI Lombard ICICI Prudential 
HDFC Ergo HDFC Life 
Bajaj Allianz General 
Insurance Co.

Exide Life Insurance 
Co. Ltd

These multiple tie-up arrangements have ensured that, 

customers have access to multiple products and can choose 

the suitable product as per their requirements. 

During the year under review, the Bank earned commission of 

`1.31 crore.

CYBER-ATTACK ON BANK’S ATM AND 
SWIFT PAYMENT GATEWAY

Your Bank faced a Cyber-attack on it’s ATM Infrastructure 

on 11th August 2019 and again on SWIFT Infrastructure on  

13th August 2018. This attack was the biggest ever, damaging 

and well planned in the history of the Banking Industry. 

This attack focused on the Bank’s Infrastructure effectively 

bypassing the main layers of defense. Due to this attack, the 

entire banking industry, RBI, Cert-In, SWIFT, NPCI, VISA etc. 

institutions relating to the Banking Industry were shocked to 

the core. In the cyber-attack, the attackers operated from 29 

countries and more than 12000 transactions worth `81.99 

crore were carried out through ATMs using VISA Debit cards 
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and 2800 transactions worth `2.75 crore from domestic ATMs 

through Rupay Cards were withdrawn within just four hours. 

Again total `13.92 crore were transferred fraudulently to the 

account of M/s. ALM Trading Limited having account with 

Hang Seng Bank, Hong Kong through cyber-attack on SWIFT 

Payment Gateway. 

As this was a Malware Attack, the ATM Transactions did not 

reach the Bank’s Switching System. While these transactions 

were going on, if VISA, NPCI could have observed the regular 

transaction pattern of the Bank they would have understood 

the abnormality of the said transactions and stopped them on 

time, thus avoiding the loss to the Bank. 

The Prime Minister Office took cognizance of this cyber-

attack as it considered this to be attack on country’s cyber 

security system and not just on our Bank. RBI issued new 

directive principles with reference to the Digital Banking which 

previously were applicable only to the Commercial Banks. 

Considering the modus operandi of the cyber-attack, various 

seminars, workshops were conducted on the national level for 

strengthening the Digital Banking Security. 

The Bank has lodged FIR with Chaturshringi Police Station 

and engaged Pricewater-houseCoopers Private Limited, 

India (PWC) for conducting Cyber Security Incident  

Investigation and Forensic Analysis of the cyber-attack on it’s 

banking infrastructure. Maharashtra Govt. Cyber Crime Cell 

has independently investigated this incident and filed Criminal 

Case against the arrested domestic culprits. CERT-In has also 

studied this cyber-attack and completed their investigation.

•	 After this incident as per instructions of forensic 

investigators and CERT-In, the Bank has implemented 

security measures for ATM Switch Server and SWIFT 

Server for Cyber Security. Series of training were 

conducted for improving the cyber security awareness of 

all employees. For strengthening and further securing the 

email gateway to thwart phishing and spamming attempts 

strong spam filters have been enabled to prevent phishing 

emails from reaching the end users. Further, authentication 

has been added for inbound email using technologies 

like Sender Policy Framework (SPF), Domain Message 
Authentication Reporting and Conformance (DMARC), 

and DomainKeys Identified Mail (DKIM) to prevent email 

spoofing.

	 Apart from the above, your Bank has introduced below 

additional layers at the Data Center and at Bank level to 

safeguard the IT Systems.

1.	 Creation of Multilayer Network at the Bank Level

	 Implementation of Higher end technologies like SIEM, 

NGFW and HIPS to monitor network traffic through 

Perimeter Security i.e. North to South security and inter 

Host security i.e. East to West security.

2.	 Segregation of Network

	 All the servers and applications are segregated as 

mentioned below:

	 i.	 Customer facing applications

	 ii.	 Applications which requires Data from External 

Agencies

	 iii.	 Server Infrastructure 

	 iv.	 End User Network

3.	 Security Posture defined to prevent Lateral Movement

	 Enabled a more proactive security posture by seeking 

to deceive attackers, detect them and then defeat them, 

allowing the enterprise to return to normal operations.

4.	 Endpoint Security

	 Bank has started using Next Generation Endpoint 

Protection Solution instead of traditional Anti-Virus 

Solution to neutralize advanced and resilient virus.

5.	 ATM Whitelisting Solution which is introduced by the 
RBI recently.

	 i.	 It protects ATM and networks from potentially harmful 

applications

	 ii.	 Gives Endpoint Security and Application Control 

capabilities for ATM

	 iii.	 It does not allow malicious software to be installed on 

the systems.

	 iv.	 Only authorized application can reside and run.

	 v.	 Unauthorized and unknown applications are blocked
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6.	 Spam Mail Filtering at Mail Gateway Anti-Spam 
Solution-  In this all e-mails, viruses, spyware, phishing 

etc. are checked and each and every e-mail attachment is 

scanned.

7.	 Cyber Security Framework and Cyber Crisis 
Management Plan (CCMP) As per the RBI guidelines 

for the Urban Cooperative Banks (UCBs) it has defined 

13 Cyber Security Controls. Based on these controls the 

Cyber Security Framework and CCMP is prepared by the 

Bank and it is in the implementation stage.

No agency or Service Provider gives guarantee that every 

cyber-attack will be averted or not a single machine/system 

will be hacked. Hence it will be necessary to keep applying 

new Security Systems and keep continual vigil and monitoring. 

Accordingly, the Bank Management is become more cautious.

50% provision for the cyber-attack amount has been provided 

for by the Bank in December 2018 and remaining 50% of the 

cyber-attack stands provided by end of June 2019.

From the amount of `13.92 crore which was transferred via 

Swift gateway during the cyber-attack, 10 million Hong Kong 

Dollars (approx. `8.00 crore) have been frozen by Hang Seng 

Bank. With the help of Indian Embassy in Hong Kong and 

Hong Kong Police, the Bank is trying its best to bring the funds 

back. The Bank will certainly get back this amount.

To incorporate new services and more digital channels in the 

Bank’s Payment Switch System, significant and tough policy 

decision has been made to make major changes in present 

Payment Switch System. Presently the process of changing 

ATM Switch Server is going on. The digital banking system will 

start through the new switch shortly.

SEVAK KALA-KRIDA

During the year under review, Bank’s Cricket Team participated 

in Late Sadu Shinde League organized by Pune District 

Cricket Association.  Our Team won all the 5 matches in this 

competition and won the group championship. Mr. Nikhil 

Shewale, Mr. Mayuresh Jadhav and Mr. Ranjit Jagtap 

played important roles in the victory. Bank’s Kabaddi team 

participated in Sahakar Karandak Kabaddi Competition 

arranged by Krida Bharati in December 2018 and reached 

quarter finals. The game played by Mr. Vitthal Bodke,  

Mr. Chetan Shedge and Mr. Vinayak Shinde deserves applause. 

On the occasion of International Women’s Day celebrated on 

8th March, the Bank celebrated Gratitude Day on 9th March, 

2019. On this day, staff along with their family members 

gathered in the premises of Savitribai Phule Pune University 

(SPPU). On this occasion, Vice-Chancellor of SPPU,  

Dr. Nitin Karmalkar, Other Professors and staff were present. 

Your Bank’s Group Chairman, Chairman, Directors, Managing 

Director, staff, their families, ex-staff have actively participated 

in this event.

BANK ANNIVERSARY

January 18th, 2019 – On the occasion of Bank’s  

113th Anniversary, Cosmos Bank Sevak Sangh organized 

blood donation camp at Cosmos Heights. In the evening, 

traditional Tilgul Samarambha for all depositors, shareholders, 

customers and well-wishers was arranged like every year. 

Shareholders, depositors consistently requested to organize 

the Bank’s anniversary programme in the premises of Cosmos 

Heights, Shaniwar Peth Respecting the request, the get-

together was arranged at Cosmos Heights like yesteryears. On 

the occasion of the 113th Anniversary, ‘Star Customer’ scheme 

was announced for saving bank account holders who keep 

average quarterly balance of `25 lakh in their SB accounts.

BANK’S RECOGNITION

Your Bank received the award for Best Product Innovation 

and Best Green Initiative from Banking Frontier for the  

year 2017-18.

DIRECTORS’ ACHIEVEMENTS

01.	 Senior Director and Group Chairman of your Bank,  

Dr. Mukund Abhyankar was unanimously elected as 

Director on Board of Co-operative Bank of India, New Delhi. 

This election is for the period from 28th August, 2018 to  

27th August, 2023.

02.	 Senior Director of your Bank, Mr. Krishnakumar Goyal 

was honoured with ‘Scroll of Honour’ by Reality Plus. He 

received this prestigious award at the hands of Ms. Shweta 

Shalin who is the Advisor to Chief Minister of Maharashtra.

03.	 Senior Director of your Bank, Mr. Krishnakumar Goyal has 

been appointed as Vice-President of Pune Festival 2019.
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STAFF ACHIEVEMENT

In the elections of Pune District Cricket Association for the year 

2019, Bank Officer Mr. Yashwant Bhujbal was unanimously 

elected in the category Bank, Industries and Offices. He was 

re-appointed as Pune District Representative for Maharashtra 

Cricket Association. He is also working as Joint Secretary for 

Maharashtra Cricket Association for Disabled. He has done 

remarkable work for Cricket as a sport for Divyang persons 

and girls.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year under review, following committees were 

active to oversee the day to day work, sanctioning of loans and 

policy matters.

1.	 Executive Committee

2.	 Loan Sanctioning Committee

3.	 Recovery Committee

4.	 Audit Committee

5.	 Investment & Foreign Exchange Committee

6.	 Fraud Monitoring Committee

7.	 Asset Management Committee

8.	 Development & Member Relation and Financial Inclusion 

Committee

9.	 Staff Committee

During the year 2018-19, 31 meetings of Board of Directors and total 111 meetings of all the Sub-committees were held. Following 

are the attendance details of the same.

Name of Director Meetings of Board of 
Directors

Meetings of Sub- 
Committees

Total No. of 
Meetings

Attendance Total No. of 
Meetings

Attendance

1. CA Milind Kale 31 30 111 102
2. Mr. Govind Kshirsagar 31 30 85 82
3. Dr. Mukund Abhyankar 31 29 22 19
4. Dr. Smita Jog 31 16 29 20
5. Mr. Krishnakumar Goyal 31 28 62 44
6. Adv. Jayant Shaligram 31 26 39 25
7. Mr. Prakash Joshirao* 19 03 10 00
8. Mr. Rajeev Sabade 31 29 46 45
9. Adv. Pralhad Kokare 31 30 48 45
10. Adv. Shripad Panchpor 31 24 63 52
11. Mr. Jitendra Shah 31 25 41 29

*Resignation of Mr. Prakash Joshirao as Director of Bank was accepted by the Board of Directors on 12th October, 2018 and he 

was relieved of his responsibilities as Director.

MEMBERSHIP

During the year under review, 3678 new Individual and Institutional Members were enrolled. Whereas, due to resignation and 

other reasons 3477 members were removed from the member list. Thus as on 31st March 2019, the total members of the Bank 

were 79016.

KNOW YOUR CUSTOMER (KYC) AND ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING (AML)

The Bank is complying with all the guidelines related to KYC & AML issued by RBI from time to time. Accordingly the KYC/AML 

Policy is formulated. The Bank has submitted all the statutory reports within prescribed time limit to FIU-IND. 

The Bank has 2 Centralized Account Opening Cells for opening current and savings account. Account opening forms along 

with KYC documents are scanned through Document Management System (DMS) to maintain permanent e-record of such 

documents at these Account Opening Cells.
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The Bank is regularly uploading data and image of KYC documents of new individual customers on CKYC portal of CERSAI. 

Till date 1.25 lakh customers have got KYC Identifier Number through our Bank. As per UIDAI circular, Aadhaar Data vault is 

implemented as Bank is AUA and KUA of the UIDAI and hence all Aadhaar numbers of customers are replaced by reference key 

in our database. 

DETAILS OF THE LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS
 1.	 Financial Year 2015-2016
Date & Venue : Thursday, 29th September, 2016 Shivshankar Hall, Maharshinagar, Pune – 411037.
Specific directives accepted in the 
Meeting

Appointment of M/s. G. D. Apte & Company and M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates as 
Statutory Auditors for the year 2016-17.

Approval was given to sanction dividend @10% for 2015-16 subject to RBI permission
2.	 Financial Year 2016-17
Date & Venue : Sunday, 24th September, 2017 Shivshankar Hall, Maharshinagar, Pune – 411037.
Specific directives accepted in the 
Meeting

Appointment of M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates, LLP, M/s. G. D. Apte and Company, and 
M/s Kirtane and Pandit LLP as Statutory Auditors for the year 2017-18.

Pursuant to the RBI’s permission, the BoD appealed to the General Body to accord its 
approval to submit a request application to RBI to declare dividend at 10% out of remaining 
profit of `41.16 crore / or Reserves for the FY 2016-17 after making all the statutory 
provisions from the total profit of 71.73 crore.

3.	 Financial Year 2017-18
Date & Venue : Sunday, 2nd September, 2018 Shivshankar Hall, Maharshinagar, Pune – 411037.
Specific directives accepted in the 
Meeting

Appointment of M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates, LLP, M/s. G. D. Apte & Company, and  
M/s. P G Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors for the year 2018-19.

OBITUARY
Bank deeply mourns the demise of persons associated with the Bank, known-unknown members/account holders, martyred 
soldiers, Bank Staff and well-wishers during the year under review.

BANK VISITS
During the year under review, various renowned personalities visited your Bank. The prominent amongst them were:-

•	 Hon’ble General V. K. Singh (Retd.), - Minister of State for External Affairs at the time of his visit. Presently, he is Minister of 
State for Road Transport and Highways.

•	 Hon’ble Amar Sabale, Member of Parliament, Rajya Sabha

•	 Hon’ble Sahebrao Patil, Additional Commissioner (Administration) of Police, Pune.

GRATITUDE
We express sincere gratitude towards, Central Registrar, Agriculture and Co-operatives Department, Government of India, New 
Delhi and all the officials therein, all officials of Reserve Bank of India, Commissioner of Co-operatives and the officials of the 
states of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka, Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana.
We express heartfelt gratitude for the guidance offered by our Internal, Concurrent and Statutory Auditors during the year under 
review.
Cosmos Sevak Sangh has an important role in the success of Cosmos Bank. Gratitude towards the office bearers and all 
members of Cosmos Sevak Sangh.
Last but not the least, heartfelt gratitude for the support by all the members, depositors, customers, executives and staff of the 
Bank for the year under review.

Date: 12th July, 2019
Please Note: The Marathi version will be held authentic for all interpretations.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Milind Kale
Chairman
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APPEAL TO ALL MEMBERS
1.	 We request you to notify any change in your mailing address immediately. 

2.	 In order to ensure security of account balance and also to notify customers of various new schemes, SMS facility 
is available. You are therefore requested to register your mobile numbers and email IDs with your parent branch.

3.	 As per the provisions in Multistate Co-op Societies Act, if a member of Multistate Co-op. Society remains absent 
for three Annual General Meetings consecutively and if leave is not granted for such absence by Annual General 
Meeting, his membership automatically stands cancelled. Members should take note of this and attend the 
meetings. Otherwise they should intimate in writing their inability to attend.

Important Notice 
(For the Shareholders of The Cosmos Co-op. Bank Ltd.)

Disqualification of Member:

As per Bank’s Bye-law No. 7 (iv) (b) 

No person shall be eligible for being a member of the Bank if he used for two consecutive years, 
the service of the Bank, without maintaining the deposits or taking loan above the minimum level of 
Rs.5,000/- or he / she fails to open any type of account in the Bank and utilizing the service of the Bank.

Failing which, the management will be forced to take action as per the provisions of the above referred 
bye-law regarding the membership.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019

AS AT  
31ST MARCH 2018

`

No.
›eâ.

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
keâpex Je osCeer

SCH AS AT  
31ST MARCH , 2019

`

3,716,380,200.00 1. Capital / Yeeb[Je} A  3,444,748,600.00

16,124,462,885.65 2. Reserve Fund and other Reserves / iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeer B  15,158,556,201.20

— 3. Principal And Subsidiary State Partnership Fund Account
MeemeveeÛeer ØecegKe DeLeJee meneÙÙekeâejer Yeeefieoejer efveOeer

 —

149,324,977,453.40 4. Deposits And Other Accounts / "sJeer Je DevÙe Keeleer C  153,530,420,386.17

6,845,112,000.00 5. Borrowings / keâpex D  11,247,126,000.00

3,269,859,711.25 6. Bills For Collection Being Bills Receivable (As Per Contra)
Jemegueer efmJekeâejuesueer efyeues (ogyesjpeerØeceeCes)

 4,115,007,199.89

228,496,975.80 7. Branch Adjustments / MeeKee efceUJeCeer  453,409,346.20

8. Overdue Interest Reserve / Lekeâyeekeâer JÙeepe lejlego
2,261,719,056.19 On Non-Performing Advances / Deveglheeefole keâpee&Jejerue  2,819,883,802.74

4,994,797.77 9. Interest Payable / JÙeepe osCes  15,474,730.99

4,872,259,038.22 10. Other Liabilities / Flej osCeer E  4,897,259,105.62

26,130,085.00 11. Merged Banks Collection Account Payable
efJeueerefvekeâjCe PeeuesuÙee yeBkeâebÛes keâueskeäMeve DekeâeQš hesSyeue

F  25,071,330.00

243,257,416.77 12. Profit & Loss Account / veHeâe-leesše Keeles G  802,871,886.45

NOTES  ON  ACCOUNTS Q

186,917,649,620.05  TOTAL  196,509,828,589.26
5,675,197,644.61 SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER REPO/LAF(CONTRA)  8,336,992,983.02

Contingent Liabilities :
mebYeeJÙe osCeer

6,717,571,860.38 Bank Guarantees 
yeBkeâ nceer

 8,163,511,041.61

4,360,195,382.44 Letters Of Credit Issued
uesšj Dee@Heâ ›esâef[š

 2,539,961,274.27

2,369,495,938.40 Forward Exchange Contracts Purchase/Sale
Heâe@jJe[& SkeämeÛeWpe keâe@@vš^@keäš hejÛesme /mesue

 1,303,842,582.07

293,297,186.92 Others - Depositor Education & Awareness Fund 
Flej: "sJeeroej efMe#eCe DeeefCe peeefCeJe efveOeer

337,125,719.25

Notes on accounts form part of accounts
As per our Report of even date

 Signature to the Accounts including Schedules and Notes on Accounts

(Sudhan Yardi) Partner 
M.NO. 22887 

(Statutory Auditor)

(Nachiket Deo) Partner
M. NO: 117695

(Statutory Auditor)

For M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants 

F.R.NO.111727W/W100101

For M/s. P. G. Bhagwat 
Chartered Accountants 

F.R.NO. 101118 W
Place : Pune
Date : 29/05/2019
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31.3.2019 DeKesjÛee leeUsyebo

AS AT  
31ST MARCH 2018

`

No.
›eâ.

PROPERTY AND ASSETS
efpeboieer  Je ÙesCes

SCH AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`

8,583,868,652.09 1. Cash and Bank Balances / ßeer efMeu}keâ Je yeBkesâleerue efMeu}keâ H 8,789,169,414.60

1,709,143,526.58 2. Balances with other Banks / Flej yeBkeâeleer} efMeu}keâ I 1,665,719,659.18

2,000,000,000.00 3. Money at Call and Short Notice (Lending under Reverse 
REPO/LAF) / ceeieCeerkeâjleeÛe efceUCeeNÙee Jee Deuhe veesšerMeerves efceUCeeNÙee 
"sJeer

3,248,530,943.44

47,733,834,129.93 4. Investments / iegbleJeCetkeâ J 45,384,598,299.41

107,709,317,896.52 5. Advances / keâpex K 115,991,541,528.21

6. Interest Receivable / JÙeepe ÙesCes
885,935,338.00 Interest on Deposits & Securities

"sJeer Je jesKÙeebJejerue JÙeepe
866,595,318.35

2,261,719,056.19 Overdue Interest on Loans & Advances  
keâpe& KeelÙeeJejerue Leefkeâle ÙesCes JÙeepe

2,819,883,802.74

— 7. Branch Adjustments / MeeKee efceUJeCeer —

3,269,859,711.25 8. Bills Receivable being bills for Collection (As Per Contra )
Jemegueermee"er hee"efJeuesueer efyeues (ogyesjpeerØeceeCes)

4,115,007,199.89

6,612,732,215.49 9. Fixed Assets (Gross Block Less Accumulated Depreciation) 
/ keâeÙece eEpeoieer

L 6,330,246,146.13

5,250,053,970.42 10. Other Assets / Flej ÙesCeer M 6,654,925,632.93

392,640,824.84 11. Non Banking Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims
keâpe& Hesâ[erle yeBkesâves Kejsoer kesâuesuÙee efceUkeâleer

219,612,760.64

469,784,000.00 12. Deferred Tax Asset / ef[Heâ[& š@keäme De@mesš 386,269,052.00

38,760,298.74 13. Goodwill A/C - Merged Banks / ieg[efJeue Keeles - efJeueerefvekeâjCe yeBkeâe 37,728,831.74

186,917,649,620.05 TOTAL 196,509,828,589.26

MILIND A. KALE
CHAIRMAN

GOVIND R. KSHIRSAGAR
VICE CHAIRMAN

SUHAS S. GOKHALE
MANAGING DIRECTOR

MUKUND L. ABHYANKAR
DIRECTOR

 SMITA V. JOG 
DIRECTOR

JAYANT B. SHALIGRAM
DIRECTOR

RAJEEV B. SABADE
DIRECTOR

PRALHAD B. KOKARE
DIRECTOR

SHRIPAD D. PANCHPOR
DIRECTOR

 JITENDRA B. SHAH
DIRECTOR

 ARCHANA V JOSHI
ASST GENERAL MANAGER

UMESH C. DATAR
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-3-2019

31-03-2018 
`

No. 
›eâ.

EXPENDITURE
KeÛe&

SCH 31.03.2019
`

 10,995,602,338.81  1. Interest on Deposits, Borrowings etc.
"sJeer Je keâpee&Jejer} efo}s}s JÙeepe

10,510,278,098.26

 1,579,933,015.76  2. Salaries, Allowances, PF Contribution & 
Gratuity etc. / Heieej, Yeòes, HeÇe@. Heâb[ Jeie&Ceer DeeefCe  
ieÇ@ÛÙegF&šer F.

 1,763,593,998.34

 1,248,000.00  3. Directors Fees & Allowances /  
mebÛee}keâ ceb[U Heâer Je Yeòes

 1,047,880.00

 589,965,152.29  4. Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Light Etc. /  
Yee[s, keâj, efJecee Je Jeerpe F.

 630,498,268.58

 1,262,201.50  5. Legal Charges / keâeÙeosMeerj meuuÙeeyeeyele cegMeeefnje  63,950.00
 56,243,363.76  6. Postage, Telegram & Telephone  /  

šHee}, leej Je šsef}Heâesve
 50,059,350.14

 21,739,497.14  7. Auditors Fee / DeeÙeJÙeÙe efvejer#ekeâ Heâer  27,671,238.00
 402,932,685.99  8. Depreciation, Repairs, Maintenance To 

Bank's Property /Fceejle,Heâefve&Ûej,keâe@cHÙegšme& 
F.Jejer} Peerpe Je og®mleer KeÛe&

 405,128,280.76

 87,524,199.99  9. Stationery, Printing, Advt. Sadil Etc.
}sKeve meeefnlÙe, ÚHeeF&, peeefnjele, meeefo} F.

 81,759,617.91

 154,557,237.21  10. Amortisation Of Premium On Securities
Deceesše&ÙePesMeve Dee@Heâ efHeÇefceÙece Dee@ve efmekeäÙegefjšerpe

 204,923,840.87

 533,641,834.03  11. Other Expenditure / Flej KeÛe& N  1,019,554,280.89
 3,239,366,570.61 12(i). Provision For Assets / Demesšmedmee"er lejleto O  1,600,740,243.29

 — 12(ii) Reserve For Infrastructure & Housing 
Development / HeeÙeeYetle megefJeOee Je ie=nefJekeâeme lejleto

 —

 2,097,535,286.33  13. Bad Debts Written Off / yeg[erle keâpex& jeFš Dee@Heâ  1,545,530,159.67
 —  14. Profit Before Tax / keâj DeekeâejCeer HetJe& veHeâe  365,471,414.23
 150,000.00  15. Income Tax / DeeÙekeâj  3,788,700.00 

 6,247,878.00 Income Tax Earlier Years (Excess)/Short
DeeÙekeâj ceeieerue Je<eea 

 13,913,830.00 

 (323,225,284.00) Add / (Less): Deferred Tax / ef[Heâ[& š@keäme 129,465,720.00  147,168,250.00
— 16. Profit After Tax / vekeäle veHeâe  218,303,164.23
— 17. Net Profit Carried Forward  

vekeäle veHeâe leeUsyeboekeâ[s Jeie&
 218,303,164.23

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS Q
 19,444,723,977.42 18,206,320,620.94

 657,302,775.00  Net Loss Brought Forward  —
 

 66,932,334.46  Net Surplus Carried To Balancesheet  755,359,660.62
 724,235,109.46 TOTAL   755,359,660.62

Notes on accounts form part of accounts
As per our Report of even date

 Signature to the Accounts including Schedules and Notes on Accounts

(Sudhan Yardi) Partner 
M.NO. 22887 

(Statutory Auditor)

(Nachiket Deo) Partner
M. NO: 117695

(Statutory Auditor)
For M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants 
F.R.NO.111727W/W100101

For M/s. P. G. Bhagwat 
Chartered Accountants 

F.R.NO. 101118 W
Place : Pune
Date : 29/05/2019
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31-3-2019 DeKesjÛes veHeâe-leesše he$ekeâ

31-03-2018
`

No. 
›eâ.

INCOME
Glhevve

SCH 31-03-2019
`

14,616,742,881.73 1. Interest & Discount 
JÙeepe Je keâmej

P 14,627,512,668.19

961,049,595.59 2. Profit On Sale Of Securities (Net)
jesKes efJe›eâerJejer} veHeâe

411,321,983.78

745,789,661.39 3. Commission & Exchange / keâefceMeve Je nbÏ[CeeJeU 784,382,152.87

4. Other Receipts / Flej pecee
62,072.46 	 A) 	 Rent / Yee[ss 62,071.00

1,043,306.14 	 B) 	 Share Transfer Fee, Form Fee Etc.
		  Yeeie Jeie&, Heâe@ce& Heâer F.

852,931.86

54,946,436.30 	 C) 	 Locker Rent / }e@keâj Yee[s 56,643,101.90

526,205.37 	 D) 	 Other Income / Flej GlHeVe 9,447,217.95

10,633,638.22 	 E) 	 Depository Income / ef[Hee@efPešjer GlHeVe 10,112,340.91

250,598,569.44 	 F) 	 Principal Recovery In NPAs Written Off
		  jeFš Dee@Heâ keâsuesuÙee DeveglHeeefole keâpee&ceOeerue 

cegöueeÛeer Jemegueer

668,076,385.13 745,194,048.75

20,425,876.44 5. Profit On Sale Of Properties / Other Assets
Fceejleer efJe›eâerJejerue veHeâe 

91,348,140.59

9,651,673.01 6. Excess Provision For Merged Bank Losses 
Written Back / efJeueerve yeBkesâÛeer peeoe lejleto hejle pecee

1,031,467.00

18,416,000.00 7. Excess Provision For Standard Assets 
Written Back

—

2,097,535,286.33 8. B.D.D.R Written Back  / yeg[erle Je mebMeefÙele keâpe&& 1,545,530,159.76

974,130,181.00 9. Loss Before Tax —
657,302,775.00 10. Loss After Tax —
657,302,775.00 11. Net Loss —

19,444,723,977.42 TOTAL 18,206,320,620.94
— Net Profit Brought Forward 218,303,164.23

724,235,109.46 Transfer From Reserve For Unforeseen 
Losses 

237,056,496.39

— Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
Written Back 

300,000,000.00

724,235,109.46 TOTAL 755,359,660.62
MILIND A. KALE

CHAIRMAN
GOVIND R. KSHIRSAGAR

VICE CHAIRMAN
SUHAS S. GOKHALE

MANAGING DIRECTOR
MUKUND L. ABHYANKAR

DIRECTOR
 SMITA V. JOG 

DIRECTOR
JAYANT B. SHALIGRAM

DIRECTOR
RAJEEV B. SABADE

DIRECTOR
PRALHAD B. KOKARE

DIRECTOR
SHRIPAD D. PANCHPOR

DIRECTOR
 JITENDRA B. SHAH

DIRECTOR
 ARCHANA V JOSHI

ASST GENERAL MANAGER
UMESH C. DATAR

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE



36

SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET
AS AT  

31ST MARCH, 2018
`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`
SCHEDULE-"A"

10,000,000,000.00 CAPITAL 10,000,000,000.00
A) Authorised Capital

100000000 Shares of `100/- each
DeefOeke=âle YeeieYeeb[Je} (HeÇlÙeskeâer `100/- HeÇceeCes)

B) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up :
Jemet} YeeieYeeb[Je}

3,716,380,200.00 Shares of `100/- each fully paid:
held by :
Individuals	 :	 24688625 2,468,862,500.00
Others 		  : 	   9758861 975,886,100.00

 3,444,748,600.00
3,716,380,200.00 3,444,748,600.00

SCHEDULE-"B"
RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES
iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeer

2,771,022,301.37 1) Statutory Reserve Fund / iebieepeUer 2,776,315,570.20
1,224,662,052.30 2) Building Fund / Fceejle efveOeer 1,224,662,052.30
2,908,860,603.51 3) Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts

yeg[erle Je mebMeefÙele keâpe& efveOeer 
3,330,047,017.44

37,915,316.65 4) Provision for Restructured Assets 68,892,217.17
371,967,063.00 5) Contingent Provision for Standard Assets

mšB[[& De@mesšmedJejer} mebYeeJÙe lejleto
394,375,000.00

1,294,754,620.01 6) Contingent Provision against depreciation in 
Investments/ iegbleJeCetkeâ IemeeNÙeemee"er mebYeeJÙe lejleto

467,095,854.30

105,025.00 7) Provision for Investment Diminution/ jesKes DeJecetuÙeve 
efveOeer

1,105,025.00

861,584,323.22 8) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
jesKes DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe efveOeer

561,584,323.22

38,760,298.74 9) Provision for Ahmedabad Co-op. Bank Losses 
(Since Amalgamated) / Denceoeyeeo yeBkesâÛee leesše Je 
lejletoeRmee"er jeKeerJe

37,728,831.74

3,855,927.92 10) Staff Development Fund/ mesJekeâ efJekeâeme efveOeer 4,113,428.47
33,823,802.67 11) Member Child Education Fund /meYeemeo heeuÙe efMe#eCe efveOeer 36,414,705.95

72,568.26 12) Social / Member Commitment Reserve
meYeemeo / meeceeefpekeâ yeebefOeuekeâer efveOeer

78,126.99

2,500,000.00 13) Staff Death Benevolent Fund —
4,600,811,287.36 14) Revaluation Surplus / Fceejle Hetvecet&uÙeebkeâve efveOeer 4,462,821,815.29

94,267,154.34 15) Reserve For Infrastructure & Housing Development
heeÙeeYetle megefJeOee Je ie=nefJekeâeme efveOeer

94,267,154.34

237,056,496.39 16) Reserve for Unforeseen Losses 
Deekeâefmcekeâ leesšŸeemee"er jeKeerJe efveOeer

—

1,266,541,848.14 17) General Reserve / meJe&meeOeejCe efveOeer 1,323,152,882.02
375,902,196.77 18) ARC Surplus Fund / SDeejmeer mejHueme  Hebâ[ 375,902,196.77 15,158,556,201.20

16,124,462,885.65 15,158,556,201.20
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET
AS AT  

31ST MARCH, 2018
`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`
SCHEDULE-"C"

DEPOSIT AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
"sJeer Je DevÙe Keeleer 

(i) TERM DEPOSITS / cegole "sJeer
102,462,641,797.75 a)	 From Individuals & Others / JÙeefkeäleiele 106,929,539,525.55

— b)	 From Central Co-op Banks / ceOÙeJeleea menkeâejer yeBkeäme —
10,793,348,020.92 c) 	 From Other Societies / Flej mebmLee 13,821,182,969.84

113,255,989,818.67 120,750,722,495.39
(ii) SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS / yeÛele Keeles "sJeer

26,620,048,094.72 a) 	 From Individuals & Others / JÙeefkeäleiele 23,653,887,619.88
— b) 	 From Central Co-op Banks / ceOÙeJeleea menkeâejer yeBkeäme —

760,387,962.47 c) 	 From Other Societies / Flej mebmLee 747,983,401.40
27,380,436,057.19 24,401,871,021.28

(iii) CURRENT DEPOSITS / Ûeeuet Keeles "sJeer
8,442,577,192.87 a) 	 From Individuals & Others / JÙeefkeäleiele 8,060,150,204.49

— b) 	 From Central Co-op Banks / ceOÙeJeleea menkeâejer yeBkeäme —
245,974,384.67 c) 	 From Other Societies / Flej mebmLee 317,676,665.01

8,688,551,577.54 8,377,826,869.50
149,324,977,453.40 153,530,420,386.17

SCHEDULE-"D"
BORROWINGS / keâpex

— 1) Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) 5,000,000,000.00
6,845,112,000.00 2) Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits / oerIe& cegoleerÛÙee "sJeer 6,247,126,000.00
6,845,112,000.00 11,247,126,000.00

SCHEDULE-"E"
OTHER LIABILITIES / Flej osCeer

207,616,857.40 a) Outstanding Payments / efyeues osCes 145,329,817.68
8,207,623.50 b) Dividend Payable / ueeYeebMe osCes 6,087,319.21

248,335,136.36 c) Suspense Account / Deveecele 224,230,333.70
347,554,656.87 d) Payslip Payable / HesmueerHe HesSyeue 233,591,130.77
363,986,922.55 e) Other Liabilities / Flej osCeer 427,783,287.85
518,107,909.28 f) Sundries / Flej 515,746,374.89

2,878,330,548.00 g) Income Tax Provision / DeeÙekeâj lejleto 2,896,033,078.00
2,889,117.53 h) Interest Received in Advance on Export Credit  

efveÙee&le keâpee&Jejerue JÙeepe DeeieeT pecee
11,477,177.34

231,139,824.81 i) Interest Provision for Funded Interest Term Loan 
(FITL) / KeelÙeemee"er JÙeepeeÛeer lejleto 

351,743,572.06

39,051,067.82 j) Claims under ECGC Scheme / ECGC keäuesce 39,051,067.82
27,018,003.10 k) GST Payable 31,219,295.11

21,371.00 l) NPA Recovery 94,384.00
— m) Exchange Profit Adjustment Account 14,872,267.19

4,872,259,038.22 4,897,259,105.62
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET
AS AT  

31ST MARCH, 2018
`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`
SCHEDULE-"F"

MERGED BANKS COLLECTION ACCOUNT 
PAYABLE
efJeueerveerkeâjCe PeeuesuÙee yeBkeâebÛes keâueskeäMeve DekeâeQš HesSyeue

20,005,960.00 1) Unnati Co-op. Bank Ltd., Baroda / GVeleer men. yeBkeâ, ye[esoe 19,398,680.00
6,124,125.00 2) Sushil Kumar Nahata Co-op. Bank ,Bhusawal 

megMeer}kegâceej veeneše yeBkeâ, YegmeeJeU
5,672,650.00

26,130,085.00 25,071,330.00
SCHEDULE-"G"

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Profit as per last Balance Sheet
ceeieerue leeUsyeboevegmeej veHeâe

109,788,444.92 Balance c/f 176,325,082.31
717,323,265.11 Profit / Loss for the year 2017-18 (657,302,775.00)
827,111,710.03 (480,977,692.69)

— Add : Transfer from Reserve for Unforseen Losses 724,235,109.46
827,111,710.03 243,257,416.77

Less : Dividend for the FY 2016-17 102,407,962.94
(-)21,26,87,000.00 Less : Bad & Doubtful Debt Reserve 132,775,000.00

(-)77,51,000.00 Less : Overdue Interest Reserve 6,513,000.00
(+)7,36,06,717.00 Add : Deferred Tax Assets 45,950,772.00

680,280,427.03 47,512,225.83
Less :Appropriation

179,330,820.00 a) Statutory Reserve Fund / iebieepeUer —
71,732,330.00 b) Reserve for Unforeseen Losses / Deekeâeqmcele leesšŸeemee"er 

jeKeerJe efveOeer 

—

7,173,235.00 c) Education Fund / efMe#eCe efveOeer —
— d) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 

jesKes DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe efveOeer
—

422,044,042.03 47,512,225.83
(-)24,57,18,959.72 Add/Less : Transfer To General Reserve —

176,325,082.31 47,512,225.83
(-)65,73,02,775.00 Add: Net Profit / Loss for the year as per Annexed 

A/c 
218,303,164.23

(480,977,692.69) 265,815,390.06
724,235,109.46 Add:   Transfer from Reserve for Unforseen Losses 237,056,496.39

— Add: Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
Written Back

300,000,000.00 
802,871,886.45

243,257,416.77
SCHEDULE - "H"

CASH & BANK BALANCES
jesKe efMeuuekeâ Je yeBkeâebkeâ[erue efMeuuekeâ

829,112,472.00 a) Cash In Hand / jesKe efMeuuekeâ 613,487,305.50
6,853,600,832.98 b) Reserve Bank of India Current Account / efjPeJn&& yeBkeâ 

Ûeeuet Keeles
7,659,541,106.06

396,092.06 c) Current Deposits with State Co-operative Bank Ltd. 
 mšsš keâes-Dee@he yeBkeâebkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer

308,202.70

81,642,976.97 d) Current Deposits with Dist.Central Co-op. Bank Ltd. 
ef[mš̂erJeäš mesbš̂ue keâes-Dee@he yeBkesâkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer

88,126,889.59

214,436,284.06 e) Current Deposits with SBI & Other Nationalised Banks
mšsš yeBkeâ Je Flej je<š^erÙeerke=âle yeBkeâebkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer 

138,811,127.64
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET
AS AT  

31ST MARCH, 2018
`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`
100,000.00 f) Fixed Deposits with State Co-op. Bank Ltd. 

mšsš keâes-Dee@he yeBkesâkeâ[erue cegole "sJeer
—

604,579,994.02 g) Fixed Deposits with SBI & Other Nationalised Banks 
mšsš yeBkeâ Je Flej je<š^erÙeerke=âle yeBkeâebkeâ[erue cegole "sJeer

288,894,783.11

8,583,868,652.09 8,789,169,414.60
SCHEDULE - "I"

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 
Flej yeBkeâebkeâ[erue efMeuuekeâ

1,140,260,774.58 a) Current Deposits with Other Banks
Flej yeBkeâebkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer 

1,367,411,182.18

568,882,752.00 b) Fixed Deposits with Other Banks 
Flej yeBkeâebkeâ[erue cegole "sJeer

298,308,477.00

1,709,143,526.58 1,665,719,659.18
SCHEDULE-'J'

INVESTMENTS / iegbleJeCetkeâ
43,681,125,947.93 (i) In Central & State Govt. Securities 

mejkeâejer jesKes (meWvš^ue ieJncesËš Je mšsš ieJncesËš)
41,724,541,042.41

Face Value `40,38,46,05,349.00  
(`41,09,62,85,349.00)
Market Value `41,66,63,59,813.19 
(`42,13,83,36,902.87 )
[Including `41,41,20,651.00 (`32,81,19,987.50)
Pledged for Treasury Operations ]

— (ii) Other Approved Securities / Flej efJeMJemle jesKes —

10,648,025.00 (iii) Shares of Co-operative Banks / menkeâejer yeBkesâÛes Yeeie 10,648,025.00

724,084,750.00 (iv) PSU Bonds & Other Bonds 
Heefy}keâ meskeäšj Deb[jšseEkeâie yeeB[med Je Flej yee@C[dme

822,327,450.00

4,999,200.00 (v) Shares of Subsidiary Co.-Cosmos eSolutions & Services 
Pvt Ltd & Shares of NPCI Pvt. Ltd./  Ghe kebâheveerÛes Yeeie- keâe@mecee@me 
F&-meesuÙetMevme DeeefCe mee|Jnmesmed Øee. efue. Je Sve.heer.meer.DeeÙe.Ûes MesDeme& 

4,999,200.00

3,312,976,207.00 (vi) Security Receipts / efmekeäÙegjeršer efjmeerHšme 2,822,082,582.00

47,733,834,129.93 45,384,598,299.41
SCHEDULE-"K"

ADVANCES / keâpex
1) Short Term Loan, Cash Credit, Overdraft and Bill 

Discounted of which secured against:
DeuHecegole keâpex- ke@âMe ›eâs[erš, DeesJnj[^eHeäš, nÏb[er KejsoerHewkeâer 
mebjef#ele keâpex

33,829,277.89 a) 	 Government & Other approved securities
	 mejkeâejer Je efvece mejkeâejer jesKes 

31,587,970.90

48,829,820,723.53 b) 	 Other Tangible Securities / Flej leejCe 53,426,316,509.85

323,444.79 c) 	 Personal Sureties
	 keâpe&oejeÛÙee JewÙeeqkeälekeâ peyeeyeoejer Je peeefcevekeâerJejerue

1,082,452.05

48,863,973,446.21 53,458,986,932.80
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET
AS AT  

31ST MARCH, 2018
`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`

SCHEDULE-"K" (Contd.)

ADVANCES / keâpex

i) 	 Amount overdue 
	 ` 4,962,159,214.56 Hewkeâer Lekeâyeekeâer

ii) 	 Amounts considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery 
` 4,906,604,021.35 ÙeeHewkeâer mebMeefÙele Je yeg[erle

2) Medium Term Loan of which Secured against:
ceOÙece cegole keâpee&Hewkeâer mebjef#ele keâpex

26,841,432.40 a) 	 Government & Other approved Securities
	 mejkeâejer Je efvece mejkeâejer jesKes 

27,831,586.52

18,867,094,878.33 b) 	 Other Tangible Securities / Flej leejCe 18,992,394,253.18

689,795,752.63 c) 	 Personal Sureties / keâpe&oejeÛÙee JewÙeefJeälekeâ peyeeyeoejer Je 
peeefcevekeâerJejerue 

	 (of the above amount receivable from State 
/ Central Govt. of India against Debt Waiver 
Scheme is `0.95 lac)

642,715,265.54

19,583,732,063.36 19,662,941,105.24

i) 	 Amount overdue /	Hewkeâer Lekeâyeekeâer
	 ` 974,368,822.65

ii) 	 Amounts considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery 
	 ` 1,336,055,186.28 / ÙeeHewkeâer mebMeefÙele Je yeg[erle

3) Long Term Loans of which Secured against:
oerIe& cegole keâpee&Hewkeâer mebjef#ele keâpex

— a) 	 Government & Other approved Securities 
	  mejkeâejer Je efvece mejkeâejer jesKes

—

38,927,383,482.57 b) 	 Other Tangible Securities / Flej leejCe 42,465,709,862.89

334,228,904.38 c) 	 Personal Suretieis / keâpe&oejeÛÙee JewÙeefJeälekeâ peyeeyeoejer Je 
peeefcevekeâerJejerue

403,903,627.28

39,261,612,386.95 42,869,613,490.17

 i) 	 Amount overdue 
	 ` 1,570,233,428.08
	 Hewkeâer Lekeâyeekeâer 

ii) 	 Amounts considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery 
	 ` 3,652,571,057.21 ÙeeHewkeâer mebMeefÙele Je yeg[erle

107,709,317,896.52  115,991,541,528.21



113th  Annual Report  2018–2019

41

Schedule “L”  
Fixed Assets 

(Amt. in `)
Fixed Assets Gross Block Depreciation  Net Block

Opening Additions /
Adjustment 
During Year

Revaluation Deletions 
During Year

Closing Upto 
31.03.2018

For The 
Year 18-19

Deletion Total WDV As On 
31.03.2018

WDV As On 
31.03.2019

1. 	 Freehold Land 2106907820.00 0 0 0 2106907820.00 0 0 0 0 2106907820.00 2106907820.00

2. 	 Buildings 4423073856.66 0 0 111623054.82 4311450801.84 663047056.66 76004269.29 28424433.55 710626892.40 3760026800.00 3600823909.44

3.	 Furniture & Fixtures 795498611.97 7909788.64 0 7591240.33 795817160.28 454197870.58 63770608.60 7387390.76 510581088.42 341300741.39 285236071.86

4.	 ATM 61649292.00 0.00 0.00 44348542.00 17300750.00 56605488.78 2381267.37 44348439.50 14638316.65 5043803.22 2662433.35

5. 	 Computers &  
Hardware

721048247.15 41265341.15 0.00 1053487.64 761260100.66 601117972.36 75418060.09 481806.03 676054226.42 119930274.79 85205874.24

6.	 Electric Items 548332736.16 9859451.24 0.00 8722999.23 549469188.17 275856109.11 47929979.18 7529895.77 316256192.52 272476627.05 233212995.65

7.	 Vehicle 34135914.69 1767775.08 0.00 5542011.00 30361678.77 30133340.67 1447612.01 5542002.00 26038950.68 4002574.02 4322728.09

8.	 Work In Progress 
including Capital 
Advance

3043575.02 11874313.50 0.00 3043575.02 11874313.50 0.00 0 0 0.00 3043575.02 11874313.50

	 Grand Total 8693690053.65 72676669.61 0.00 181924910.04 8584441813.22 2080957838.16 266951796.54 93713967.61 2254195667.09 6612732215.49 6330246146.13

* Depreciation of ` 5,66,13,773.88 is on Building Revaluation Surplus.		

SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2018

`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`
SCHEDULE-"M"

OTHER ASSETS / Flej ÙesCeer
25,645,560.84 a) Deposits / ef[Hee@Peeršmed 46,374,445.47

577,709.80 b) Clearing A/c / meceeMeesOeve Keeles 369,752.80
42,808,899.61 c) Tasalmat / lemeueceele 29,263,938.61
35,044,404.00 d) Adhesive Stamp & Silver Coins Stock 

DeOesefmeJn mš@cHe Je ÛeeboerÛÙee cegefõkeâe
27,837,990.00

1,775,555.27 e) Advance to Suppliers 
efJeefJeOe KejsoerHeesšer efouesueer DeeieeT jkeäkeâce

1,218,199.62

93,134,681.85 f) TDS - Invest. Interest, Others
šer[erSme jesKes JÙeepeeJejerue Je Flej GlHeVeeJejerue 

198,124,711.65

262,803,289.52 g) Other Receivable / Flej ÙesCeer 1,273,535,891.03
160,703,611.54 h) Landlord Rent Deposit 

peeiee ceeuekeâebvee peeiee Yee[sHeesšer efouesueer DeeieeT jkeäkeâce
161,824,691.54

7,254,287.16 i) Stationery Stock in hand / mšsMevejer efMeu}keâ 7,992,997.43
651,765,819.00 j) Income Tax / DeeÙekeâj 651,765,819.00

3,424,039,019.00 k) Advance Income Tax / DeeieeT DeeÙekeâj YejCee 3,424,039,019.00
7,932,303.24 l) Capital Exp. on Lease Premises 

Yee[ŸeebÛÙee peeieebmee"er keâsuesuee Yeeb[Jeueer KeÛe&
6,272,446.74

103,005,432.32 m) Exchange Profit Adjustment A/c 
SkeämÛeWpe HeÇe@efHeâš De@[dpesmšceWš DekeâeQš

—

2,012,170.90 n) Sundries / Flej 1,987,926.90
16,538,803.79 0) Other Assets / Flej De@mesšmed 17,286,698.61
1,180,947.00 p) Interest Equalisation claim Receivable from RBI

efjPeJn&& yeBkeâskeâ[tve efveÙee&leoejemee"er JÙeepeeheesšer ÙesCeejer jkeäkeâce 
246,575.00

29,682,790.13 q) Prepaid Expenses / DeeieeT KeÛe& 47,642,012.21
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2018

`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`
86,698,977.71 r) GST Input Tax Credit 79,100,897.99
30,600,000.00 s) Cash margin with CCIL meermeerDeeÙeSue keâ[erue ke@âMe ceeefpe&&ve 32,200,000.00

186,210,791.40 t) Position Account Merchant 566,729,213.22
80,000,000.00 u) Securities with Court (Amravati Bank)

keâesše&keâ[s pecee Demeuesues jesKes (DecejeJeleer yeBkeâ) 
80,000,000.00

638,916.34 v) DEAF Claim Receivable / [sHeâ keäuesce efjefmeJnsyeue 1,112,406.10
5,250,053,970.42 6,654,925,632.92

SCHEDULES TO PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
SCHEDULE- "N"

OTHER EXPENDITURE / Flej KeÛe&
4,608,854.51 i) Subscription & Contribution / Flej mebmLeebÛeer Jeie&Ceer 6,780,519.40

2,493,421.69 ii) Society Charges / mebmLee osKeYeeue KeÛe& 2,584,600.10

2,849,338.01 iii) Fuel Expenses on Vehicle / Jeenve FbOeve KeÛe& 3,103,181.68

4,598,456.20 iv) Cash Van Exps. / ke@âMe Jn@ve KeÛe& 4,360,862.90

1,917,201.41 v) Meeting Expenses / meYee KeÛe& 1,963,101.68

95,332,642.03 vi) Security Service Charges / megj#ee KeÛe& 97,323,962.26

9,562,441.59 vii) Clearing Charges / meceeMeesOeve KeÛe& 8,826,600.19

1,921,490.55 viii) Depository Expenditure / ef[Hee@efPešjer KeÛe& 2,737,066.54

59,296,119.50 ix) Outsourcing Expenses / DeeTšmeesefmeËie KeÛe& 48,421,033.74

1,226,354.89 x) Inauguration / Anniversary Day Expenses 
GodIeešve Je JeOee&Heveefove KeÛe&

1,136,857.20

28,273,315.78 xi) Legal Expenses & Court Expenses / efueieue Je keâesš& KeÛe& 42,093,017.16

77,895,228.14 xii) NFS & BANCS service charges 
SveSHeâSme Je ye@@bkeämed mee|Jnme KeÛe&

67,164,458.09

40,491,486.65 xiii) Bank Charges / ye@bkeâ Ûeepexmed 55,556,995.93

355,020.57 xiv) Board Of Directors Lodging / Boarding / Travelling 
Exps. / mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[U uee@eEpeie, yeesef[Ëie Je HeÇJeeme KeÛe&

429,632.84

1,735,326.90 xv) Staff Travelling , Lunch etc. / mesJekeâ HeÇJeeme Je Yeespeve F. KeÛe& 1,575,816.44

27,286,154.92 xvi) Sundries / Flej KeÛe& 32,593,029.71

11,950,344.36 xvii) Transaction Charges (CCIL)  
meer.meer.DeeÙe.Sue. JÙeJenej Ûeepexme

6,160,906.00

— xviii) Provision for Cyber Attack / Flej ÙesCes lejleto 502,051,798.00

3,573,094.98 xix) Charges for Market View Software
ceekex&âš J¢et mee@HeäšJesDej Ûeepex&med 

5,141,954.51

20,709,528.84 xx) Visa Charges / efJnmee Ûeepexmed 21,130,951.13

101,617,268.70 xxi) IT Services Consultancy & Maintenance Charges 
DeeÙe.šer. keâvmeušvmeer Je cesšWvevme KeÛe&

72,194,613.52

8,013,263.80 xxii) Tax & Other Consultancy Charges / š@keäme Je Flej 
keâvmeušvmeer KeÛe&

3,802,322.06

10,064,323.53 xxiii) Trusteeship Fee - ARC / š^mšerefMeHe Heâer- SDeejmeer 8,308,457.06

8,339,659.74 xxiv) Record Keeping / Data Maintenance Expenses
jskeâe[& efkeâefHebie/[sše ceWšsvevme KeÛe&

9,632,701.56
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SCHEDULE "Q"

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019 AND 
BALANCE SHEET AS ON EVEN DATE.

I.	 1.	 OVERVIEW

		  The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. (“the bank”) was established on 18th January 1906. The bank is a multi-state 
scheduled co-operative bank having 140 branches in 7 states as on 31st March, 2019. The Bank is licensed by the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as ‘Authorized Dealers’ in Foreign Exchange transactions under category–1.

	 2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

		  The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on accrual basis 
of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and comply with generally accepted accounting principles in India, statutory 
requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act 1949, and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act 2002, 
and rules made there under, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, 
the Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and current practices 
prevailing within the banking industry in India.

SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2018

`

PARTICULARS
leheMeerue

AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2019

`
5,352,387.76 xxv) ATM/SWIFT/Internet Banking/Mobile Banking/

Rupay Charges / SšerSce/efmJeHeäš/Fbšjvesš ye@efkebâie/ceesyeeF&ue 
yeBefkeâie/¤Hes Ûeepexme 

10,823,401.07

4,179,108.98 xxvi) Financial Inclusion & Business Promotion Expenses 
/ efJeòeerÙe meceeJesMeve Je JÙeJemeeÙe Je=æer KeÛe&

3,656,440.12

 533,641,834.03 1,019,554,280.89
 SCHEDULE- "O"

PROVISION FOR ASSETS De@mesšdmee"er lejleto
2,299,898,097.09 a) Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve 

yeg[erle Je mebMeefÙele keâpe& efveOeer
1,335,541,573.69

— b) Contingent Prov. Against Standard Assets
mšB[[& De@mesšmedJejerue mebYeeJÙe lejleto

22,407,937.00

901,553,156.87 c) Investment Depreciation Reserve
iegbleJeCetkeâ IemeeNÙeemee"er mebYeeJÙe lejleto

210,813,832.08

37,915,316.65 d) Provision for Restructured Assets
efjmš^keäÛe[& De@mesšmedJejerue lejleto

30,976,900.52

— e) Provision for Investment Diminution
iegbleJeCetkeâ ef[cÙegefveMevemee"er lejleto

1,000,000.00

3,239,366,570.61 1,600,740,243.29
SCHEDULE- "P"

 INCOME FROM INTEREST & DISCOUNT 
JÙeepe Je keâmej GlHeVe

10,491,988,914.84 1) Interest on Loans and Advances / keâpee&Jejerue JÙeepe 10,873,245,966.55 
4,120,984,666.89 2) Interest from Investments / iegbleJeCetkeâerJejerue JÙeepe 3,753,097,401.64 

1,269,300.00 3) Dividend on Shares / ueeYeebMe 1,169,300.00 
2,500,000.00 4) Dividend on Shares of Subsidiary Company

GHe kebâHeveerceOeerue YeeieebJej efceUeuesuee ueeYeebMe
—

14,616,742,881.73 14,627,512,668.19 
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	 3. 	 USE OF ESTIMATES

		  The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues 
and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
prudent and reasonable. Any revision to the accounting estimates is recognized prospectively.

II.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 1.	 Accounting Convention

		  The financial statements are drawn up in accordance with historical cost convention and ongoing concern basis.

	 2.	 Revenue Recognition

		  Items of income are accounted on accrual basis except for the following: -

		  i.	 Interest and other income on Advances classified as ‘Non-performing assets’ is recognized to the extent realized, 
as per the directive issued by the RBI. Unrealized interest on non-performing advances is shown under ‘Overdue 
Interest Reserve’ and as ‘Interest Receivable’ on liability side and asset side respectively.

		  ii.	 Commission and Exchange are fully recognized as income on realization.

		  iii.	 Locker Rent is recognized on receipt basis, to the extent of income accrued and due.

		  iv.	 Dividend is recognized as income when right to receive payment is established by the date of Balance Sheet.

		  v.	 Interest on Government Securities, debentures and other fixed income securities is recognized on a time proportion 
basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

	 3.	 Investments

		  a.	 The Bank has classified the investments in accordance with the RBI guidelines applicable to Urban Co-Operative 
Banks. Accordingly, classification of investments for the purpose of valuation is done under the following categories:

			   i)	 Held to Maturity (HTM)

			   ii)	 Available for Sale (AFS)

			   iii)	 Held for Trading ( HFT)

		  b.	 Investments are classified under following seven heads for disclosure in Balance Sheet as per RBI guidelines –

			   i.	 Central & State Government Securities

			   ii.	 Other Approved Securities

			   iii.	 Shares of Co-op. Banks

			   iv.	 Shares in Subsidiary Company and other shares in Corporates

			   v.	 PSU Bonds

			   vi.	 Bonds in other Institutions

			   vii.	 Security Receipts

		  c.	 Investments purchased under HTM category are accounted at cost. Premium, if any, on investments under HTM 
category is amortized over the residual life of the investment.
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	 d.	 Investments under “HFT” and “AFS” categories are marked to market on the basis of guidelines issued by the RBI. While 
net depreciation, if any, under each of the categories has been provided for, and net appreciation, if any, has been ignored.

	 e.	 For the purpose of valuation, market value in the case of Central and State Government securities, PSU bonds & 
Other bonds is determined as per RBI guidelines on the basis of the “Yield to Maturity” indicated by Primary Dealers 
Association of India (PDAI)/ Fixed Income and Money Market Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA), jointly with 
Financial Benchmark India Pvt. Ltd (FBIL).

	 f.	 Shares of co-operative Banks & subsidiary company are valued at cost. Full provision is made for investment in shares 
of co-operative societies, in case dividend is not declared or financial position is not available or which have gone into 
liquidation.

	 g.	 Investments in quoted mutual funds are valued as per stock exchange quotations. Investments in non-quoted mutual 
funds are valued in line with RBI guidelines on the basis of latest repurchase price declared by mutual funds or Net Asset 
Value (NAV).

	 h.	 Security receipts are recognized at the lower of the redemption value of the security receipts and the NBV of the financial 
asset. The same are valued on the basis of the Net Asset Value (NAV), obtained from SC / RC from time to time.

	 i.	 The transfer of investments from one category to another is done at lower of the acquisition cost/book value/market 
value on the date of transfer and the depreciation, if any, fully provided for.

	 j.	 Treasury Bills under all the classifications are shown at carrying cost.

	 k.	 Broken period interest on debt instruments is treated as revenue item. Brokerage, Commission etc. pertaining to 
investments paid at the time of acquisition is charged to revenue.

	 l.	 The investments are accounted for on the settlement date.

	 m.	 Overdue Interest if any in respect of non performing investments is provided under ‘Overdue Interest Reserve’ on 
investments.

	 n.	 Transactions under Repo / Reverse Repo, Liquidity Adjustment Facility and CBLO/Tri-Party Repo(TREPS)

		  Balance under Repo account, CBLO, TREPS and LAF is reported under Borrowings. Lending under Reverse Repo, LAF 
& TREPS is shown under Money at call and short notice. Accounting of the abovementioned transactions is done as per 
RBI monitory policy.

	 4.	 Advances & Provision for Advances

		  a.	 Advances are disclosed net of write off & further disclosed into short term, medium term & long term.

		  b.	 Advances are classified into Standard, Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

		  c.	 Provision on Advances categorized under Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets is made in accordance with the 
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India. In addition, a general provision is made on following categories of 
standard assets as per RBI guidelines, as under:

Category Provision (%)
Direct advances to Agricultural and SME Sectors 0.25
Commercial Real estate loans 1.00
CRE – RH 0.75
Other advances 0.40
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		  d.	 Provision is made for restructured accounts in accordance with RBI guidelines which require diminution in the fair 
value of assets to be provided for at the time of restructuring.

	 5.	 Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) & depreciation:

		  a.	 Property Plant and Equipment other than premises of the bank and merged banks are stated in balance-sheet 
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price 
including non-refundable purchase taxes and any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for 
its intended use after deducting trade discount and rebates. Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use 
is capitalized only when it increases the future benefit/ functioning capability from / of such assets.

		  b.	 i) 	 Premises are carried at revalued amount, being fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses in accordance with AS 10 (Revised) 
PPE issued by ICAI. Revaluations made with sufficient regularity as decided by the management as per the 
valuation reports of Registered Government Approved Valuers to ensure that the carrying amount does not 
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.

			   ii) 	 The surplus arising out of revaluation of premises carried out is credited to the Revaluation Surplus in the 
Balance Sheet.

			   iii) 	 In respect of premises kept in use by the bank, yearly amortization of revaluation surplus of the premises is 
debited to Profit and Loss account along with depreciation on original cost of premises and credited to premises 
account. Correspondingly, yearly amortization of revaluation surplus of the premises is debited to revaluation 
surplus with identical credit to General Reserve. In case of de-recognition of asset, the revaluation surplus is 
transferred to respective asset.

		  c.	 Premises of the merged bank are recorded at fair value upon merger and Property plant and equipment other than 
premises are recorded at book value as on date of merger as per Due Diligence Report.

		  d.	 Premises are depreciated over the residual life of premises not exceeding 60 years. Accordingly, the bank has a 
policy of assessing the residual life of premises periodically to present the realistic value of premises from time to 
time.

		  e.	 Subsequent costs are included in carrying amount of asset or recognized as separate asset, as appropriate only 
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be 
measured reliably.

		  f.	 Depreciation:

			   Depreciation on PPE is recognized based on cost of asset less their residual values over their useful lives, using 
the Straight Line Method. The useful life of Property, plant and equipment is considered as per the management 
estimate. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the each 
accounting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on prospective basis. Depreciation on 
fixed asset is provided on day wise basis.

			   The estimated useful lives of PPE and depreciation rates considering the useful life of an individual asset as 
determined by the management is as follows:
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Sr. 
No.

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives of an  
individual Asset

Depreciation rate per 
 annum

1  Building 60 —*
2 Furniture & fixtures 10 10%
3 Vehicles 6.7 15%
4 Electrical items 10 10%
5 ATM 5 20%
6 Computer hardware 3 33.33%

(* In case of Building, the depreciation is calculated on the remaining useful life of respective premises)

		  g.	 The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period 
over which the assets are likely to be used. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experiences and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

		  h.	 Whenever there is a revision in the estimated useful life of the asset, the unamortized depreciable amount is 
charged over the revised remaining useful life of the said asset.

		  i.	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognized in profit and loss.

		  j.	 The Cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under “Capital work in progress”.

		  k.	 Freehold land is not depreciated.

		  l.	 Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease.

		  m.	 Capital expenditure on leasehold land & building is amortized over a period of 10 years.

		  n.	 Stamp duty and registration charges on leasehold premises are amortize over the period of lease.

		  o.	 The items of Property, Plant & Equipment whose written down value has become NIL due to charge of depreciation 
over the years are stated at nominal value of Re. 1/- to facilitate their identification.

		  p.	 Impairment of PPE

			   i.	 The Bank assesses at each Balance sheet date whether there is any such indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the bank estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable amount 
of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account.

	 6.	 Foreign Currency Transactions – AS 11

		  a.	 The bank has no foreign branches. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the rates 
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the Balance 
Sheet date at rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI). All gains/ losses resulting 
from year-end revaluations are recognized in the Profit and Loss account.

		  b.	 Outstanding forward exchange contracts and spot exchange contracts are revalued at year-end exchange rates 
notified by FEDAI for specified maturities. The resulting gains/losses on revaluation are included in the Profit and 
Loss account in accordance with RBI/FEDAI guidelines.
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		  c.	 Contingent liabilities in foreign currencies on account of guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other 
obligations are recognized at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet date as notified by FEDAI.

	 7.	 Accounting for Amalgamation -AS 14

		  Accounting for Amalgamation in case of amalgamated Banks with the Bank is carried out as per the guidelines issued 
by the RBI, from time to time in consonance with AS14 issued by ICAI as under:

		  A.	 Where no consideration is paid but the book value of the assets is less than the book value of liabilities taken over, 
the excess of the book value of liabilities over the book value of the assets taken over is considered as goodwill. 
In accordance with the RBI circular RBI/2005-06/217 UBD.BPD.PCB.Cir.18/ 09.16.901/2005-06, the goodwill is 
amortized over a period of five years in equal installments. In case of mergers before that date, the bank followed 
the policy of making 100% provision against the goodwill over the period of 5 years.

		  B.	 Where no consideration is paid, but the book value of the assets taken over is greater than the book value of the 
liabilities taken over, the excess of the book value of assets over the book value of the liabilities is considered as 
Capital Reserves.

		  C.	 Additional expenses incurred on account of recovery in respect of merged banks after the year of merger are 
debited to Goodwill / Capital Reserve account. The said portion of goodwill is amortized in remaining period out of 
5 years from the year of merger.

	 8.	 Employee Benefits – AS 15

		  a)	 Provident Fund:

			   It is a defined contribution scheme. The eligible employees of the bank are entitled to receive benefits under the 
Provident Fund, where, both the employee and the bank contribute monthly at a stipulated rate to the government 
provident fund. The bank has no liability for future provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution and 
recognizes such contributions as an expense to Profit and Loss account in the period in which employee renders 
the related service.

		  b)	 Gratuity:

			   The bank provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan, covering all employees. The plan provides for 
lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving 
for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity 
Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

			   The bank funds for the plan asset in the form of qualifying insurance policy. The fair value of plan asset is reduced 
from the gross obligation under the defined benefits plans to recognize the net obligation of the gratuity plan in the 
Balance Sheet as liability, in accordance with AS-15 ‘Employee Benefits’. Actuarial gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period in which they arise.

		  c)	 Leave Encashment:

			   Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee 
benefit. The bank measures the cost of such absences at the amount it expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The accumulated leave expected to be carried forward 
beyond twelve months is Other Long-term Employee Benefit. The same is provided for based on the actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred.
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	 9.	 Segment Reporting – AS 17 :

		  In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Segment Reporting is made as under:

		  i)	 Treasury includes all investment portfolio, profit/loss on sale of investments, profit/loss on foreign exchange 	
transactions, equities and money market operations. The expenses of this segment consist of interest expenses on 
funds borrowed from external sources as well as internal sources and depreciation/amortization of premium on Held 
to Maturity category investments.

		  ii)	 Other Banking Operations include all other operations not covered under Treasury operations.

			   Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting 
the financial statements of the bank as a whole.

	 10.	 Operating Lease – AS 19 :

		  Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account over the lease term 
in accordance with the AS-19 – Leases, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 11.	 Earning Per Share - AS 20:

		  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of shares is calculated on monthly basis.

		  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

	 12.	 Taxation – AS - 22

		  i.	 Tax expense comprises both deferred and current taxes. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred Income Tax reflect the 
impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal 
of timing differences of earlier years.

		  ii.	 Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences between taxable income & 
accounting income that originate in one period and is capable of reversal in subsequent period. DTA is recognized 
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that asset can be realized in future. Income of unabsorbed 
depreciation, carried forward losses under tax laws, deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that there 
is virtual certainty supporting by convincing evidences. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and 
appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.

		  iii.	 Current tax is debited to the Profit and Loss account. The impact of changes in DTA and DTL is recognized in the 
Profit and Loss account.

		  iv.	 DTAs are reassessed at each reporting date, based upon management’s judgment as to whether the realization is 
reasonably certain.

	 13.	 Intangible Assets: AS 26

		  An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible asset is measured initially 
at cost and stated in balance-sheet at historical cost less accumulated amortization.
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		  Amortization

		  Amortization of intangible assets is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM) @ 33.33% in line with the RBI circular 
RBI/2005-06/286 UBD.BPD.PCB Cir. No. 28/12.05.001/2005-06.

	 14.	 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Asset- AS 29

		  A provision is recognized when Bank has a present obligation as a result of past event where it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value except in case of 
decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities that are recognized as cost of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
are determined based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet 
date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

		  A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is:

		  a)	 A possible obligation arising from a past event, the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Bank; or

		  b)	 A present obligation arising from a past event which is not recognized, as it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
of the obligation cannot be made.

			   When there is a possible or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

III.	 NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

	 1.	 Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Deposits:

		  In accordance with the approval granted by RBI vide its letter no. DCBS.MRO.BSS II/4145/12.07.047/2018-19 dated  
1st March 2019 and Joint Secretary and Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies vide its letter ref. no. R-11017/44/2012- 
L & M (vol. III) dated 25th March 2019, the bank has raised ` 12.99 crores by way of Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) 
Deposits during the year. Further, the Bank has serviced `58.20 crores as total interest on LTDs raised till date.

	 2.	 Incidence of Cyber attack and consequential withdrawal from Reserve for Unforeseen Losses

		  During the current FY 2018-19, Cyber attack took place on payment gateway of the ATM and SWIFT system of the bank. 
Total amount involved in the said attack is of `100.22 Crores including exchange loss on payment settlement.

		  The bank has promptly reported about this fraud to Reserve Bank of India and simultaneously filed FIR with Police.

		  Considering the magnitude of fraud in terms of value as well as Geographical spread in 28 countries Special Investigation 
Team was formed under the supervision of IG Maharashtra State to take the investigation on fast track with the help 
of DCP, Cyber Crime Cell, Pune. The bank has also taken necessary corrective measures to strengthen the overall IT 
security framework.

		  Reserve Bank of India on the request of the bank accorded permission to provide 50% of the amount of loss by 
31.03.2019. Accordingly, the bank has debited `50.20 crores to Profit & Loss A/c. representing provision towards 50% 
of loss. The situation being unprecedented and unforeseen, the bank withdrawn `23.71 Crores from 'Reserve for 
Unforeseen Losses' and the same has been credited to the Profit & Loss Account, 'below the line' to replenish the same.

	 3.	 The bank has written off an amount of `15455.30 Lakhs (` 20975.35 Lakhs for F.Y.2017-18) towards Bad debts, which 
is approved by the Board of Directors. The said non-performing assets had been classified as Doubtful/ Loss Assets and 
had been fully provided for.
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	 4.	 Suppliers/Service providers covered under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, have not furnished 
the information regarding filing of necessary memorandum with the appropriate authority. As such, information relating 
to cases of delays in payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such payments, cannot be 
given.

	 5.	 The income for Bank assurance business for the period April 2018 to March 2019 is as follows -

 (` in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Nature of Income 2018-19 2017-18

1. From selling Life Insurance Policies 95.04 53.58
2. From selling Non-Life Insurance Policies 36.89 55.03
3. From selling Mutual Fund Products 57.96 53.13

Total 189.89 161.74

	 6.	 Restructured Loans:

		  Details of loans subjected to restructuring as on 31 March 2019 are given below:
(` in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars CDR 
Mechanism

Housing
Loans

SME Debt 
Restructuring

Others

1 Standard advances 
restructured

No. of Borrowers — —
(1)

8
(6)

—

Amount outstanding — 0.00
(16.09)

16183.37
(10288.75)

—

Diminution in the fair 
value

— — — —

2 Sub-standard advances 
restructured

No. of Borrowers — — 1
(4)

—

Amount outstanding — — 1677.97
(4431.44)

—

Diminution in the fair 
value

— — — —

3 Doubtful advances 
restructured

No. of Borrowers — — 4
(5)

—

Amount outstanding — — 11599.99
(10523.84)

—

Diminution in the fair 
value

— — 309.77
(379.16)

—

Total No. of Borrowers — —
(1)

13
(15)

—

Amount 
outstanding 

— —
(16.09)

29461.33
(25,244.03)

—

Diminution in the 
fair value 

— 0.00 309.77
(379.16)

—

		   (Figures in bracket are of previous year)
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		  These restructured loans constitute about 2.54% (2.34%) of the total advances as at 31-03-2019.

		  Amount and number of accounts in respect of which applications received and under process, but the restructuring 
packages have not yet been approved NIL (NIL) as on 31-03-2019

		  The bank has not sanctioned any restructuring proposals to MSME as per RBI Circular Ref No. DBR.No.BP.
VC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated 01.01.2019. Hence, separate disclosure prescribed by the said circular is not given.

	 7.	 The Bank has neither sold any assets to ARCs and nor purchased any Non-Banking Assets during the current year as 
well as previous year.

	 8.	 Prior Period Items - AS 5

		  There are no items of material significance in the prior period account requiring disclosure.

	 9.	 Gain(Loss) on Foreign Exchange Transactions – AS 11 :

		   The bank has revalued all the outstanding Open Foreign Currency Positions and all the outstanding Forward as well 
as Spot Exchange Contracts, as per FEDAI rates as on the date of Balance Sheet and net exchange profit of ` 910.10 
Lakhs (`478.07 Lakhs) representing net effect of realized and revalued exchange earnings is credited to Profit & Loss 
account in accordance with AS-11 issued by ICAI.

	 10.	 Accounting for Amalgamation.( AS 14 ) :

		  Merger of Co-operative Bank of Ahmedabad Ltd.:

		  As per the merger scheme, there is no period limit for recovery of loss on merger in case of Co-op Bank of Ahmedabad 
Ltd (CBA). During the year, on comparison of losses provided up to financial year 2017-18 with credits received on 
account of recovery, the excess provision of ̀  10.31 Lakhs (` 96.52 for FY 2017-18) on account of amortization of losses 
is written back to profit and loss account, the details of which are as under.

 (` in Lakh)

Bank Name Accumulated 
losses on 

merger

Net credit 
to losses 
on A/C of 
Recovery 

etc.

Losses 
C/F to be 
provided

Loss 
Provided 

upto 
2017-18

Excess 
Provided w/
back during 

the year  
2018-19

Accumulated 
loss pending 

to be Provided 
over the next 

year

Co-Op. Bank of 
Ahmedabad Ltd.

2207.38
(2207.38)

1830.09
(1819.78)

377.29
(387.60)

387.60
(484.12)

-10.31
(96.52)

—

Total 2207.38 1830.09 377.29 387.60 -10.31 —

 (Figures in bracket are of previous year)

		  The balance loss of ` 377.29 lakhs in respect of CBA will be adjusted against the further recovery received as there is 
no time limit prescribed for such recovery of loss in merger scheme of CBA.

	 11.	 Employee Benefits – (AS - 15)

		  The bank has defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible 
for a gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The bank 
funds for the plan asset in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

		  The liability towards leave encashment and Gratuity is assessed on the basis of actuarial valuation report of Actuary.
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		  Disclosures required by AS-15 are given as under:
 (` in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Gratuity Leave
Encashment

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18
Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity 
obligations

I Discount Rate 7.76% 7.78% 7.76% 7.78%
II Expected return on plan assets 7.76% 7.78% 0.00% 0.00%
III Salary Escalation rate 4% 4% 4% 4%

IV Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
Opening Present value of obligation 5010.88 4521.29 1413.86 1421.22
Interest cost 389.85 328.69 109.99 103.32
Current service cost 282.23 254.28 212.18 214.57
Past service cost — 346.22 — —
Liability transfer in acquisition — — 7.79 —
Benefits paid -581.55 -402.77 -629.50 -558.76
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 395.48 36.83 422.93 233.51
Closing Present value of obligation 5496.89 5010.88 1537.25 1413.86

V Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the fair value of the plan assets:
Opening Fair value of plan assets 4730.83 3746.85 — —
Expected return on plan assets 368.06 272.40 — —
Contributions 294.41 1080.06 — —
Transfer from other entity — — — —
Benefits paid -581.55 -402.77 — —
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets -19.40 34.28 — —
Closing Fair value of plan assets 4792.35 4730.82 — —

VI Amount recognized in balance sheet:
Present value of obligation as at 5496.89 5010.88 1537.25 1413.86
Fair value of plan assets as at -4792.35 -4730.82 — —
(Assets) / liability as at 704.54 280.06 1537.92 1413.86

VII Expenses recognized in profit and loss account:
Current service cost 282.23 254.28 212.18 214.57
Past service cost — 346.22 — —
Interest cost 389.85 328.70 109.99 103.32
Expected Return of Plan Assets -368.06 -272.40 — —
Net actuarial (gain) / loss 414.88 -71.11 422.93 233.51
Expenses recognized in P & L account included in Salaries, 
Allowances, PF contribution and Gratuity etc.

718.90 585.69 745.11 551.40

VIII Category of fair value of Plan Assets: 100% 100% — —
- Insured managed funds
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	 12.	 Primary Segment Reporting (By Business Segments)– (AS- 17)

 (` in Lakh)

 Particulars Treasury Other Banking 
Operations

Total

Revenue (before Exceptional items) 42889.32
(52085.96) 

139173.88 
(135788.25)

182063.20
(187874.21)

Cost 42116.62 
 (56532.65) 

120284.47
(108689.20)

162401.09
(165221.85)

Result 772.70 
 (-4446.69) 

18889.41
(27099.05)

19662.11
(22652.36)

Unallocated Expenses — — 16007.40
(32393.67)

Operating Profit (PBT) —
—

3654.71
(-9741.31)

Income Taxes including Deferred Tax —
—

—
—

1471.68
(3168.27)

Reversal of Excess IFR —
—

—
—

—
—

Previous year's BDDR —
—

—
—

—
—

Net Profit / Loss (-) —
—

—
—

2183.03
(-6573.03)

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 476656.22

(503821.28)
 1439266.67

(1314653.97)
1915922.89

(1818475.25)
Unallocated Assets —

—
—
—

49175.40
(50701.25)

Total Assets —
—

—
—

1965098.29
(1869176.50)

Segment Liabilities 23494.75
(38414.57)

1726179.27
(1620131.00)

1749674.02
(1658545.57)

Unallocated Liabilities —
—

—
—

215424.27
(210630.93)

Total Liabilities —
—

—
—

1965098.29
(1869176.50)

 (Figures in the bracket are of previous year i.e. 2017-18)

		  These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, the class of customers for the 
products or services, different risks and returns attributable to them, organizational structure and internal management 
information system.

		   Types of products and services in each business segment:-

		  a) 	 Treasury: Dealing Operations in Forex / Money Market Instruments.

		  b)	  Other Banking Operations: Foreign and Local Finance / Services
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		  Secondary Segment Information: Bank operates only in one geographical area, hence separate information regarding 
secondary segment i.e. geographical segment is not given.

	 13.	 Related Party Disclosures (AS-18)

		  a.	 Related Party disclosures:

(` in Lakh)

Items / Related Party Cosmos E Solutions & Services 
Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary Company)

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Transactions-
1 Availment of services/Capital Purchases

Towards Services 861.23 1233.43
Towards Capital Purchases 16.70 0.00

2 Interest paid & accrued by bank on Fixed Deposit during the year 7.69 0.00
3 Dividend received 0.00 25.00
4 Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00
Balances-
1 Current account with Bank 180.86 77.67

Maximum Balance maintained in Current account with Bank 247.53 242.82
2 Investment in Subsidiary 25.00 25.00

		  b.	 The Bank is a Co-operative Society under the Multi–State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and there are no 
related parties requiring a disclosure under Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18) issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, other than Key Management Personnel, Mr. Suhas Gokhale, Managing Director from 
01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019. However, in terms of RBI circular dated 29th March, 2003, he being a single party under 
the category, no further details thereon need to be disclosed.

	 14.	 Operating lease comprises leasing of office premises, ATM and data center site storage equipment (AS-19)

(` in Lakh)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Minimum lease payments payable at the end of the year:
- Not later than one year 3430.34 3650.50
- Later than one year and not later than five years 11808.04 13797.19
- Later than five years 17189.24 21576.48
Total minimum lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for 
the year. 

3695.20 3493.94

Total of minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under  
non-cancelable sub-lease

N.A. N.A.

Sub-lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for the year. N.A. N.A.
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	 15.	 Earnings Per share (AS – 20):

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

A Profit/Loss for the year attributable to shareholders (`)- 21,83,03,164.23 (-) 657302775.00
B Total number of Equity shares at the end of year 34447486.00 37163802.00
C Weighted avg. number of shares of ` 100/- each for the purpose of 

computing Basic Earnings per share 
35277954.17 37567649.75

D Basic Earnings per share (A / C) (`) 6.19 (-) 17.50
E Weighted avg. number of shares of ` 100/- each for the purpose of 

computing diluted Earnings per share
35277954.17 37567649.75

F Diluted Earnings per share 6.19 (-) 17.50

	 16.	 Consolidated Financial Statements (AS 21)

		  Although Bank has wholly owned subsidiary company, the compliance of Accounting Standard 21 (AS 21) regarding 
Consolidated Financial Statements is not applicable to the bank, since the Statute- Multistate Co-operative Societies 
Act, 2002 does not specifically require such disclosure mandatorily, as per AS 21 issued by ICAI.

	 17.	 Deferred Tax (AS – 22)

		  The major components of Deferred Tax for the year are as under:
 (` in Lakh)

Deferred Tax Assets 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
1. Provision for BDDR 24870.47 25642.61
2. Leave encashment Provision 1537.25 1413.86
3. Carry Forward Losses under Tax Laws 1721.86 262.36
4. Expenses disallowed U/s 40(a)(ia) 144.98 94.05
5. Provision for Re-structured Assets 688.92 —
6. Amortization of premium 283.72 —
Sub Total (A) 29247.20 27412.88
Deferred Tax Liability
1. Difference in W.D.V. 4488.60 4184.31
2. Depreciation on HTM securities 8693.51 9654.13
3. Provision for Cyber Loss 5011.14 —
Sub Total (B) 18193.25 13838.44
Total (A-B) 11053.95 13574.44
Deferred Tax Asset 3862.69 4697.84

		  The application of Deferred Tax has resulted in a net debit of `1294.66 Lakhs to the Profit and Loss Account for the year 
ended 31st March, 2019. The closing Deferred Tax Asset (net) of ` 3,862.69 Lakhs shown separately in the Balance 
Sheet is inclusive of DTA of ` 459.51 lakhs pertaining to additional NPA as instructed by RBI.

		  The Bank has profit as per books of accounts but loss as per income tax, hence the Bank has recognized Deferred Tax 
Asset pertaining to carry forward of business losses of ` 1721.86 lakhs under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The losses 
pertain only to current financial year and the bank does not have history of such losses. The business plan of the Bank 
clearly establish the virtual certainty that sufficient taxable income would be generated for absorption of carried forward 
losses under Tax laws and thus for reversal of the Deferred Tax Asset so recognized.
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	 18.	 Details of computer software other than internally generated- (AS– 26):

		  The details of computer software included in the Fixed Assets block of “Computer & Hardware” are as follows:

 (` in Lakh)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Opening Balance of Software (Intangible assets) 967.20 787.16
Add: Additions during the year 271.10 816.46
Less: Amortization during the year 595.81 636.42
Closing Balance of Software (Intangible assets) 642.49 967.20

	 19.	 Impairment of Assets - AS 28:

		  The Bank has ascertained that there is no material impairment of any of its assets and as such no provision under 
Accounting Standard 28 issued by the ICAI is required.

	 20.	 Contingent Liabilities AS -29:

		  a)	 Contingent liabilities in respect of Bank guarantees, Letters of credit, Forward contracts etc.

 (` in Lakh)

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Bank Guarantees 81635.11 67175.72
Letters of Credit ( LC + Buyer’s Credit) 25399.61 43601.95
Forward Exchange contracts Purchase / Sale 13038.43 23694.96
Others – Depositors’ Education Awareness Fund 3371.26 2932.97
Total 123444.41 137405.60

		  b)	 Claims not acknowledged as debts:

 (` in Lakh)

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
On account of Income tax Demand (Gross) 9373.68 9629.19
On account of Service Tax 730.77 730.77

			   •	 The Bank has paid `6916.25 lakhs (`6517.28 lakh) against the above income tax demands raised by the 
income tax department for various assessment years. The Bank has contested this demands at various 
appellate levels and bank is hopeful of getting substantial relief in respect thereto.

			   •	 The bank has paid `54.81 lakhs during the FY 2018-19 against the Service Tax demands for FY 2017-18.

		  c)	 Contingent Liabilities – Others

			   In terms of DBOD Circular No. DEAF Cell.BC.114/30.01.002/2013-14 dated May 27, 2014, the Bank has transferred 
all credit balances amounting to ` 500.06 lakhs (as mentioned in sub-clause i) to viii) in Clause 3 of DEAF Scheme 
2014) maintained with the Bank which have not been in operation for 10 years or more. The required disclosure as 
per the said circular is as under:
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 (` in Lakh)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 2932.97 2649.92
Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 500.06 373.96
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 72.06 90.92
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 3360.97 2932.97

			   The Bank has paid `72.06 lakhs to customers / depositors towards the said deposits which have remained 
unclaimed for 10 years or more and also claimed refund of the said amount from RBI in terms of the said scheme.

	 21.	 Capital charge on market risk:

		   Market Risk in Trading Book-Standardized Modified Duration Approach.

		  Qualitative Disclosures:

		  Strategies and Processes:-

		  	 Investment Policy which includes Market Risk Management is in line with the RBI regulations vide circular  
UBD. BPD. (PCB).Cir. No. 42 /09.11.600/2009-10 dated February 8, 2010 and business requirements.

		  	 The overall objective of market risk management is to enhance profitability by improving the bank’s competitive 
advantage and reducing loss from all types of market risk loss events.

			   Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting /Measurement Systems:-

		  	 The Bank has regulatory/internal limits for various Instruments in place.

		  	 Various exposure limits for market risk management such as Overnight limit, VaR limit, Daylight limit, Aggregate 
Gap limit, Investment limit etc. are in place.

		  	 The portfolio covered by Standardized Modified Duration Approach for computation of Capital Charge for Market 
Risk includes investment portfolio held under HFT and AFS and Forex Open positions.

		  Quantitative Disclosures:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Amount of 
Capital required

Interest Rate Risk 2320.98
Equity Position Risk 0.00
Foreign Exchange Risk 40.50

	 22.	 Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the presentation of the 
accounts of the current year.
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IV. 	 Disclosure Requirements as Per RBI Guidelines -

	 Disclosure as per RBI Circular No. UBD.CO.BPD. (PCB) CIR. NO. 52/12.05.001/2013-14 DATED 25.03.2014:

 (` in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

1. Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) 12.89% 13.95%
2. Movement of CRAR -1.06% -1.43%

Risk Weighted assets 1220119.41 1203366.61
3. A Values of Investments are as under:

Total Face Value (of investments) 440455.46 451481.19
Total Book Value (of investments) 453845.98 477338.34
Total Market Value (of investments) 448596.56 456209.70

	 3. B. Composition of Non-SLR Investments*as on 31.03.2019:

(` in crore)

Sr. 
No.

Issuer Amount Extent of ‘below 
Investment 

grade’ Securities

Extent of 
‘unrated 

securities’

Extent of 
‘unlisted’ 
securities

1 PSUs 0.00 (0.00) Nil Nil Nil
2 FIs 62.23

(52.41)
Nil Nil Nil

3 Public & Private Banks 20.00
(20.00)

Nil Nil Nil

4 Mutual Fund 0.00 
0.00

Nil Nil Nil

5 Others-(Security Receipts under ARC Rs 
282.21 Crores and Shares Rs 1.56 Crores)

283.77
(332.86)

Nil Nil 1.56
(1.56)

Total 366.00
(405.27)

Nil Nil 1.56
(1.56)

6 #Provision held  towards depreciation 46.71
(129.48)

— — —

		  *- Mutual funds under the Composition of Non-SLR Investments as on 31.03.2019 - NIL (NIL)
		   Figures in bracket are of previous year

	  3. C. Non performing Non-SLR Investments

(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Opening Balance 0.01 0.01
Additions during the year 0.10 0.00
Reductions during the above period 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 0.11 0.01
Total provisions held 0.11 0.01
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	  3. D. Statement of Securities sold / purchased under REPO Transactions during the year 2018-19.

 (` In crore)

Particulars Minimum 
Outstanding 

during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily Average 
outstanding 

during the year

As on 
31.03.2019

Securities sold under REPO 
(CROMS+RBI)
i. Govt. Securities 0.00

(0.00)
1579.98

(1969.78)
1221.18

(1213.54)
500.00
(0.00)

ii. Corporate Debt Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii.  Any Other Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
Securities purchased under 
Reverse REPO
i. Govt. Securities 0.00

(0.00)
600.00

(200.00)
33.57
(5.56)

324.85
(200.00)

ii. Corporate Debt Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii.  Any Other Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

		   Figures in bracket are of previous year

	 4.	 Advances of `11,59,915.42 lakhs ( `10,77,093.18 lakhs) shown in the Balance Sheet include:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Advance to Directors, their relatives and Companies/Firms in which they are 
interested
Fund Based 138.01 13.51
Non-Fund Based — —

 (` in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

5. Advances against Real Estate, Construction Business, Housing, 
Shares and Debentures
Real Estate 29788.88 38660.42
Construction business 1596.34 2849.75
Housing 86475.86 85423.05
Shares and Debentures 44.79 40.49
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(` in Lakh)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

6. Average cost of deposits 6.34% 6.48%

7. NPAs
a) Gross NPAs 98952.30 101776.55

b) % of Gross NPA to Loans 8.53% 9.45%

c) Net NPAs 71367.92 76133.95

8. Movement in Gross NPAs
Opening Balance 101776.55 88546.18

Add: Additions during the year 30600.29 41880.81

Less: Reductions during the year 33424.54 28650.44

Closing Balance 98952.30 101776.55

9. Disclosure of Net NPAs
Gross NPAs 98952.30 101776.55

Less: Provisions 24870.47 25642.60

Less: Provisions for FITL 2713.91 —

Net NPAs 71367.92 76133.95

10. Profitability
a) Interest income as a percentage of working funds 7.92% 8.05%

b) Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds 1.10% 1.14%

c) Operating profit as a percentage of working funds 1.06%          1.28%

d) Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee (In Lakhs) 951.00 1038.96

e) Profit per employee (In Lakhs) 0.77 (2.35)

11. Provisions made in the year towards 
NPA 13355.42 22998.98

Depreciation on Investments 2108.14 9015.53

Standard Assets      224.08 —

12. a) Provisions on NPAs required to be made 14683.17 25125.84

b) Provisions on NPAs actually made 14683.17 25125.84

13. Movement in provisions
A. Towards NPAs
Opening Balance 25642.60 21492.11

Add: Additions during the year 14683.17 25125.84

Less: Closed/ Recovered/ Written Off 15455.30 20975.35

Closing Balance 24870.47 25642.60

B. Towards Standard Assets
Opening Balance 3719.67 3903.83

Add: Additions during the year 224.08 0.00

Less: Reduction during the year 0.00 184.16

Closing Balance 3943.75 3719.67
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(` in Lakh)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

C. Towards Depreciation on Investments
Opening Balance 12947.54 3932.01
Add: Additions during the year 2108.14 9015.53
Less: Reduction during the year 10384.72 0.00
Closing balance 4670.96 12947.54

14. Foreign Currency Assets
Foreign Currency Liabilities                                     

13196.89
13196.89

16850.13
16850.13                                     

15 DICGC Premium paid up to date (no arrears thereof) 1702.47 1768.85

Suhas S. Gokhale
Managing Director

For M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No.111727W

For M/s. P. G. Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No.101118W

Sudhan Yardi
Partner M.No.22887
(Statutory Auditor)

Nachiket Deo
Partner M. No.117695	
(Statutory Auditor)
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Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using indirect method.
 Archana Joshi

Asst. General Manager
Suhas Gokhale 

Managing Director

For M/s. YARDI  PRABHU & ASSOCIATES LLP  
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No.111727W/ W100101 

For M/s. P. G. Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No.101118W

(Sudhan Yardi)
Partner

M. No. 22887   
(Statutory Auditor) 

(Nachiket Deo)
Partner

M. No.117695
(Statutory Auditor) 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

(` In Lakh)
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Tax as per Profit and Loss A/c 3654.71 (9741.30)
Adjustments for -
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2686.78 2738.10
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0 0
Premium w/off 2049.24 1545.57
Bad Debts wriiten off 15455.30 20975.36
Provisions 21196.45 32447.56
Goodwill w/off -merged banks 0 0
Interest paid on Funds 28.54 25.44

45071.02 47990.73
Add:- Excess cash & Entrance fees, Surplus ARC money etc 57.21 84.75

45128.23 48075.48
Less:- Medical Assistance to members/staff /Death Benevolent 35 10
Less:-Share refund 0 0
Less : Amount paid to ceased members 0.03 0.03
Less:- Profit on sale of Assets (Including Non Banking Asset) ( net) 913.48 204.26
Less:- Credit from BDDR/excess prov.reversed/ 15465.61 21071.87
Operating profit before working capital changes 28714.11 26789.32
Adjustments for -
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment 4436.69 12468.39
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances (98277.54) 48041.22
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings 44020.14 (4727.41)
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 42054.43 (71666.04)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets (10548.25) 735.32
Increase /( Decrease) in Other Liabilities 123.27 (3681.16)
Taxes paid (1049.91) (3853.68)

(19241.17) (22683.36)
Net cash generated from Operating Activities 9472.94 4105.96
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed Assets purchase (696.33) (641.39)
Sale of Fixed Assets (Including Non Banking Asset) 2438.18 225.51
Net Cash Flow from Investing activities 1741.85 (415.88)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue Of Shares ( Net of Refund / Adjustment ) (2716.31) (1132.26)
Dividend Paid (1016.12) (73.13)
Net Cash Flow from financing activities (3732.43) (1205.39)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 7482.36 2484.69
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 91194.49 88709.80
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 98676.85 91194.49
NOTES
Cash & Cash Equivalents 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
1. Cash 6134.87 8291.12
2. Balances with RBI 76595.41 68536.01
3. Balances with other Banks Held In CA Accounts 15946.57 14367.36

98676.85 91194.49
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO,
THE MEMBERS,
THE COSMOS CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD.,
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion
1.	 We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Limited,(“the Bank”) which comprises of Balance Sheet 

as at March 31, 2019 and Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2019 and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information in which are included returns of Head Office and its departments and 140 branches, out of 
which, 71 branches are audited by M/S P. G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, 69 branches are audited by Yardi Prabhu & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, which are consolidated in these financial statements. Since all the branches are subjected to statutory audit, the matter of submission 
of details of percent of advances /deposits /interest income / interest expense of unaudited branches is not applicable.

2.	 In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information 
required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the rules made there under and the guidelines 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the Central Registrar of Cooperative Societies, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2019 and true & fair balance 
of profit and the Cash Flows for the financial year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion
3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the bank in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the ICAI together with ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and the rules made there under and under the 
provisions of the Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the rules made there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon
4.	 The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 

the Report of Board of Directors including other explanatory information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated.

	 When we read the Report of Board of Directors including other explanatory information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and the members in the Annual General Meeting.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
5.	 The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards issued by ICAI, provisions of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the rules made there under, provisions of Multi State Cooperative Societies 
Act, 2002 and the rules made there under and RBI from time to time and the accounting standards issued by ICAI. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material mis statement, whether due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing Bank's Financial Reporting progress.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
6.	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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	 As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

	 •	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

Emphasis of Matter
7.	 Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 which states that withdrawal is made from the Reserve for Unforeseen Losses (created 

u/s 63(1) of the Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002) in order to replenish the loss suffered by the Bank due to cyber-attack during the year.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
8.	 The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in Forms A and B respectively of the Third Schedule to the Banking 

Regulation Act, 1949 and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002.

9.	 As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

	 a.	 We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our 
audit and have found to be satisfactory;

	 b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from the branches/offices;

	 c.	 As required by Section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we further report that the transactions of the Bank which came to our notice 
have been within the powers of the Bank.

	 d.	 The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report, are in agreement with the books of 
account and the returns;

	 e.	 The accounting standards adopted by the Bank are consistent with those laid down by accounting principles generally accepted in India so far 
as applicable to Banks;

10.	 As per the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account and other record, we report as under on 
the matters specified in clause (d) to (e) of Rule 27(2) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002

	 a.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, we have not noticed any material impropriety or irregularity in the 
expenditure or in the realization of money due to the bank.

	 b.	 During the course of our audit, we have generally not come across any violations of guidelines, conditions etc. issued by the Reserve Bank 
of India. Since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received subsidy from National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development, our 
comments regarding violations of guidelines issued by the said Bank are not called for.

	 c.	 As required by Rule 27(3) (a) to (f) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002 we give in the annexure, a schedule on the matters 
specified in the said Rule.

FOR M/s. YARDI PRABHU & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
F.R.NO.111727W/W100101

FOR M/s. P. G. BHAGWAT 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
F.R.NO. 101118 W

SUDHAN YARDI
PARTNER 
M.NO. 022887 
STATUTORY AUDITOR

NACHIKET DEO 
PARTNER
M. NO: 117695
STATUTORY AUDITOR

Date: May 29, 2019 
Place: Pune
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(As referred in Clause 10 of our report of even date as on 31st March, 2019)

As required by the Rule 27(3) of the Multi-State Co-operative Rules, 2002, we report on the matters specified in clauses (a) to (f) 
of the said Rule to the extent applicable to the Bank.

a.	 During the course of our audit, we have generally not come across transactions which appear to be contrary to the provisions 
of the Act, the Rules or the Bye-Laws of the Bank.

b.	 During the course of our audit, we have not come across material and significant transactions which appear to be contrary 
to the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India. Since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received subsidy 
from National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development, our comments regarding transactions contrary to the guidelines 
issued by the said Bank are not called for.

c.	 The following advances are categorized as doubtful or loss assets as per prudential norms of RBI as on 31.03.2019 and 
reported in terms of clause (c) of Rule 27(3) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002:

Category Amount Outstanding as on 31.03.2019 (` in lakhs)

Doubtful Assets 82,761.59

Loss Assets Nil

Total  82,761.59 *

	 * A Provision of ` 25,830.20 Lakhs has been made against the above advances.

d.	 As per the information provided to us and to the best of our knowledge, the following credit facilities have been sanctioned 
by the Bank to the members of the Board or their relatives: 

Particulars Amount outstanding
(` in lakhs)

Security Value
(` in lakhs)

Overdues, if any 

(` in lakhs)
Fund Based 138.01 183.22 NIL
Non Fund Based NIL NIL NIL

e.	 During the course of our audit, we have generally not come across any violations of guidelines, conditions etc. issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received subsidy from National Bank for Agriculture 
and Rural Development, our comments regarding violations of guidelines issued by the said Bank are not called for.

f.	 To the best of our knowledge, no other matters have been specified by The Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, 
which require reporting under this Rule.

ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

FOR M/s. YARDI PRABHU & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
F.R.NO.111727W/W100101

FOR M/s. P. G. BHAGWAT 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
F.R.NO. 101118 W

SUDHAN YARDI
PARTNER 
M.NO. 022887 
STATUTORY AUDITOR

NACHIKET DEO 
PARTNER
M. NO: 117695
STATUTORY AUDITOR

Date: May 29, 2019 
Place: Pune
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Statement showing particulars of Loans & Advances to Directors and their Relatives outstanding as on 
31st March 2019 [As per Multi-State Co-op. Society Act 2002 Section 39(3)]

31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj mebÛeeuekeâ Je lÙeebÛes veelesJeeF&keâebvee efouesuÙee keâpee&Ûeer ÙesCes yeekeâer oMe&efJeCeeje lekeälee  
(ceefušmšsš keâes-Dee@he. meesmeeÙešer De@keäš 2002 keâuece 39 (3) DevJeÙes meeoj)

Sr. No.
 De.›eâ.

Particulars 
leheMeerue 

Amount of Loan outstanding at the end of the year 
31.03.2019 

Je<e& DeKesjerme keâpe& ÙesCes jkeäkeâce

(31.3.2019) 
`

1. Directors / mebÛeeuekeâ 13,800,840.24

2. Directors Relatives / mebÛeeuekeâebÛes veelesJeeF&keâ —

Total SketâCe `  13,800,840.24 

Note: �Outstanding Credit balance is not considered Hence security value of that particular deposit loan is also 
excluded.

CLASSIFICATION OF OVERDUES - TERMWISE AS ON 31ST MARCH 2019 
Lekeâyeekeâer oMe&efJeCeeje lekeälee 31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj

Sr.  
No.

De. 
›eâ. 

Type of Loan 
keâpe& Øekeâej

No. of  
a/cs. 

keâpe&oej 
mebKÙee

Outstanding 
Balance 

ÙesCes keâpe& yeekeâer 

`

No. Defaulters / Lekeâyeekeâeroej Overdues Amount / Lekeâyeekeâer jkeäkeâce % to  
out-standing 

Lekeâyeekeâer 
Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

Arbt 
ueJeeoer

Non-
Arbt 
efyeiej 
ueJeeoer

Awrd 
oeKeuee

efceUeuesues

Total 
SketâCe

Arbitrary 
ueJeeoer 

`

Non -Arbitrary 
efyeiej ueJeeoer 

`

Awarded 
Jemegueer oeKeuee 
efceUeuesueer Keeleer 

`

Total 
SketâCe 

`

1 Short Term 
Advances 

Deuhe cegole keâpex 

13125 53,45,89,86,932.79 0 95 9 104 0.00 463,62,07,758.70 32,59,51,455.86 496,21,59,214.56 4.28

2 Medium Term 
Advances 

ceOÙece cegole keâpex

15480 19,66,29,41,105.24 0 666 35 701 0.00 66,22,64,694.26 31,21,04,128.39 97,43,68,822.65 0.84

3 Long Term 
Advances 

efoIe& cegole keâpex 

15633 42,86,96,13,490.17 1 1274 26 1301 3,83,623.00 135,60,60,619.33 21,37,89,485.75 157,02,33,728.08 1.35

Total/ SketâCe  44238 115,99,15,41,528.20 1 2035 70 2106 3,83,623.00 665,45,33,072.29 85,18,45,070.00 750,67,61,765.29 6.47
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AMOUNT-WISE CLASSIFICATION OF THE DEPOSITORS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2019
"sJe jkeâcesvegmeej "sJeeroejebÛes JeieeakeâjCe Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe 31 ceeÛe& 2019

Deposit Amount  
"sJe jkeäkeâce

` 0.00 to 10000.00     `10000.01 to 
50000.00  

` 50000.01 to 
100000.00

  ` 100000.01  
& Above

Total 
SketâCe

Depositor / "sJeeroej 882590 406159 240857 317306 1846912
Percentage (% ) to 
total Depositores 
SketâCe "sJeeroejebMeer Meskeâ[e 
HeÇceeCe

47.79 21.99 13.04 17.18 100.00

OUTSTANDING AMOUNTWISE CLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS AND BORROWERS AND ITS 
PERCENTAGE TO TOTAL ACCOUNTS AND BORROWERS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2019

keâpe& ÙesCesyeekeâer jkeâcesvegmeej KeelesoejebÛeer mebKÙee Je lÙeebÛes SketâCe keâpe&oejebMeer Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe 31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj

Loan Amount 
keâpe& jkeäkeâce

` 1/- to 
50,000/-

`  50,001/- to 
1,00,000/-

` 1,00,001 to 
10,00,000/-

` 10,00,001 
to 25,00,000/-

` 25,00,001/- 
to 50,00,000/-

` 50,00,001/- 
and above

Total 
SketâCe

No. of Accounts 
SketâCe Keeles mebKÙee

13381 5451 18504 5805 1861 3815 48817

Percentage to 
Total Accounts 
SketâCe KeelÙeebMeer 
Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

27.42% 11.17% 37.90% 11.89% 3.81% 7.81% 100.00%

No. of Borrower 
SketâCe Keeles mebKÙee

12712 5122 15598 4427 1285 1636 40780

Percentage to 
Total Borrowers 
SketâCe KeelÙeebMeer 
Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

31.17% 12.56% 38.25% 10.86% 3.15% 4.01% 100.00%

PURPOSE WISE CLASSIFICATION OF LOANS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2019
keâpe& lekeälee 31 ceeÛe& 2019 DeKesj

(Amount in Lakh)

Particulars  
leheMeerue

No. of Accounts 
Keeles mebKÙee

Amount of Loans 
keâpe& jkeäkeâce `

% to Total Loans 
Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

Industrial DeewÅeesefiekeâ 3825 569195.29 49.07%

Trade JÙeeheejer 2429 198204.76 17.09%

Allied to Agriculture Mesleerhetjkeâ GÅeesie 648 36063.13 3.11%

Service Industry mesJeemegefJeOee GÅeesie 1088 130692.68 11.27%

Builders yeebOekeâece JÙeeJemeeefÙekeâ 121 23606.23 2.04%

Housing Construction & Repairs IejyeebOeCeer Je og¤mleer 20139 118055.68 10.18%

Consumption JewÙeefòeâkeâ 19315 45943.42 3.96%

Professional & Self Employed mJeÙebjespeieej 1036 35618.86 3.07%

Transport Operator Jeenletkeâ JÙeJemeeÙe 216 2535.37 0.21%

Total SketâCe 48817 1159915.42 100%



113th  Annual Report  2018–2019

69

C
os

m
os

 T
ow

er
, P

lo
t N

o.
6,

 IC
S

 C
ol

on
y,

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 R

oa
d,

 G
an

es
hk

hi
nd

, P
un

e 
41

10
07

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 B

ye
-la

w
s 

of
 th

e 
B

an
k 

pl
ac

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
en

er
al

 M
ee

tin
g 

da
te

d 
4 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
9

B
ye

 
La

w
 N

o.
Te

xt
 o

f E
xi

st
in

g 
B

ye
 L

aw
Pr

op
os

ed
  A

m
en

dm
en

t
Te

xt
 a

fte
r i

nc
or

po
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

m
en

dm
en

t
R

ea
so

ns
 fo

r a
m

en
dm

en
t

5 
(ix

)
O

bj
ec

ts
To

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
an

d 
to

 s
el

l b
on

ds
, s

cr
ip

s 
or

 o
th

er
 

fo
rm

s 
of

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 c

on
st

itu
en

ts
.

To
 r

ep
hr

as
e 

th
e 

se
nt

en
ce

 b
y 

ad
di

ng
- 

‘th
os

e 
co

ns
tit

ue
nt

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 

by
 R

B
I’ 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
w

or
d 

co
ns

tit
ue

nt
s.

To
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

an
d 

to
 s

el
l 

bo
nd

s,
 s

cr
ip

s 
or

 
ot

he
r f

or
m

s 
of

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 th

os
e 

co
ns

tit
ue

nt
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 b
y 

R
B

I.

To
 

al
ig

n 
w

ith
 

R
B

I 
gu

id
el

in
es

 
on

 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
.

31
 (i

i) 
(a

)
B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s:

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

sh
al

l, 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

, 
ha

ve
 t

w
o 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
i.e

. 
pe

rs
on

s 
w

ith
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ba
nk

in
g 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
(a

t 
m

id
dl

e/
 

se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t l
ev

el
) o

r w
ith

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

n 
in

 t
he

 fi
el

d 
of

 l
aw

, 
ac

co
un

ta
nc

y,
 

fin
an

ce
, e

co
no

m
ic

s 
or

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n.
In

 c
as

e 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

w
ith

 s
uc

h 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 e
le

ct
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

ca
te

go
ry

 
un

de
r 

by
e-

la
w

 3
1 

(i)
 a

bo
ve

, 
th

en
 t

he
 B

oa
rd

 
sh

al
l 

co
-o

pt
 t

ha
t 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

ire
ct

or
s 

fa
lli

ng
 

sh
or

t 
of

 t
w

o 
fro

m
 a

m
on

gs
t 

th
e 

sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

, 
w

ho
 a

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 a

s 
pe

r A
ct

, R
ul

es
 

&
 th

es
e 

by
e-

la
w

s,
 to

 fi
ll 

th
e 

va
ca

nt
 p

os
t (

if 
an

y)
.

S
uc

h 
co

-o
pt

ed
 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l 

ha
ve

 
sa

m
e 

R
ig

ht
s 

an
d 

D
ut

ie
s 

as
 

th
at

 
of

 
th

e 
el

ec
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
.

Th
e 

te
nu

re
 o

f 
su

ch
 c

o-
op

te
d 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 c

o-
te

rm
in

us
 w

ith
 th

e 
te

nu
re

 o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ire

ct
or

s.
 

To
 d

el
et

e 
w

or
ds

 ‘
ec

on
om

ic
s’ 

an
d 

‘c
o-

op
er

at
io

n’
Th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l, 

at
 a

ll 
tim

es
, 

ha
ve

 
tw

o 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
i.e

. 
pe

rs
on

s 
w

ith
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ba
nk

in
g 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
(a

t 
m

id
dl

e/
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
le

ve
l) 

or
 

w
ith

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l q
ua

lifi
ca

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
fie

ld
 o

f 
la

w
, a

cc
ou

nt
an

cy
 o

r fi
na

nc
e.

In
 c

as
e 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
w

ith
 s

uc
h 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

no
t 

el
ec

te
d 

fro
m

 
th

e 
ca

te
go

ry
 u

nd
er

 b
ye

-la
w

 3
1 

(i)
 a

bo
ve

, t
he

n 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 
sh

al
l 

co
-o

pt
 

th
at

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
di

re
ct

or
s 

fa
lli

ng
 s

ho
rt 

of
 tw

o 
fro

m
 a

m
on

gs
t 

th
e 

sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

, 
w

ho
 

ar
e 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 a

s 
pe

r 
A

ct
, 

R
ul

es
 &

 t
he

se
 b

ye
-

la
w

s,
 to

 fi
ll 

th
e 

va
ca

nt
 p

os
t (

if 
an

y)
.

S
uc

h 
co

-o
pt

ed
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

sh
al

l h
av

e 
sa

m
e 

R
ig

ht
s 

an
d 

D
ut

ie
s 

as
 t

ha
t 

of
 t

he
 e

le
ct

ed
 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

.
Th

e 
te

nu
re

 o
f s

uc
h 

co
-o

pt
ed

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 c

o-
te

rm
in

us
 w

ith
 th

e 
te

nu
re

 o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s.
 

To
 

al
ig

n 
w

ith
 

R
B

I 
gu

id
el

in
es

 
on

 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
of

 B
oa

rd
.

44
Li

nk
in

g 
of

 S
ha

re
ho

ld
in

g 
w

ith
 L

oa
n 

Li
m

its
A 

bo
rr

ow
er

 s
ho

ul
d 

ho
ld

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

or
 E

qu
ity

 
S

ha
re

s 
of

 t
he

 B
an

k 
in

 s
uc

h 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

to
 h

is
 

bo
rr

ow
in

gs
 a

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
fix

ed
 fr

om
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e 

by
 th

e 
R

es
er

ve
 B

an
k 

of
 In

di
a 

an
d 

/ o
r 

C
en

tra
l 

R
eg

is
tra

r o
f C

o-
op

er
at

iv
e 

S
oc

ie
tie

s.
Th

e 
to

ta
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l t

o 
be

 h
el

d 
by

 a
 m

em
be

r 
w

ill
, h

ow
ev

er
, h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
lim

its
 la

id
 d

ow
n 

un
de

r t
he

 A
ct

. N
o 

m
em

be
r 

ot
he

r 
th

an
 t

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
re

fe
rr

ed
 in

 c
la

us
es

 
(c

) 
to

 (
g)

 o
f s

ub
 s

ec
tio

n 
1 

of
 s

ec
tio

n 
25

 o
f t

he
 

A
ct

, s
ha

ll 
ho

ld
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 fi
fth

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

he
 B

an
k.

To
 

de
le

te
 

th
e 

w
or

d 
‘o

ne
 

fif
th

’ 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

e 
it 

w
ith

 ‘5
 %

’
A 

bo
rr

ow
er

 s
ho

ul
d 

ho
ld

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

or
 E

qu
ity

 
S

ha
re

s 
of

 t
he

 B
an

k 
in

 s
uc

h 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

to
 

hi
s 

bo
rr

ow
in

gs
 a

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
fix

ed
 fr

om
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e 

by
 th

e 
R

es
er

ve
 B

an
k 

of
 In

di
a 

an
d 

/ 
or

 
C

en
tra

l 
R

eg
is

tra
r 

of
 

C
o-

op
er

at
iv

e 
S

oc
ie

tie
s.

Th
e 

to
ta

l 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
to

 b
e 

he
ld

 b
y 

a 
m

em
be

r w
ill

, h
ow

ev
er

, h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
lim

its
 la

id
 d

ow
n 

un
de

r t
he

 A
ct

. N
o 

m
em

be
r o

th
er

 th
an

 th
e 

au
th

or
iti

es
 re

fe
rr

ed
 

in
 c

la
us

es
 (

c)
 t

o 
(g

) 
of

 s
ub

 s
ec

tio
n 

1 
of

 
se

ct
io

n 
25

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
, s

ha
ll 

ho
ld

 m
or

e 
th

an
 

5 
%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l s

ha
re

 c
ap

ita
l o

f t
he

 B
an

k.

To
 

al
ig

n 
w

ith
 

R
B

I 
gu

id
el

in
es

 
on

 
S

ha
re

 li
nk

in
g.



(A fully owned subsidiary of The Cosmos Co-op. Bank Ltd.)

70

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
(WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF THE BANK)

Registration No. as per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs: U72300PN2007PTC130195 /2007-2008, dt. 23-05-2007
Reserve Bank License No.: UBD.CO.BPD.MIS.3722/16.07.00/2010-2011, dt. 25-10-2010

Board of Directors

Dr. Mukund Abhyankar
Chairman

Ashutosh Joshi
Director

Arti Dhole
Managing Director & CEO

Statutory Auditors
M/s. C. V. Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Bankers
The Cosmos Co-op. Bank Limited



12th  Annual Report  2018–2019

71

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Shareholders:

Your Board of Directors are pleased to present the eleventh 
Annual Report on the business operations of the Company 
and the audited financial statements for the period ended 
March 31, 2019.

Particulars  For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2019 
(in `)

 For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2018 
(in `)

Revenue from operations 12,46,13,986.00 14,05,90,848.00
Other income 32,59,164.00 6,53,643.00
Total income 12,78,73,150.00 14,12,44,491.00
Operating expenses 
excluding depreciation and 
amortization

10,22,13,276.00 10,34,66,357.00

Profit before depreciation 
and tax

2,56,59,875.00 3,77,78,134.00

Depreciation and 
amortization

54,96,474.00 58,40,163.00

Profit before tax 2,01,63,401.00 3,19,37,971.00
Current Tax 53,20,000.00 96,40,000.00
Deferred Tax 1,24,959.00 (10,24,475.00)
Exceptional Items Gain /
(Loss)

- (11,66,041.00)

Profit after tax 1,47,18,441.00 2,21,56,405.00
Share Capital 25,00,000.00 25,00,000.00
Reserves and Surplus 8,70,23,770.00 7,23,05,328.00

Dividend

Considering the profits of the Company, the Board of  
Directors have recommended a Final Dividend of `100/- per 
Equity share amounting to total `25,00,000/- for Financial Year 
2018-19 to the members as on 2nd July, 2019.  The Board 
of Directors did not declare any Interim Dividend during the 
financial year under report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amount was transferred to any reserves from the current 
year’s profit.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 
during the year under review.

THE STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE 
OUTLOOK

The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Limited, the parent organisation 
of the Company continues to be Company’s principal client. 

Cosmos eSolutions always endeavours to deliver smart and 
reliable solutions to our banking customers. We envision the 
needs of various banks and design innovative products and 
services that fulfil current and future banking requirements 
with ease. With the advent of mobile technologies, the trend of 
online banking is now becoming mainstream.

Your company continued to provide technology-intensive 
solutions to the Customers to enhance customer experience, 
to optimize the cost structure and manage the enterprise risk.

Considering the mass use of internet by each generation and 
on the similar user experience, your company has introduced 
the quick account opening based on the Aadhar number using 
Portal in Cosmos Bank. The account opening process is 
automated using the Robotic process automation.

Your Directors expect to better the Company’s performance by 
adding new clients.

During the year under review, as a management decision, 
certain existing employees of the Company were migrated to 
The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Limited (the “Bank”) w.e.f. 1st 
January, 2019.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

There are no contracts or arrangements made with related 
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013. The transactions with The Cosmos Co-operative Bank 
Limited were at arm’s length basis.

THE CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There have been no material changes in the nature of 
business of the Company in the financial year 2018-19. But 
certain employees of the Company had been transferred to the 
Cosmos Bank w.e.f. 1st January, 2019.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY, 
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 
REPORT

There are no instances of any material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the company.

THE NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR 
CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR 
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

The Company has no subsidiaries or associate companies.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2018-19, seven meetings were held.
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THE DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE 
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

During the year under review, Mrs. Arti Dhole (DIN: 07670787), 
Managing Director of the Company was re-designated as 
Managing Director and CEO of the Company, without payment 
of any remuneration.

There was no other appointment/resignation on the Board of 
the Company.

The Company was not required to appoint KMP.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
relating to constitution of Audit Committee are not applicable 
to the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
regarding maintenance of cost records are not applicable to 
the Company. Hence there is no disclosure under this head.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

Auditors of the Company have not given any qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer in their report 
annexed to the audited financial statements.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants having Firm 
Registration No: 103264W tendered their resignation as 
Statutory Auditor of the Company on 24.05.2019, as a result 
a causal vacancy was created. Accordingly, the Board had 
approached M/s. C.V. Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants, 
(FRN: 126338W) to act as Statutory Auditor in place of M/s 
Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants and to fill in casual 
vacancy caused by resignation of existing auditors. Members in 
their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 7th June, 2019, 
appointed M/s. C.V. Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants, 
(FRN: 126338W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for 
F Y 2018-19 to hold office from the conclusion of the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting till the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

Their term as Auditors will end in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. It is now proposed to appoint M/s. C.V. Chitale & 
Co, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 126338W) as Statutory 
Auditors for a period of 5 years i.e. from the conclusion of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting till conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting to be held in the year 2024.

As members, you are requested to approve appointment of 
M/s. C.V. Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 
126338W) and fix their remuneration

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no significant or material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013, an extract of the annual return in the prescribed format 
is appended as Annexure 1 to the Board’s report.

Internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and timely 
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Company is recruiting employees at a gradual pace. 
All employees to perform key functions of the company and 
the support staff has been appointed. During the year under 
review, as a Management decision, certain existing employees 
of the Company were migrated to The Cosmos Co-operative 
Bank Limited (the “Bank”), the Company’s Holding Company, 
w.e.f. 1st January, 2019.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has a policy in place to address the issues 
relating to the sexual harassment of women at work place and 
has setup a committee in that regard. During the year ended 
31st March, 2019, there were no cases filed/reported pursuant 
to the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, 
prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Further, Internal 
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 is duly constituted.

MATTERS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED UPON AS PER 
THE SECTION 134(1)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In pursuance of the above requirements, we report as follows:

a) 	 Conservation of Energy

	 The Company is engaged in rendering services in 
Information Technology field and electricity cost is not a 
major component of total cost. The Company recognizes 
the need and importance of conservation of energy. The 
Company uses energy efficient electrical and electronic 
equipment.



12th  Annual Report  2018–2019

73

b) 	 Technology absorption, adoption and innovation

	 As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing 
activities, this section does not apply to the Company. The 
Company's employees keep upgrading their professional 
skills and are aware of the latest developments in the 
financial markets.

c) 	 Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:-

	 Foreign exchange outgo during the year		 NIL

	 Foreign exchange earnings during the year	 NIL

A STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR 
THE COMPANY INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF 
ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF ANY, WHICH IN THE OPINION OF 
THE BOARD MAY THREATEN THE EXISTENCE OF THE 
COMPANY

Management has taken appropriate measures for identification 
of risk elements related to the Industry, in which the Company 
is engaged, and is always trying to reduce the impact of such 
risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
STATEMENT:

The Company has put in place adequate systems of internal 
controls commensurate with its size and nature of its operations. 
These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance 
with regard to recording and providing reliable financial and 
operational information, complying with applicable statutes, 
safeguarding assets from unauthorized use or losses, 
executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring 
compliance of corporate policies.

For each critical activities, the Company has documented 
areas of risks and required checks for these activities and 
functions. This list is reviewed and updated on annual basis to 
ensure the risk profiling of all the activities are up-to date and 
in line with the actual/updated process flow.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS

Your Company has not granted loans, issued guarantees or 
made investments in terms of provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

The Company is not required to appoint independent directors. 
Therefore, there is no requirement of including a statement on 
declarations given by independent directors under sub-section 
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT 
AND REMUNERATION

There is no requirement to constitute the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as provided in Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, thus the policy in that regard is not 
determined by the Board of Directors.

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As the Company does not fall under the criteria prescribed 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, disclosure 
under this head is not required.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the Directors' 
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed;

a.	 that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2019, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed;

b.	 that the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 
Company for the year under review;

c.	 that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d.	 that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 on a 'going 
concern' basis.

e.	 that the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation 
to all employees of the Company for their dedication and 
focused attitude.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Dr. Mukund Abhyankar
Chairman
DIN – 00881021                                    

Place : Pune;
Dated: 2nd July, 2019



(A fully owned subsidiary of The Cosmos Co-op. Bank Ltd.)

74

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Cosmos e-Solutions and Services 
Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

1.	 We have audited the financial statements of Cosmos 
e-Solutions and Services Private Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 
31stMarch, 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss 
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
“financial statements”).

2.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and profit 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial 
Statements

4.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act.

5.	  This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

6.	 In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

7.	 Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
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from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

8.	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	 a.	 Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

	 b.	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

	 c.	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

	 d.	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

	 e.	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9.	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. We also provide those 
charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with themall 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

11.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

	 a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

	 b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
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by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

	 c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

	 d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
The impact of the same on financial statement is 
not ascertained by the management.

	 e.	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

	 f.	 As per the Notification dated June 13, 2017 Internal 
Financial Controls is not applicable to the company 
and

	 g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statements – Refer Note 26 to the 
financial statements;

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses;

		  iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company, during the 
year.

For C. V. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm registration No. 126338W

Darrshan Sawaiwala
Place : Pune Partner
Date : 2nd July, 2019 Membership No. 127450
(UDIN – 19127450AAAAAY6856)
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

ANNEXURE ''A'' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 
under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the 
members of the Company on the standalone financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March 2019, we report that:

i.	 a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative detail and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 b)	 The Company has a regular program of physical 
verification of its fixed assets by which its fixed 
assets are verified at each year end. In our opinion, 
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business. No material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanation given 
to us and on the basis of other relevant record 
evidencing title deeds provided to us for verification, 
we report that the title deeds relating to the immovable 
properties, which are freehold and owned by it, have 
been held in name of the Company as at the balance 
sheet date.

ii.	 a) 	 The physical verification of inventory of traded goods 
has been conducted by the management at the year 
end. The frequency of verification is reasonable in our 
opinion. Major portion of total inventory comprises 
of software licenses which is in intangible form 
hence, reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company to the extent of the 
inventory of Software Licenses.

	 b)	 The procedure of physical verification of inventory 
followed by the management is reasonable and 
adequate in relation to the size and the nature of the 
business.

	 c)	 The Company is maintaining proper record of 
inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed 
on physical verification as per the information and 
explanation given to us.

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register 
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 with respect to the loans and investments made.

v.	 As per the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vi.	 The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the 
Act, for any of the products or services rendered by the 
Company.

vii.	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including Provident fund, Income tax, cess and 
any other material statutory dues have generally been 
regularly deposited during the year by the Company 
with the appropriate authorities.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident Fund, Income tax, Service tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues were in arrears, as 
at 31st March 2019, for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable except 
GST liability of Rs.9,366/ for FY 2018-2019

	 (c)	 According to the records of the Company, there are 
no disputed outstanding dues of income tax, sales 
tax, service tax, etc.

viii.	 As per information and explanation given, the Company 
has not availed any loan or borrowing from Banks, 
Financial Institutions, Government and Debenture holders 
and hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is 
not applicable.

ix.	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
the Company did not raise any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer including debt instruments 
and term loan during the year. Accordingly, the particulars 
in clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable.

x.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
no material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed 
or reported during the course of our audit.
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xi.	 The Company being a private limited company and hence 
reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

xii.	 As per the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Hence reporting under 
clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, transactions with related parties are in compliance 
with provisions of section 177 and 178 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statement as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or partly or fully convertible 
debentures during the year and hence reporting under 
clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

xv.	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 

the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him 
and hence reporting under clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xvi.	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3 (xvi) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

For C. V. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm registration No. 126338W

Darrshan Sawaiwala
Place : Pune Partner
Date : 2nd July, 2019 Membership No. 127450
(UDIN – 19127450AAAAAY6856)
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As per our report of even date attached,

For C V Chitale & CO
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 126338W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Darrshan Sawaiwala Dr. Mukund Abhyankar Ashutosh Joshi Arti Dhole
Partner Director Director Managing Director & CEO
Membership No: 127450 DIN: 00881021 DIN: 00546675 DIN: 07670787

Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: 2nd July, 2019 Date: 2nd July, 2019

Particulars Note No. As at  
31st March, 2019 

`

As at  
31st March, 2018  

`
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholders' Funds
(a)	 Share Capital 3  2,500,000  2,500,000 
(b)	 Reserves and Surplus 4  87,023,770  72,305,329 

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a)	 Long Term Provisions 5  96,059  2,939,514 

(3) Current Liabilities
(a)	 Trade payables 6  724,053  22,274,436 
(b)	 Other current liabilities 7  5,781,089  18,506,558 
(c)	 Short-term Provision 8  31,300,000  25,980,000 

Total  127,424,971  144,505,837 
II ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets
(a)	 Property, Plant & Equipment 9
	 (i)	 Tangible assets  18,519,788  21,625,331 
	 (ii)	 Intangible assets  2,647,521  5,310,367 
(b)	 Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 10  163,396  288,355 
(c)	 Long Term Loans and Advances 11  35,258,749  29,207,088 

(2) Current Assets
(a)	 Inventories 12  4,312,930  27,807,930 
(b) 	 Trade Receivables 13  8,349,778  24,240,845 
(c) 	 Cash and Cash equivalents 14  28,795,518  17,767,749 
(d) 	 Short-term Loans and Advances 15  4,402,574  2,061,029 
(e) 	 Other current assets 16  24,974,717  16,197,143 

Total  127,424,971  144,505,837 

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of the financial statements. 
See Notes to and forming part of Financial Statements 1 to 39

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019
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Particulars Note No. Year ended  
31 March, 2019 

(`)

Year ended  
31 March, 2018 

(`)
I Revenue from operations 17  124,613,986  140,590,848 
II Other Income 18  3,259,164  653,643 

  
Total Revenue (I)  127,873,150  141,244,491 

III Expenses
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade & Finished Goods 19  23,495,000  (27,107,055)
Cost of Operating Activity 20  20,265,580  55,541,075 
Employee benefit expense 21  55,508,199  70,077,361 
Depreciation and amortization expense 9  5,496,474  5,840,163 
Other expenses 22  2,944,497  4,954,976 

  
Total Expenses (II)  107,709,750  109,306,520 

IV Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items 
and tax (I) - (II)

 20,163,401  31,937,971 

Exceptional Items Gain / (Loss) 23  —  (1,166,041)

V Tax expense
(1)	 Current tax  5,320,000  9,640,000 
(2)	 Deferred tax  124,959  (1,024,475)

Total Tax Expense (IV)  5,444,959  8,615,525 

V Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (III-IV)  14,718,441  22,156,405 

 Profit/(Loss) for the period  14,718,441  22,156,405 

VI Earning per equity share:
(1) 	 Basic  588.74  886.26 
(2) 	 Diluted  588.74  886.26 

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of the financial statements. 
See Notes to and forming part of Financial Statements 1 to 39

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

As per our report of even date attached,

For C V Chitale & CO
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 126338W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Darrshan Sawaiwala Dr. Mukund Abhyankar Ashutosh Joshi Arti Dhole
Partner Director Director Managing Director & CEO
Membership No: 127450 DIN: 00881021 DIN: 00546675 DIN: 07670787

Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: 2nd July, 2019 Date: 2nd July, 2019
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Particulars Year ended  
31 March, 2019 

(`)

Year ended  
31 March, 2018

(`)
A. Cash Flow from operating activities

Net Profit before tax  20,163,401  30,771,930 
Depreciation and amortaisation  5,496,474  5,840,163 
Gain on Sale of Fixed Asset  (364,085) —
Operating profit before working capital changes  25,295,790  36,612,093 
Adjustments for:
Interest received  (768,785)  (354,585)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable  (21,550,383)  20,119,912 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liability  (12,725,469)  4,565,257 
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provision — —
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provision  (2,843,455)  2,939,514 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables  15,891,067  (11,935,632)
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term loan and advances  (2,341,545)  1,165,479 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets & Inventory  14,717,426  (22,887,060)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances  1,289,046 —
Cash Generated from Operations  16,963,692  30,224,978 
Income Tax Paid (Net of Refund)  (7,340,707)  (9,939,876)
Net Cash flow from Operating activities               A  9,622,985  20,285,102 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment  (59,000)  (3,001,214)
Sale Proceeds of Property, Plant & Equipment  695,000 —
Interest received  768,785  354,585 
Net Cash flow from Investing activities                 B  1,404,785  (2,646,629)

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Dividend Paid —  (2,500,000)
Dividend Distribution tax paid —  (508,940)
Net cash flow from Financing activities                 C —  (3,008,940)
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)  11,027,769  14,629,534 
Cash and cash eqivalent at the beginning of the period  17,767,749  3,138,215 
Cash and cash eqivalent at the end of the period  28,795,518  17,767,749 

Notes to Cash Flow Statement :	
1 Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances and non-lien marked Fixed Deposits
2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 

on Cash Flow Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
3 The preceding year figures have been regrouped wherever required.

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

As per our report of even date attached,

For C V Chitale & CO
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 126338W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Darrshan Sawaiwala Dr. Mukund Abhyankar Ashutosh Joshi Arti Dhole
Partner Director Director Managing Director & CEO
Membership No: 127450 DIN: 00881021 DIN: 00546675 DIN: 07670787

Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: 2nd July, 2019 Date: 2nd July, 2019
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1	 Background

	 Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited ('the Company') has been incorporated on 23rd March, 2007 under the 
Companies Act, 1956 which is now the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), and is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Cosmos 
Co-operative Bank Limited.

	 The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering Information Technology related services in the banking 
sector.

2	 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under 
the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting and on going concern basis. GAAP comprises mandatory 
accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has prepared these financial 
statements to comply, in all the material aspects with Accounting Standards.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied over the periods.

2.2	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP’) requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reported period. Management believes that the estimates made in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent 
and reasonable. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is primarily derived from Information Technology (IT) Support and related services. Arrangements with the customers 
are either on fixed price, fixed time frame or on a time and material basis. Revenues from the end of last billing to the Balance 
Sheet date are recognised as unbilled revenues.

	 Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fixed-price maintenance contracts are recognized rateably over the 
period in which services are rendered.

	 Revenue from the sale of software application user licenses is recognised on transfer of the title of such user license, 
except in case of multiple element contracts, which require significant implementation services, where revenue for the entire 
arrangement is recognised over the implementation period based upon the percentage completion method.

	 Revenue from client training support and other services arising due to the sale of software products is recognised as and 
when the related services are performed.

	 Revenue from sale of software products, client support and other services is recognized as and when the services are 
performed.

	 Interest income is recognized using the time proportionate method, based on rates implicit in the transaction.

	 The Company presents revenue net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.4	 a.	 Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress

		  Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost comprises of purchase 
price and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred 
in bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

		  Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

		  Borrowing costs, if any, attributable to assets, are capitalized in accordance with provisions of AS -16

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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	 b. 	 Impairment

		  The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized wherever 
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s 
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the Company has measured its ‘value in use’ on the basis 
of undiscounted cash flows of next five years projections estimated based on current prices

2.5	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment, if any.

	 Research costs are debited to statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

	 Software product development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is 
demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell 
the software and the costs can be measured reliably.

2.6	 Depreciation and amortisation

	 In respect of tangible assets acquired during the year, depreciation is provided on written down value method so as to write 
off the cost of the assets over the useful lives in the manner specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

	 For assets acquired prior to April 1, 2014, the carrying amount as on April 1, 2014 is depreciated over the remaining useful 
life. Additions made to an asset up to 15th of a month are subjected to pro-rata depreciation for the period commencing from 
that month and those made after 15th of a month are subjected to pro-rata depreciation from the start of the subsequent 
month keeping in view the materiality of amounts involved.

	 Intangible assets (Software Product) are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line 
basis, from the date they are available for use. The management estimated useful life for Software Products at 30 months.

	 Other intangible assets are amortised @ 40% on written down value method.

	 Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial 
year end, by the management.

2.7	 Inventory valuation

	 Inventory (software licenses) is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Costs are ascertained using FIFO 
method. The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to its present location and condition including taxes, other than those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise 
from the taxing authorities.

2.8	 Employee benefits

	 (i)	 Short term employee benefits

		  Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term 
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries, bonus and incentives. The undiscounted amount of short-term 
employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service 
rendered by employees. The company does have a policy for payment of leave encashment.

	 (ii)	 Post-employment benefits

		  Contribution to provident fund and superannuation for are accounted for on accrual basis.

		  The company provides for a gratuity, covering eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and tenure of the employment with 
the Company. Liability for Gratuity as at the period end is provided on the basis of valuation done by actuary and is fully 
funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

2.9	 Accounting for taxes on income

	 Income tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the applicable 
income tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income 
and taxable income for the period).
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	 Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using applicable tax 
rate and tax laws.

	 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income i.e. differences 
that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or 
credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; 
however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are 
recognised only if there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

	 Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is 
reasonable/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

2.10	 Operating leases

	 Lease rentals in respect of assets acquired on operating leases are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term except in case of immovable property wherein, having considered the materiality of 
amount involved, the operating leases are recognized on accrual basis by the management.

2.11	 Earnings per share (EPS)

	 The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the year/
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year / period.

2.12	 Goods and service Tax (GST)

	 The input tax credit in respect of inward supplies are availed as per the provisions of law and are adjusted against the tax 
payable on outward suppliers and any excess of tax payable over and above input tax credit is recognized as current liability.

	 Pre-GST regime Taxes and GST paid on advances as received from customers against services that are yet to be rendered 
are recognized as current assets. These are adjusted against the accruing tax liability as and when billed.

	 Tax and duty credits availed by way of input tax credit under the laws existing prior to commencement of GST regime have 
been claimed as transition credits eligible as input tax credit under the GST regime.

2.13	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	 The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an 
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent 
liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow 
of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

	 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. Loss contingencies arising 
from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and 
the amount can be reasonably ascertained.

	 Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and 
if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which 
the change occurs.



12th  Annual Report  2018–2019

85

Note 3 - Share Capital

Share Capital As at  
31 March, 2019

As at  
31 March, 2018

 No.  `  No. `

Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 100 each  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000

Issued
Equity Shares of ` 100 each  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of ` 100 each fully paid  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000
Subscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares of `100 each fully paid — — — —
Total  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the end of the year

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2019

As at 
31 March, 2018

 No.  `  No.  `
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000
Shares issued during the year — — — —
Shares bought back during the year — — — —
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000

Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share 
in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The Company 
declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are 
in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on 
which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders 
of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company.

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of Shareholder As at 
31 March, 2019

As at 
31 March, 2018

No. % No. %
The Cosmos Co-op Bank Limited *  25,000  100  25,000  100

*Two Shares are held in the name of Nominee
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Note 4 - Reserves and Surplus

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance  71,005,329  51,857,864
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year  14,718,441  22,156,405
(-) Dividend Distribution Tax —  508,940
(-) Interim Dividends (Refer Note No. 24) —  2,500,000
Closing Balance  85,723,770  71,005,329

General Reserve
Opening Balance  1,300,000  1,300,000
Closing Balance  1,300,000  1,300,000
Total  87,023,770  72,305,329

Note 5 - Long Term Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Provision for Employee Benefits - Gratuity  96,059  2,939,514
Total  96,059  2,939,514

Note 6 - Trade Payables

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Trade Payables
As Acceptances  724,053  22,274,436
Total  724,053  22,274,436

Note 7 - Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Advance from Customers  170,000  6,289,746
Other payables  5,611,089  12,216,812
Total  5,781,089  18,506,558

Note 8 - Short Term Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Others
Provision for Income Tax  31,300,000  25,980,000
Total  31,300,000  25,980,000
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Note 9 - Property, Plant & Equipment	

PROPERTY, PLANT & 
EQUIPMENT  GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

 Balance as at 
01-Apr-2018 

 Additions/ 
(Disposals) 

 Acquired 
through 

business  
combinations 

 Revaluations/ 
(Impairments) 

 Balance as at 
31-Mar-2019 

 Balance as at 
01-Apr-2018 

 Depreciation 
charge for the 

year 

 Adjustment 
due to 

revaluations 

 On disposals  Balance as 
at 31-Mar-

2019 

 Balance as at 
31-Mar-2018 

 Balance as at 
31-Mar-2019 

` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` `

a. Tangible Assets —

Buildings  23,350,000 — — —  23,350,000  4,282,297  1,906,021 — —  6,188,318  19,067,703  17,161,682 

Computer System - Hardware  5,893,001  59,000 — —  5,952,001  5,135,291  354,866 — —  5,490,157  757,709  461,843 

Furniture and Fixtures  1,967,580 — — —  1,967,580  1,005,114  249,307 — —  1,254,421  962,466  713,159 

Vehicles  1,723,580 (1,670,824) — —  52,756  1,214,352  171,980 —  1,339,909  46,423  509,228  6,333 

Office Equipments  1,353,161 —  1,353,161  1,024,937  151,454 —  —    1,176,391  328,225  176,771 

 Total   34,287,322 (1,611,824)  —    —    32,675,498  12,661,991  2,833,628  —    1,339,909  14,155,710  21,625,331  18,519,788 

b. Intangible Assets
Softwares  32,052,528  -    -    -    32,052,528  26,742,161  2,662,846  -    -    29,405,007  5,310,367  2,647,521 

Total  32,052,528  -    -    -    32,052,528  26,742,161  2,662,846  -    -    29,405,007  5,310,367  2,647,521 
Grand Total  66,339,850 (1,611,824)  —    —   64,728,026 39,404,153  5,496,474  —    1,339,909 43,560,718 26,935,698 21,167,309 

Previous Year 63,338,636 3,001,214.00 — —  66,339,850  33,563,990  5,840,163  —    —    39,404,153  29,774,647  26,935,697 

Note 10 - Deferred Tax

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Deferred Tax Asset  288,355  488,636 
Less: Deferred Tax Liability  (124,959)  (200,281)

Total  163,396  288,355 

Note 11 - Long term loans and advances

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted as Source (Net of Provision)  35,258,749  29,207,088 

 —  — 
Total  35,258,749  29,207,088 

Note 12 - Inventories

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Inventories 
(Valued at Cost or Net Realisable value whichever is lower and as 
Certified by Management)
Software Licenses  4,255,000  27,750,000 
Traded Goods  57,930  57,930 
Total  4,312,930  27,807,930 
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Note 13 - Trade receivables

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
were due for payment
Unsecured, considered good  1,268,102  2,372,136 
Other Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good  7,081,676  21,868,709 
Total  8,349,778  24,240,845 

Note 14 - Cash and Cash Equivalents		

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Cash on hand  4,825  196 
Balances with banks
	 Current Accounts  18,087,686  7,767,553 
	 Term Deposit*  10,703,007  10,000,000 
Total  28,795,518  17,767,749 

* Fixed Deposits are held with The Cosmos Co-op Bank Ltd				  

Note 15 - Short Term Loans and Advances	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018

(`)
Unsecured, considered good
	 Deposits  1,417,400  1,417,400 
Prepaid Expenses  429,548  588,003 
Other Advances  2,555,626  55,626 
Total  4,402,574  2,061,029 

Note 16 - Other Current Assets

Particulars As at 
31 March 2019

(`)

As at 
31 March 2018 

(`)
Unsecured, considered good
Unbilled revenue  23,614,461  15,258,714 
Balances with Government Authorities - 
Indirect Tax Credit Receivable  1,052,231  619,303 
Accrued Interest  308,025  319,126.00 
Total  24,974,717  16,197,143 
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Note 17 - Revenue from operations			 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
Sale of Software Licenses  27,860,000  17,415,000 
Sale of Services  96,753,986  123,175,848 
Total  124,613,986  140,590,848

Note 18 - Other Income

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)

Interest received  768,785  354,585 
Miscellaneous income  2,119  71,107 
Sundry Balances Written Back  —    227,951 
Profit on Sale of Asset  364,085  —   
Interest on Income Tax Refund  250,754  —   
Excess Provision Written Back  1,873,421 
Total  3,259,164  653,643 

Note 19 - Inventories	

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
Changes in Inventory
Opening Inventory
Software Licenses  27,750,000  —   
Traded Goods  57,930  700,875 
Closing Inventory
Software Licenses  4,255,000  27,750,000 
Traded Goods  57,930  57,930 
Total  23,495,000  (27,107,055)

Note 20 - Cost of Operating Activity		

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
Project Software Technical Support Cost  8,491,809  9,549,422 
Project Software Sub Contractors  11,307,465  45,991,653 
Project Travelling Cost  466,306 
Total  20,265,580  55,541,075
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Note 21 - Employee Benefit Expenses			

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
Salaries and Incentives  52,189,497  63,152,397 
Contributions to -
Provident Fund  1,559,061  2,141,955 
Pension Fund  971,687  1,271,449 
Gratuity Fund  —    2,073,615 
Employees' Mediclaim Insurance Premium  616,572  1,017,360 
Staff Welfare Expenses  171,382  420,585 
Total  55,508,199  70,077,361 

Note 22 - Other Expenses

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
Electricity Charges  222,706  233,580 
Rent  1,233,086  1,601,600 
Telephone Charges  34,893  49,155 
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues  2,258 —

Rates & Taxes  23,558  22,203 
Travelling & Conveyence
Travelling Expenses  58,480  324,844 
Conveyance Expenses — —

Motor Vehicle Expenses  54,038  54,674 
Professional & Consultancy Fees  568,970  1,483,262 
Payment to auditors*  75,000  75,000 
Miscellaneous Expenses  671,507  1,110,658 
Total  2,944,497  4,954,976 

* Payments to the auditors comprises (net of GST input credit, wherever applicable)	

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
As auditors - Statutory Audit  45,000  45,000 
For taxation matters  15,000  15,000 
For Other Services  15,000  15,000 
Total  75,000  75,000 
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Note 23 - Exceptional Items			 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
Provision for Gratuity relating to earlier periods  —    (1,166,041)
Total  —  (1,166,041)

Note 24 - Interim Dividend Paid			 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 Mar 2019

(`)

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2018

(`)
Interim Dividend paid on 25,000 Equity Shares of ` 100 each
Interim Dividend paid on 25,000 Equity Shares @ ` 100 per share —    2,500,000 
Total —  2,500,000 

25.	 Commitment

2019 (`) 2018 (`)
The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account (net of advances) and not provided for at the year / 
period end

— —

Other commitments — —

26.	 Contingent liability

2019 (`) 2018 (`)
Other claims not acknowledged as debts 9,50,000 9,50,000

27.	 Deferred tax asset (net)

As per the Accounting Standard 22, “Accounting for taxes on income”, the Company would have a net deferred tax liability, on 
account of items giving rise to timing differences. Particulars thereof are as under.

Particulars 2019 (`) 2018 (`)
Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset (A)
Difference in depreciation as per books of account and tax 1,36,672 (2,00,281)

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) (B)
Disallowance of Gratuity Provision S. 43B of IT Act, 1961 26,724 4,88,636
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) (B-A) 1,63,396 2,88,355

28.	 Earnings per share

The number of shares used in computing Basic earnings per share (EPS) is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year.

Computation of Earnings Per Share 2019 (`) 2018 (`)
Net Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (A) 1,47,18,441 2,21,56,405

Nominal Value per share 100 100
Weighted average number of equity shares issued (B) 25,000 25,000
Basic earnings per equity share (A / B) (`) 588.74 886.26
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	 The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted earnings 
per share of the Company remains the same.

29.	 Related Party Disclosure

	 In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party transactions as prescribed under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the details of related party transactions are given below.

	 List of Related Parties

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party
Holding Organisation The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd
Key Managerial Persons Mrs. Arti Dhole, Managing Director & CEO

Dr. Mukund Abhyankar, Director
Mr. Ashutosh Joshi, Director

	 Transactions with related party

Particulars 2019 (`) 2018 (`)
Holding Organisation
Revenue and Expense Items
Rendering of Services (Net of Taxes and Credits) 7,37,17,112 10,69,87,062
Interest Received on Term Deposit 7,68,785 3,54,585
Dividend Paid on Equity Shares 0 25,00,000
Closing Balances
Trade receivable (net) 32,17,056 1,20,94,528
Balance in Current Accounts with Bank 1,80,86,276 77,66,996
Balance in Term Deposits with Bank 1,07,03,007 1,00,00,000
Key Managerial Person
Remuneration & other Benefits to Managing Director Mrs. 
Arti Dhole*
Salaries & Allowances @ Up to 31.12.2018 @23,37,843 28,39,292
Contribution to Provident Fund 1,16,520 97,308
Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Approx.) 0 57,779
Dr. Mukund Abhyankar
Directors Meeting Fees 17,500 10,000
Mr. Ashutosh Joshi
Directors Meeting Fees 17,500 10,000

	 *Pursuant to the proposal and resolution passed in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 21.12.2018, certain number 
of employees of the Company have been migrated to The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Limited (the “Bank”) w.e.f. 01.01.2019. 
Accordingly, Mrs. Arti Dhole, Managing Director of the Company has been transferred to the Bank and she ceased to be 
in employment of the Company. Mrs. Arti Dhole continued as the Managing Director of the Company and also designated 
as CEO of the Company w.e.f. 01.01.2019. However, she is not entitled for any remuneration from the Company. This was 
pursuant a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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30.	 Dues to micro and small suppliers

	 Under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2nd October 
2006, information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available 
with the Company:

Particulars 2019 (`) 2018 (`)
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year 
end

— —

Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end — —

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of 
the MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

— —

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the MSMED

— —

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
the accounting year

— —

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in 
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible

— —

31.	 Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)

Particulars 2019 (`) 2018 (`)
Travelling Expenses 0 0

0 0

32.	 Provision for Gratuity

	 Defined Benefit Plan: The Group provides for its liability towards gratuity as per the actuarial valuation. The present value of 
the accrued gratuity minus fund value is provided in the books of accounts.

	 I) 	 Changes in benefit obligation for the Company:

Particulars 2019 (`) 2018 (`)
Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.50% 7.60%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.80% 8.00%
Salary Escalation 5.00% 8.00%
Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations
Present Value of Obligations as at Beginning of Year 13628654 11,020,058
Interest Costs 805464 752,821
Current Service Costs 25529 1,132,100
Benefits Paid 0  (219,231)
Actual (Gain) / Loss on Obligations (2241801) 11,005
Past Service Costs 0 931,901
Present Value of Obligations as at end of year 96059 13,628,654
Table Showing Changes In Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at beginning of year  10689140  9,854,017
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Particulars 2019 (`) 2018 (`)

Expected Return on Plan Assets 871915  794,797
Transfer In/(Out) 12215134 0
Contributions  978524  381,114
Benefits Paid  0  (219,231)
Morality Charges & Taxes  (80,735)  (80,972)
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets  (23294)  (40,585)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at end of year  220416  10,689,140
Funded Status - -
Actual Return on Plan Assets 848621 754,212
Actual Gain / Loss Recognized
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) For the Year – Obligation  2241801  (11,005)
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) For the Year - Plan Assets  (23294)  (40,585)
Total Gain / (Loss) for The Year 2218507 (51590)
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) Recognized in The Year  2218507  (51590)
Amounts to be Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present Value of Obligations as at the end of the year 96059 13,628,654
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 220416 10,689,140
Funded Status Surplus / (Deficit) 124357 (2,939,514)
Non-Current Liability 96059 10,689,140
Net Assets / (Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet 124357 (29,39,514)
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 25529 1,132,100
Interest Cost 805464 752,821
Expected Return on Plan Assets  (871915)  (794,797)
Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized In the Year 0 0
Past Service Cost 0 931,901
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in the period (1873421) 51,590
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 0 20,73,615
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as Prior 
Period Item

0 11,66,041

33.	 Operating lease

	 The Company has taken office premise under operating lease. The Company has given refundable security deposit in 
accordance with the agreed terms. Lease payments of ` 12,33,086/- in respect of such premise are recognised in the 
Statement of profit and loss under ‘Rent’ in Note no. 22 forming part of these financial statements on accrual basis.

	 With respect to non-cancellable operating lease agreements, the future minimum lease rent payable is as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018
Not Later than one year Nil Nil
Later than one year and not later than five years Nil 36,19,917
More than 5 years Nil Nil

34.	 Goods and service tax (GST)

	 The management of the company is in process of reconciling GST Input Tax Credits as per the books of account with credit 
appearing on GST portal in Form GSTR 2A. Pending the same, credit reflecting in the books of account has been considered 
for preparation of the financial statements.
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35.	 The company has been constituted with the objective of providing IT (Information Technology) Services to banking industry 
including Cosmos Bank, holding enterprise of the Company. From January 2019 the staff that was engaged in providing 
IT services to Cosmos Bank has been transferred from employment of the Company to the Bank. Therefore, a significant 
number of employee and the Managing Director of the Company have been transferred to the Bank. The Company continues 
to render IT Services to the other enterprises from banking industry and has decided to be in the IT section business. 
Therefore, the Company is a going concern and accounts of the Company have been prepared on that basis.

36.	 During the year, Cyber-attack took place on payment gateway of ATM and SWIFT system of Cosmos Bank a significant client 
of the company. The Bank is addressing the matter. The Company was rendering IT services to the Bank. However, there 
is no responsibility of the company in this matter. The Company does not envisage any pecuniary liability in the matter and 
accordingly no liability has been recognized in the accounts of the company.

37. 	Balances of Loans and Advances received and given, Trade Payables and Trade Receivables are subject to confirmations 
being received from respective parties and have been stated as reflecting in the books of account for preparation of the 
financial statements.

38.	 Other information

	 Information relating to other matters specified in Division I, revised Schedule III to the Act, is either nil or not applicable to the 
Company for the year/ period.

39.	 Previous year comparatives

	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, reclassified & rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached,

For C V Chitale & CO
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 126338W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Darrshan Sawaiwala Dr. Mukund Abhyankar Ashutosh Joshi Arti Dhole
Partner Director Director Managing Director & CEO
Membership No: 127450 DIN: 00881021 DIN: 00546675 DIN: 07670787

Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: 2nd July, 2019 Date: 2nd July, 2019
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